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About Us

Vp is an international rental business providing Specia!ist products and services.

- Our objective is to deliver longer term, quality returns to our shareholders by
providing products and services to a diverse range of end markets including
infrastructure, construction, housebuilding and oil and gas, both in UK and

international markets, whilst embracing our increasingly important responsibility
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in environmental, social and governance matters as impacted by our business.
. L ‘ g
: . 5
Our Business Model and Strategy
Our aim is to create long term value —
' z
l Resilient and l First class asset l Spedcialist Building on l Sustainability g
proven model management rental core attributes focus @
- market leading - buy quality - embrace change | - retain and attract - defined strategy %
positions in niche products at and innovate the best people - reduce emissions 2
sectors competitive prices - provider of choice - safe and and waste
- diverse markets - maintain assets - continue to exceed sustainable business - innovate with
in UK and through rental life custormer - product service green products
International cycles expectations reliability and ©
- take long term - use strong balance - value added operational F
view sheet and cash service proposition excellence 3
generation for fleet &
growth and 5
acquisitions g
. 5
KPIs KPIs KPls KPIs KPis g
- PBTA - ROACE - PBTA - annualised j - emissions
- revenue growth - EBITDA gearing - revenue growth employee tumover® - waste’
- margins - net debt - margins - reppnablg - supply chain
: - fleet spend accidents - fleet
’ . ' *shown in Responsible Business kepbrt
Diverse Range of End Markets
CONSTRUCTION HOUSEBUILD ENERGY

'INFRASTRUCTURE
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Group Businesses

"% UK Forks

&P Materials Handling Specialists

UK Forks is one of the UK’s leading specialist hirers
of telescopic handlers and tracked access platforms.
The products and services are utilised by its
customers to improve safety and productivity on
construction and housebuilding sites across the UK.

L= PRI
7 |puBLIC

\")¥ Brandon Hire Station

i The UK’s Tool and Equipment Hire Specialist
Brandon Hire Station is the leading provider of
tools and specialist rental products to industry,
construction and home owners across the UK.

VB’

ESS

Safety, Survey, Test & Measurement

(o

- ESS is the leading specialist provider of safety,
survey, communications and test & measurement
equipment rental in the UK.

\'4 Groundforce

plc Specialist Construction Solutions

Groundforce is a market leading rental and design
provider of excavation support systems and specialist
products to the water, civil engineering and .
construction industries with operations in the UK, the
Republic of Ireland and mainland Europe.

\s] TPA

i rortable Roadways

TPA Portable Roadways is one of Europe’s largest
suppliers of temporary access solutions. Operating
from bases in the UK and Germany, TPA provides
portable roadways and temporary access solutions to
customers in the transmission, construction, rail and
outdoor events markets.

02 ‘ vpplc.com Vp plc Annual Report and Accounts 2021



Group Businesses

[\’/Bk MEP Hire

Mechanica), Electrical & Low Level Access Spedialists

mechanical and electrical press fittings and low
level access platforms to the construction, fit
out, mechanical and electrical markets.
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I3 Torrent Trackside

iad Railway Plant. Railway People. 1

Specialist suppliers of rail infrastructure portable plant -
and related trackside services to Network Rail,
London Underground and their appointed track
renewal, maintenance and project contractors.

m Alrpac Bukom

Oilfield Services

Airpac Bukom Qilfield Services is an international
business supporting 3 wide range of oil and gas
markets, servicing well test, pipeline testing,

rig maintenance and LNG markets worldwide.

3 £ R Group

TR is Australasia’s leading technical equipment
rental group providing test and measurement,
communications, calibration and audio visual
solutions in Australia, New Zealand and South
East Asia. .

Group

UK EUROPE

MEP Hire is the UK’s largest provider of b

U0 Jewlciu) Japjoyaseys ” . Sjuauwaiels |enueuly H 9IURUIIA0G ” uodaam |
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| long.Term Success
Vp plc has a long.and dlstlngmshed hlstory as a major rental business. Founded
in 1954, the Company floated on the UK Stock Market in 1973 as Vibroplant plc.

In 2000, the Company exited its then core general plant hire business to focus on |
~ higher return, value added, specialist rental actlvmes and subsequently changed
its name to Vp plc. ' » -

The Group has since developed a wide range of sector leading, specialist rental
businesses serving a diverse range of end markets in both UK and Internatlonal
markets -

L . | 2005

2000 - TPA
1 UK Forks and -
; ggggn | division | ESS
ted i
‘ “Tool Hire crea acqolred
11982 acquired
us powered Exit from. . - -
access USA ; :
B ' business ., | ./
, 1975 established | .~ - ./
. ' First » ‘/
. move ' S
. 1954 i . B ./’/
| Vibratory specialist - ‘ 2001
EIO”? :ff. | plant. | , | 1997 | Hire Station
| ‘Nanth oy | Airpac e ' Rail: Torrent | formed through
(L’ or dern) ' /‘ _ ‘| Trackside merger of
Imite 1. @ acquired | 5 regional tool
founded ' ‘ : businesses
/,// 1990 S
o ‘ Groundforce
: _ /. ] 1980 | scquired ’ - | 2001
L Shoring from SGB Renamed
1 ‘ - | - division < Vp plc
- : established : '
/ 1973 ‘ ' _ ' _
Floated on - ' 4
[ ~ main market ) _
‘ 1 Vibroplant '

plc
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2014

12016
Acquisitions of -
Higher Access

_ and TR Pty
2007 Vp celebrates (Australia)
. MEP 60 years _
acquired- _ ‘
‘o ® )
o
o - 2015
: Acquisition
2010
: of Test &
Sxepoagnr:igzl'cal Measurement
2006 .| Global (Airpac
Acquisition of Bukom) Eire
Bukom Oilfield (Groundforce)
Services " | Germany (TPA) .
(Airpac Bukom L :
formed)

2017
Acquisition of
Brandon Hire

2019
“Acquisition
of Sandhurst
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Revenue | 1970: | 1980: .
History | £2m | £14m | £70m | £55m | £129m

1990: | 2000: | 2010:

2015:
£206m

2016:
£209m

2017: | 2018:
£249m | £304m -

2019:
£383m

2020:
£363m

2021:
£308m

Vp plc Annual Report and Accounts 2021 vppic.com
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Financial Highlights - impacted by Covid-19

GROUP REVENUE - 382.8 4 BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE'

£308.0m 46.8p

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 . o 2017, 2018 '2019A2020, 2021 -

- PROFIT BEFORE fAX‘ DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

30.2 305°

“Decision on final dividend

for 2020 delayed due to
£Z 3 3 m Covid-19, 22.0p special - -
: dividend paid in Jan 2021
‘ ' in respect of 2020
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 - i 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
RETURN ON AVERAGE CAPITAL EMPLOYED' ' : NET DEBT -

179.2

92% ...  £1219m

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 : ' ’ 2017 2018 2019 2020 2027 .

Notes on alternatlve performance measures:
1 e Al performance measures stated as before amortisation are also before impairment of mtanglbles exceptlonal items and IFRS 16.
. » Basic earnings per share pre amortisation and exceptional items is reconciled to basic ‘earnings per share in note 22.
e Profit before tax, amortisation and exceptional.items is reconciled to profit before tax in the Income Statement.
e EBITDA is reconciled to profit before tax, amortisation and exceptional items by adding back net financial expenses and depreoatton

e Return on average capital employed is based on profit before tax, interest, amortisation and exceptional items divided by average
capital employed on a monthly-basis using the management accounts. Profit before tax, interest, amortisation and exceptlonal items is
reconciled to profit before interest and tax in'the Income Statement.

06 ' . :  vpplc.com Vp plc Annual Report and Accounts 2021



Financiél Highlights: |

STATUTORY (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

(£.2.3'm)"'“" M (116p)

| ey

- STATUTORY BASIC EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

-65.2

2| (11.6)

2017. 2018 2019 2020 2021. -

2017 2018

Impact on Consolldated Income Statement EBITDA and earnings per share

2019° 2020 2021

~The financial impact of IFRS 16 on the Group’s consohdated mcome statement and EBITDA for-the year ended 31 N\arch '

2021 is set out below:

EXCLUDING IFRS 16

REPORTED °

IFRS 16 IMPACT
. : . £000 - £000
Operating profit before amortisation and exceptional items 27,721 . ' 3,207
Operating profit - : : , 2,476 3207 .-
EBITDA , L ‘ 72,701 23,959
Net financial expense before exceptional items - (4,448) ) (3,304)
 Profit before taxation, amortisation and exceptional ltems . 23,273 (97)
Loss before taxation _ A (2,172) (97)

“£000
/30,928
5,683

96,660
a, 752)
23,176 -

(2,269)

W
=
I~
o
=
®
E=%
[al
o]
o
°
=]
3
=1

l AUBUIDA0Y

Sjuswiales |enueuly

UOHRWII0JU| J3P|OyRIeYS

\_Ip pic Annual Report and Accdun‘ts 2021 vpplc.com”

07 .




Chairman’s Statement

I am very pleased to report on what
we consider an extremely satisfactory
outcome for the year to 31 March
2021 given the unique challenges
“that the business has faced this year.

The majority of our revenue decline was suffered in March
and April 2020 as Covid lockdowns impacted most heavily
" and immediately. Thereafter, revenues have progressively
.recovered across our businesses although varying in pace
and extent. We have exited the financial year with
fevenue run rate at 95% of prior year, an exceptionally
strong recovery of which we had no expectation at the
beginning of the pandemic.

Profit before tax, amortisation and exceptional items was
£23.3 million (2020: £47.1 million) on revenues down by
15%-to £308.0 million (2020: £362.9 million). EBITDA was
£72.7 million (2020: £98.1 million). A relentless focus on cash

“management helped to reduce year end debt by £37.9

million to £121.9 million (2020: £159.8 million) whilst at the
same time enabling us to support specific high return on.
capital investment opportunities to the extent of £40.2
million (2020: £49.1 million). '

Return on average capital employed slipped to 9.2% (2020
14.5%) and earnings per share largely tracked reduced
profitability to 46.8 pence per share (2020:-91.0 pence per
share).

As we a'nnounced.at the time of our Interim results, the
Board wished to have better visibility for the out turn for the
year as a whole before declaring a dividend. We are now
reporting results beyond the upper end -of our original
expectations and therefore the Board will be recommending
the payment of a final dividend of 25.0 pence per share
(2020: Special Dividend 22.0 pence per share). Subject to
shareholders approval at the Annual General Meeting to be
held on 22nd July 2021, it is proposed to pay the final
dividend on 5 August 2021 to members registered at 25 June
2021. Historically our dividend policy has sought to maintain
dividends -over the economic cycle having due regard to

future prospects as well as immediate performance and we
have been guided by a dividend cover ratio in the range of -

2.5 to 3 times net earnings. We have more recently operated
outside of the upper limit of this range. Going forward, we
intend to more fully distribute earnings.and operate more
towards the lower end of that range.

We did initially participate in the Government’s job retention
scheme but all use of furlough support was ended in October.
At no time did the company access Government support
- loans or seek funding from shareholders. Throughout the
period the Company operated within its existing banking
-covenants although we did secure a precautionary,
temporary easing of these measures, which ultimately were
neither required nor utilised.

As has already been announced, after an investigation lasting
almost 4 .years, the Competition and Markets Authority

Chairman: Jeremy Pilkington

("CMA"Y announced that there had been a breach of
competition law by three major suppliers of groundworks
products for hire in the UK, including the Group’s excavations
support business, Groundforce Shorco. The CMA imposed a

‘penalty of £11.2 million on the Company. We fundamentally -

disagree with the conclusions of the CMA but the Board
reluctantly decided that it was not in the best interests of the
business to contest this finding given the uncertainty of the
process, the costs and the continued distraction that it would
represent to senior management. Vp has always prided itself
on a corporate ethic of fairness, integrity and respect. We
believe ‘that our behaviour continues to exemplify these
values irrespective of the CMA's findings. '

" Vp has always placed itself at the forefront of innovation and

| am very pleased to highlight the many initiatives that are
takingplace throughout the business. Reduction of our carbon
footprint, addressing broader areas of environmental
performance and the application of information technalogy to
enhance the customer experience are just some of the
programmes described in more detail in the Business Review.

As.we hopefully return to more normal trading conditions,
uninhibited by Government restrictions, we feel the market
backdrop for Vp is very positive. Particularly in the UK, major
infrastructure and levelling up projects provide significant
upside growth opportunities for the Group over the
immediate and longer term. Internationally the prospects for
our energy business look better now than they have for some
time and the TR business appears set to benefit from
effective local pandemic responses. Extended supply chains
and shortages of certain construction materials provide some
challenges in the short term and against which we have
taken mitigation measures wherever possible.

| would like to extend a special thanks to all our employees
at this time as they-have responded to these unprecedented
challenges with a courage and energy that has been
remarkable i

Jeremy Pilkingfon
Chairman
8 June 2021
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Business Review

Overview

Vp plc is a rental business providing
specialist products and services to a
~diverse range of end markets including.

infrastructure, construction, housebuilding,

and energy. The GroUp comprises a UK

I | 110d23P1b3}eis] |

and an International Division.

Chief Executive: Neil Stothard

]’ Year ended Ye;r ended ‘{

|31 March 2021 | 31March2020

Revenue . ,JL, £308.0 m|4I7ITon ML: £362.9 million Wwii

'f_peratmg profit before amortlsatlon and exceptionals ”L . £27.7 million £51.9 ml![|on w .

' ; Operating margin ) _,}L 9.0% 14:3%. “‘
_ nvestmentin fental fleet . fa0zmilion [ €491 million

i—Re-tl_J;l'_l—Oh avefage capltal anoIog/ed ; o ‘L 9.2% “;jg,,,-w 14.5% —> _j

LStatutory operating proflt : J( a ES 7 mllllon }r—‘—é37 2 million J{

The year to 31 March 2021 was an extremely: challengmg
trading period for the Group against a backdrop of a global
"pandemic and the inevitable |mpact on economic
conditions.

Whilst Group operating profits before amortisation and -

exceptional items were significantly reduced at £27.7 million
compared with prior year of £51.9 million this represented an

excellent recovery from the business after an extremely difficult

first quarter trading impacted by national shutdowns. Operating
margins decreased to 9.0% (2020: 14.3%) with Group
revenues at £308.0 million (2020: " £362.9 million) 15% down
on prior year. Return on average capital employed inevitably
reduced to 9.2% from prior year of 14.5%. Whilst this is below
our average ROACE for the last five financial years of 15.2%, we
remain confident of restoring this important measure towards
historic levels as markets recover and wé maintain our
investment disciplines with the deployment of increased capex.

EBITDA before exceptionals was £72.7 million (2020: £98.1-

million) and cash generation from trading remained robust.
Net debt at 31-March 2021 was £121.9 million (2020: £159.8
million), a significant reduction of £37.9 million in the period,

clearly demonstrating the Group’s ability to pay down debt

even in the most testing of circumstances. -

with activity subdued. during the year, the investment in
rental fleet was tailored accordingly with a reduced gross
" capital expenditure of £40.2 million, (2020: £49.1 million).

Fleet disposal proceeds were £17.5 million (2020: £21.4

million) generating profit on disposals of £4.3 million (2020:

- £8.9 million). We have recently seen supply chain lead times
extend significantly and we have committed new capex
during March 2021 to mitigate potential short falls in products
later in the year.

To deliver a PBTA of £23.3 m||||on isa tremendous achievement

and this underlines the quality of the business streams that we
- "have in Vp and the confidence derived from our success over.

the long term. Our specialist divisions within the UK, Europe and
other International regions provide a level of diversity of risks

which, even against 8 poor market backdrop, demonstrate the -

resilient characteristics of our business model.

With the rapld onset of Covid-19 in March 2020, most Group

activities were severely impacted by lockdowns and in the final

two weeks of March 2020 we saw demand for our products’

and services drop significantly as customers closed down sites.

In response to the severe downturn in activity early in the
year, we had to take significant steps to de-risk the business
by reducing costs. As the year progressed many mothballed

locations were re-opened and furloughed employees:

returned to work. We controlled this process so as to align
with the return to work of our customers. We closed or
merged 25 business locations and also secured material cost
reductions in other areas of expenditure such as the
commercial vehicle fleet. Overall the average headcount in
the Group reduced by 279 (9%), of which 187 were in
operational roles and 86 in administration and included 160
redundancies. Sales resources were largely unaltered and
available to our customers throughout the year.

The Covid-19 pandemic brought out the very best |n the
business against the severest of backdrops.

Whilst carefully operating defined safe working protocols, our
colleagues on the ‘front line" delivering and collecting
equipment, maintaining fleet or opening branches have done

a tremendous job in maintaining the quality of our services to -

those of our customers. who needed it. Equally many
colleagues have had fo adapt to working remotely and this
has proven to be a manageable -temporary solution
throughout the worst of the pandemic.

oURUIBA0Y
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Business Review

UK Division S
Operating profits (before amortisation
and exceptionals) in the UK division
decreased to £27.2 million compared
with £50.2 million prior year. Revenues
of £281.3 million (2020: £331.0 million)
were 15% down on prior year.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 .

[ Revenue | £281.3 million "_ £331.0 million

- | Operating profit before amortisation and exceptionals £27.2 million " £50.2 million
[[Investment in rental fleet I £35.6 million I £41.0 million ]

The UK division, comprises seven main business units: from housebuilding remains strong and general construction
UK Forks, Groundforce, TPA, Brandon Hire Station, ESS, continues to improve.

MEP Hire and Torrent Trackside. Whilst mainly operating
in the UK, TPA and Groundforce also have operations in_
mainland Europe, primarily in Germany and Austria. All
- the UK divisions support the three core sectors of
infrastructure, construction and housebuilding.

The Groundforce excavation support business has seen
some recovery in civil engineering work but there is still -
more to come. The water industry investment programme’
~ (AMP 7)"was in its first year of five and, impacted by Covid-
19, was slower than normal to transition from the planning

The following section comments on the highlights and key to implementation stage. This should start to accelerate in
actions for the constituent businesses within the UK division . the coming year. In addition, we are also optimistic that
" during-the year: S - other large infrastructure projects like HS2 and the.new. -

Thames Crossing will provide further demand for our shoring

The UK Forks materials handling business had a satisfactory . .
and associated excavation support products.

year, recovering well from a difficult first few months once

housebuilding re-opened during May 2020. All depots Focussed on improving our customer interaction, initiatives
remained operational throughout the pandemic. A customer embracing our digital strengths include the enhancement of
first approach has been key, with all account managers -our hire system by the introduction of a mobile, tablet driven

remaining available to customers throughout the year, and solution within both Groundforce and elsewhere across Vp.
as 3 result, customer retention has remained extremely-  This provides a mobile system for -our operational and

high.. A number of major housebuilder agreements were ‘commercial teams whilst delivering material benefits to our
also renewed for the coming year. Whilst capital investment ~ customers.” We have further enhanced the customer
-has been reduced, the business has continued to grow. the ~ experience by the launch of “Your Solution” which is a self-
rotational and heavy lift telehandler fleet. Digital ~ Serve app which allows customers to create simple but safe
enhancements to operational performance includes further ~  excavation designs, 24/7, ahead of finalising the detailed
upgrades to the JCB Live Link system enabling our customers ~ solution with our engineering design team, a much more
to receive real time data on fleet usage and help them  efficient and validated process. An in-house developed
manage important targets such as fuel consumption and €02 pressure testing app ‘Pressure Tests +' to support our AMP7
emissions. A focus on environmental- matters has seen UK framework customers was also launched in the year. Fleet
Forks invest in both battery powered electric teletruks and investment -was maintained and this included, new
electric telehandlers. They are new products to the market excavator-attachment solutions for both the rail and road
and key to engagement with our customers in achieving infrastructure customer base.
their environmental’goals. We have also been trialling the In Europe, the Groundforce business suffered from regional
use of hydrogenated vegetable oil (H.V.O) on our existing "~ Covid-19 driven restrictions. These regional constraints
~ telehandler fleet which, if proved to be successiul, will materially impacted the construction sector in Germany,
- deliver exceptional carbon foot print reductions. Heading into Austria and France. Both core shoring and major project
the new financial year the utilisation of our fleet is very high, contracts” suffered resultant delays. We are however
and exacerbated by the increased lead times for new encouraged by progress into the new financial year as both
product which are causmg pinch points on supply. Demand delayed and new projects are starting to come on stream.

.10 ' ' , ' vpplc.com Vp plc Annual Report and Accounts 2021



Business Review

UK Division

The TPA UK business which offers temporary access solutions
had an excellent year underpinned by strong demand for
portable roadway products. There was rapid growth in activity
from contractors working on the HS2 project, both on the

enabling and construction phases. This was supplemented by -

solid demand from the transmission and ground investigation
markets, and despite outdoor events being completely closed

of resilient long term demand from the transmission,
renewable energy and gas pipeline sectors all of which are
benefitting from government infrastructure investment in
Germany and surrounding countries.

Brandon Hire Station our tool and equipment hire specialist
business, entered-the new financial year against a backdrop
of a national lockdown and a temporarily closed construction
sector. Revenues fell by 50% during April 2020 compared to
the prior month and as previously reported, over 100
Iocations were mothballed and large numbers of employees

furloughed. Despite this, 70 locations remained open for

business throughout as our activities were classified as
essential in support of the health, utility and transport sectors
and subsequently the construction sector, as that market also
re-opened. The sales team was retained in full throughout
the year and, as elsewhere in the Group, this enabled us to
maintain relationships with our customers, which was
invaluable to them- particularly in those difficult early
months. The business has subsequently merged sixteen, and
closed nine branch locations to.maintain an efficient, but still
- comprehensive, national tool hire network. Our national
business offers local service to a broad customer base and
focuses on availability and quality. Despite the myriad of
challenges and changes over: the last twelve months,

keeping it. simple has been the guiding mantra and we
expect this to pay dividends as the market picks up.

Brandon Hire Station has developed its digitél approach over .-

recent years aiming to leverage the associated benefits of a
more efficiently run business together with a transactional
relationship which offers customers market leading quality
management information. All fleet assets at branches are

strong SME customer base. A key positive from the
pandemic was the emergence of 3 revitalised DIY sector.
Online revenues more than trebled compared with prior year

~and we estimate Brandon Hire Station now captures ¢. 15%
of all online tool hire transactions in the UK via its website,
a share that is continuing to grow.

Brandon Hire Station also completed a successful first year
supporting the new, minimum six year duration, Network
Rail contract and this will be the eleventh year of managing
and supplying Network Rails small tool requirements.
Infrastructure projects on the rail network continued
throughout the pandemic. The business also provided
regular essential support to certain NHS departments’ during
the year and continues to do so. '

Brandon Hire Station is targeting further investment in eco-
friendly equipment to 3dd to the rental fleet and the move
away from diesel powered, to electric and solar powered
products is well underway. The portable toilets offer is being
rolted out nationally and investment has been committed to
deliver on that plan. The Brandon Hire Station partnered
services business has seen a rapid acceleration in revenues
_over the last 12 months. This activity acts as a transaction

- vehicle for all Vp products, alongside over 20 other key

product suppliers from outside of the Vp group. This offer is
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in the year. TPA also delivers rapid rail access solutions to the bar coded and scanned in and out to customers. and
Ir:e;lrs:\it/gik Tirr]]e ttfzantIJtII(O»r:afirlor:qacriz tto‘f’zg” ;Toewneavxdﬂvfizﬁz: transactions are paperless. All deliveries are managed by our
. . o . . drivers using tablet based maobile technology and we are o)
impacted by Covid. TPA's rail activity only started to materially » A A . 2
. able to keep our customers up to date via text at each stage 3
recover in the second half of the year. The strength of - . . 3
. ) ; of the transaction. S
demand for roadway product saw the business invest in . ' - 2
further rental fleet in support of the core customer base and We expect to deliver the majority of our orders within a two
backed by our positive longer term view of the market. to three hour window and this quality of service can only be
The aluminium roadway panels have a long lifespan. are achieved by having industry leading availability of tool hire - so——
manufactured from rZ—? ded metal an% arep 1000 fleet. Our IT system assimilates both historic and current ‘
recvclable at the end ofylife dembnétratin 3 s erio(: rental data to help us establish minimum stock holding 3
em)lironmental solution to lthat of mang com posite levels on the top 350 lines at all branches. This system has 0 2
B~ . - y P been in place for a number of years and it is designed to -
altefnatives. Looking ahead, continuation of the longer term make it possible for us to sav “Yes' whenever a customer &
HS2 work, an anticipated uplift of CP6 activities in_ the rail o uestsz roduct Y - 3
sector, and the resumption of the outdoor event sector, are g P o . : =z
all seen as excellent market opportunities for TPA-UK. Our National Customer Service Centre in Manchester handles
. . 3 third of all tool hire orders, processing over 18,000 p——
' Idn,Eurnodptfer, rtT:]t:raTn’)sll\wwiz us u;ess dalson ttrrads% nwell tW'th goog transactions per month. The installation of Omni channel v
emand Trorn transmission and construction customers an software has boosted productivity and upgraded our o
despite the disruption of the various lockdowns in Germany response to customers whether via web, email, phone, SMS g
and Austria. As in the UK, the -TPA Eu‘rope business has live chat or social media. A new progressive app-will be 2
exposure to the outdoor event sector which was also closed launched to customers early in the new financial year El
during the year. Stable demand from the transmissions allowing customers to self-transact in a seamless: manner. 8
market more than compensated for this. We have continued ; o . 5
. } : We believe this will be transformational for our already E
to invest in the roadway fleet, encouraged by the prospect

Vp plc Annual Report and Accounts 2021 vpplc.com . o 1



Business Review

UK Division

aimed at those specific customers who require a single
transactional source for alt their rental requirements.

Looking forward, the Brandon Hire Station business, with a
genuine national footprint of 160 locations, is'an attractive

“local tool hire source and in some cases, the only national
tool hirer in town, whilst also offering the largest tool hire
network of branches in the UK. It.operates the largest owned
tool hire fleet, and the largest delivery fleet, providing
support to those larger customers who require 3 consistent
and reliable national service. We are confident that an

" already successful combination of availability and reliability
together with the most experienced rental staff in the
industry will deliver further success for Brandon Hire Station
this year.

ESS remains the market leading safety and survey rental
business in the UK and whilst inevitably impacted by Covid

restrictions stayed open for business throughout providing not”

only vital support throughout the pandemic to key national
infrastructure organisations such as the NHS but also the rail,
communications, and utilities sectors. Revenues had reached
¢.95% of pre-Covid levels by the close of the financial year.
Highlights included the award of a three year sole supply
“agreement of rail and location equipment to Colas Rail,
* together with the successful delivery of a wide range of
“services in support of a major shutdown at the Valero oil
refinery in Pembrokeshire supplying.almost 2500 contractors.
ESS also completed a successful withdrawal of its operations
in the Netherlands at the end of the financial year enabling
“the division to concentrate its resources and energies on the

significant opportunities available in the UK market. Capital -
investment was maintained during the year with a particular -

focus on the survey and.test & measurement fleets to-meet

renewed demand. The division has invested in the operation-

of hybrid service vehicles in London with a view to
- significantly reducing vehicle emissions. The plan is to roll this
out further across ESS in the future.

MEP which supports the mechanical, electrical and plumbing
sectors had a very good year in the circumstances. Despite
+ losing 3 large percentage of monthly revenue in April 2020,
the business experienced a resilient and quick recovery and,

by the end of the financial year was operating ahead of prior’

year levels. Like many Vp businesses, MEP maintained
accessibility for jts customer base throughout 2020, with:all
branches bar one staying open and the sales team largély
operating as normal. This has undoubtedly further reinforced
- MEP’s already strong customer relationships as we were able
to deliver when it mattered most. MEP’s success was driven
by a combination .of ‘a general recovery and specific,
targeted activity in the major conurbations outside of
London. Initially the London region was stower to recover but
this has accelerated in recent. months as the city has re-

opened. This should provide added impetus for the new -

financial year, further helped by a recent success to secure 3
major two year plus presence at one of London’s largest new
office constructions. Investment continues to grow and a
number of exclusive innovative products have been added
to the fleet. Like UK Forks, MEP is trialling HVO fuels but this
time.in the service and delivery vehicles. It is targeting
emission reductions of ¢. 90% from this source. MEP will -
further enhance its branch network in the current year with
relocation to an impressive new location at Trafford Park
improving their capacity to service the growing North West
market. :

Torrent Trackside which provides specialist plant to the rail
sector, was open throughout the pandemic as the UK Rail
industry made an early call to maintain essential

. maintenance activity. Whilst some projects were delayed,

operational activity levels at Torrent were similar to the prior
year. Like Brandon Hire Station, Torrent had a very successful
first year of their new long term contract in support of
Network Rail.

Torrent is using Vp's M42 mobile IT system to enhance
operational efficiency and at the same time eliminate
paperwork. Torrent now provides a 100% digital service
platform from placing the initial enquiry, to delivery,
collection and final invoicing.

Torrent has also made large strides in reducing fossil fuel
usage and successfully trialled a “site of the future” concept,

showcasing our significant investment in battery powered ..
" rail specific plant, which operates at lower noise levels and

is effectively carbon neutral. This concept was well received
by our rail customer base, including Network Rail, who see

- Us as a pivotal supply chain partner to help drive their own-
. carbon reduction targets over the next five years.

Despite CP6 being slow to develop, as the year progressed
the rail market became busier. We anticipate that some of
the delayed major rail projects will go live early in the new
financial year. These include the Trans Peninine upgrade
programme and the Tfw Core Valleys Lines upgrade, both
of which have appointed Torrent as a key supply chain
partner. HS2 activity, for Torrent, is likely to pick up in to
2022 when the construction phase has become more
mature. Torrent is however very well placed to support that
work when it comes on stream. Torrent also secured a
major five year supply contract with Balfour Beatty Rail
supporting them on a number of key rail projects including
the Core Valleys Line extension referred to above. The -
latter contract will be serviced by our recently opened
depot facility in South Wales. Investment in the Torrent
fleet has been mdintained and more than 60% of the
capex spend is expected to be in substitutional, battery and
solar powered, products as we - further enhance the
environmental credentials of our rail offer. -
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Business Review

International Division
The International division reported’

“operating profits before amortisation:

and exceptionals of £0.6 million, on
revenues 16% reduced on prior year

~of £26.7 million (2021: £31.9 million).

Year ended " Year ended
v 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenue [ £26.7 million 1 £31.9 million ]
| Operating profit before amortisation and exceptionals £0.6 million £1.7 million
Investment in rental fleet £4.6 million - £8.1 million

The International division comprises Airpac Bukom, a
global supplier to the energy sector and TR Group which
operates in Australia, New Zealand, Malaysia and
singapore and is a leading technical equipment rental

group.  The following section. comments on the"

highlights and key actions for the two main business
~ groupings within the International division during the
year. ‘ :

Airpac Bukom which provides equipment and services to .

the international energy sector, encountered difficult trading
conditions in the year. ‘A combination of cancelled or
postponed projects and a restricted ability for labour to cross
many international borders impacted revenue levels. Pre-
Covid, the business was anticipating a pick-up in activity and
had secured a number of new longer term contracts most of
which however, fell foul of Covid-19 delays or cancellation.
Activity levels in. our three main geographical areas of
operation, these being Europe, Australia and Asia, were
somewhat mixed. In Eurgpe maintenance and well testing
was very subdued, but the markets are pleasingly now
starting to pick up into the new financial year. In Australia
all major shutdown activities were postponed but we are

. increasingly confident of a resumption of shutdown. work .

there, as-we are in Europe. Asia held up relatively well with
good activity in both drilling contracts and well test. -

Despite a difficult trading year we have identified future
opportunities and have invested further in the rental fleet
with additional high pressure compressor/ booster products.

We have also added more environmentally friendly electric

compressors to the fleet during the year. -

TR Group, Australasia’s leading technical equipment rental
group also experienced a challenging trading year across all
its geographies. All constituent businesses were impacted to

some extent, as borders ‘were closed and lockdowns of -

varying lengths imposed. Despite this, .the business
continued to operate, initially supporting sectors deemed to

-be essential, but then more broadly as conditions improved,

particularly in Australia and New Zealand. The TR Group
offers instrumentation solutions and communication

products to a wide range of markets including construction,

mining and infrastructure. These sectors remained open.
Revenues recovered slowly and as we moved into 2021,
were approaching pre-pandemic levels. ‘In New Zealand,

“the Vidcom business, which provides audio visual rental

solutions, was severely hit by the closure of large elements

of the conference -and hospitality sector, Vidcom's main .

market. In response the business was restructured in to a
new operating model. Physical attendance at events that
did take place was replaced by virtual access. Vidcom further
developed their live streaming services to a wide range of
customers including the New Zealand government. Other

innovations across TR Group include the introduction of -

mobile calibration vans to TR Calibration enabling instrument

calibration services to be provided at remote locations. -

-Environmental initiatives at TR Group include the installation

of solar panels at a number of their locations.

.Our expectation is that the international markets will, subject

to any further Covid setbacks, offer accelerating demand for
our services and flourish again as their respective economies
recover.
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Business Review

Employees

As an asset ‘management business we rightly focus on - -

maximising the physical assets in which we invest. However,
the most important assets we have .are our people and

investing in ‘this aspect remains critical to.our ongoing and

~ successful development. As highlighted earlier in this review
the response of our colleagues to the Covid-19 pandemic has

been extremely positive and fundamental to the successful -

" business recovery to date.

Outlook

Across Vp, we are now firmly looking forwards rather than
backwards after the most testing -year for everyone across the
business. . We finished the prior year well and | am pleased to
confirm that we have maintained this into April and May of
the new financial year which has started strongly for us.

The market backdrop for Vp is positive. Major infrastructure
sectors, such as water, rail and transmission are primed for
escalating growth in the coming year, added to which other
major projects such as HS2 and Hinkley Point will continue to
'drive demand. We see the residential construction market
continuing to be supportive as housebuilders maintain their
build programmes. Whilst the general construction sector has
been slightly slower to recover, we are seeing.positive signs
of a sustained improvement in this key and large market.

We have taken robust action over the last twelve months to

streamline our divisional activities where necessary and | am

N

Neil Stothard
“Chief Executive
8 June 2021

We are.now in the 12th consecutive year of our engineering

. apprenticeship programme and this year we are delighted to

be offering 41 apprentice roles across our business. We have
aradually increased the intake. Since we started the scheme
in the last global recession, we have seen 144 apprentice
engineers recruited to the programme. In 2021 we intend to
expand our apprentice training further with the launch of a
sales programme targeting a formal accreditation for both
new and existing sales people within the business. We are
also recruiting four more graduates to our well established. Vp ‘

_ Graduate Scheme.

gonfident that we are well placed to deliver significant

. progress over the next twelve.

| refer in the overview to our resilient characteristics as a

“business and how that.has contributed to our ability to

consistently combat the most challenging of conditions. We
have, however, also proven time and again in the past, that if -
the markets are supportive then those same characteristics
can also deliver high quality, market Ieadmg earnings, for our -
shareholders

Twelve months ago I said that we had entered the pandemlc
with an. excellent business and that as best-as we can
manage, we planned to exit with an equally excellent
‘business. | believe this plan has been achieved:

As a team we are excited about the prospects for the coming
year which we approach with increasing conhdence as each
day comes.
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Responsible Business Report

Overview

We have a responsible business culture resting upon our principles of fairness, integrity and respect.
Our culture is underpinned by our corporate responsibility framework that ensures good governance
and influences the way we manage our environmental and social impacts. This framework applies
to all elements of our business and incorporates Sustainability, Environmental and Social Governance
(ESG) and Corporate Responsibility (CR) - all of which overlap and are complementary.”

fSUSTAlNABII.ITY STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN
At Vp we take our responsibilities in sustainability matters

very seriously. As part of our evolving focus on these ‘

matters we have identified that key themes of our
sustainability. strateqy are Environment, Supply Chain, Hire
Fleet and Future Commitment. - We have summarised our
approach in the graphic and explain thesé workstreams in
more detail below. In addition, to help further mitigate any
negative environmental impacts, the Group .has begun
investing in local community and conservation projects.
Detarls of these mvestments can be found in seéction four.

We employ 3000 people across 10 drfferent countries
operating from over 240 sites producing a valued service to
thousands of customers across all the markets that we
serve. It is our aim that sustainability will be universally
addressed across this Vp network and that we will all help
to play: our part in mitigating climate change and
_ biodiversity loss by minimising our own envrronmental
footprint and strrvrng to do no harm.

Our corporate responsibility framework is focused -on 1.1 of
the 17 United Nations Sustainability Development Goals
(SDGs). These are 17 aspirational goals defined with the
purpose of progressing positive environmental, social and

- governance change for the world by the year 2030 and.a -

blueprint to achieve a better and more sustainable future for
all and address the global challenges we face including
~ poverty, climate change and environmental degradation.

We have reviewed the SDGs and each corrésponding target

to evaluate where we align most strongly-and where we -

shall strive to improve our contribution going forward. We
have used the SDG icons throughout the strategy to indicate
where we are making progress towards the achievement of
- these goals.

. SDGs for our people

SUSTAINABLE

DEVELOPMENT

GLALS

SDGs for.our customers, mvestors and supply chain
iz | 8 & = | B
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ENVIRONMENT : o)
Vp seeks to maximise the effrcrency of its” resources and
energy consuming assets. We are committed to continually
striving to improve our energy performance by robust
management of these’ matters. :

As a Group we seek to adhere to all compliance and
legislative best practice- including greenhouse gas emissions
disclosures, Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting and
the Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme (ESOS) phase 2
requirements. We have actioned all of the recommendations
from our ESOS phase 2 audits.

Each UK Division has achieved the 15O 14001 standard’
signifying an effective environmental management system. -
‘Building on this strong foundation, the Group is committed to

achieving 150 50001 - the Energy Management System
Standard over the next 18 months.

Having a group-wide cohesive energy management system

will enable closer monitoring and thus enhanced decision
making leading to further enhancements ‘to energy

efficiency.
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Responsible Business Report

To track the impact of our sustainability initiatives across the
Group, we have adapted our internal processes to provide
monthly monitoring of Scope -1 and 2 carbon emissions
figures. We have also identified environmental champions at
individual locations across the Group and we are introducing
online environmental training.

Fossil fuels
We acknowledge our dependence on fossil fuels and the
impact this continues to have on climate warming. Our
greenhouse gas emissions are calculated in accordance with
the World Business Council for Sustainable Development and
World Resources Institute’s Greenhouse Gas Protocol, the best

Led by CEO Neil Stothard, we ha\/e\formed an environmental .

- steering group to consolidate -and share green initiatives'

Group-wide and to drive our overall sustainability agenda.

practice for corporate emissions reporting, along with HM
Government’s Environmental Reporting Guidelines 2019 and
the fatest DEFRA conversion factors.

Greenhouse gas emissions data for the period 1st Apnl

~ 2020 to 31st March 2021 is set out below: -

| |
Scope 1 (Tonnes C02e) 11,146 ) 15 527
Scope 2 (Tonnes C02e) 1,977 2,429
3 Total Scope 1 & 2 (Tonnes C02e) 13,123 17,956
Energy consumption of Scope 1 & 2 (kWh) o -~ 55.0m 73.3m
Intensity Ratio: Tonnes CO2e (gross Scope 1+ 2) / £1 million revenue 49 56
Scope 3 (Tonnes (02e)* ' ' ' 1,970 3,906
Scope 1 (Tonnes C02e) 1,411 1,251
Scope 2 (Tonnes C02e) ‘ 268 338
ERERLEIM Total Scope 1 & 2 (Tonnes C02e) 1,679 - 1,589
(GUIINIAVIE Energy consumption of Scope 1 & 2 (kwh) , 7.0m 6.4m
Intensity Ratio: Tonnes C02e (gross Scope 1+ 2) / £1 million revenue = *~ 45 39
Scope 3 (Tonnes C02e)" 1,036 - ' -

*Scope 3 figures are limited to emissions from external haulage -

Since 2009, the Vp Group has reduced its

Scope 1 & 2 emissions expressed in tonnes of CO2 equivalent pei' £m revenue

130
120 (?

110

greenhouse gas emissions  year-on-year
with C02 equivalent tonnes per £m revenue
reducing from 125 tonnes per £1m revenue
-in 2006 to 48 tonnes per £1m revenue at -
year end 31 March 2021. There is, however,
still much more that we a@n do. . 90
80

100

To build on this strong record we have
explored offsetting our emissions but we
have conclided that it would be more 0
constructive to have a primary focus on = 50
improving our own internal outputs-through 4o
investments in - training, infrastructure, %
energy management and fleet choices. Vp
proactively works to reduce its dependence
on fossil fuels by exploring multiple

70 |

20

- opportunities some of which are detailed
below. -

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

16

vpplc.com Vp plc Annual Report and Accounts 2021



Responsible Business Report

- Vehicle Fleet

and Fuel Emissions
The Group operates circa 1,350 commercial vehicles and
company cars covering, in a typical year, 48 million miles
annually. We have a range of initiatives to minimise the
emissions from our commercial and company car fleet. We

‘continually update our feased commercial vehicle fleet, the.

majority of which is less-than four years old. Within our
largest commercial fleet, we enjoyed a 6% reduction in
greenhouse gas emissions in 2020 by replacing vehicles. To
further reduce emissions and improve road safety, we aim
to influence more eco-friendly driving practices through the
improved use of telematics information and driver training.

We are currently trialling a range of hybrid and electric

commercial vehicles and are installing charging stations at

some of our larger locations. The Group has also introduced

- self-charging and Plug-in Hybrid cars into the leased
company car fleet. :

Where possible, on long term projects, we look to identify
for strategic locations thereby greatly reducing distances
travelled. Furthermore, we are expanding our offering of
remote customer support which can expediate query
resolution as well as reducing the need for travel.

In- partnership with 3 major manufacturer and an

‘alternative fuels company, we are piloting the use of Green -

D+ HVO fuel in our larger plant to test its viability. At the
same time, we are trialling electric forklift trucks as a green
Aalternative to the traditional diesel engine fleet.

We have identified environmental champions at individual
locations across the Group and we are introducing.online
environmental champion training.

Renewable Energy 53] <,
We are also moving to renewable energy usage in our

“electricity supply. By the end of Q2 2021, all UK properties -

will be supplied with 100% renewable electricity, backed by
certificates of renewable energy guarantees of origin. This
will provide an annual reduction of ¢. 2,500 tonnes of
carbon emissions equating to around 10% of our annual
emissions.

We are also identifying reviewing sites across the Group
where we can generate our own renewable energy. We
- have our first solar panel installation in the UK and are
currently installing the same in three of our sites in Australia.

Waste SEEE

We aim to decrease the amount of unsorted waste produced
within our office and branch network and seek to divert all
waste from -landfill. Across the Group, the average
percentage diverted from landfill improved from circa 80% in
2019 to in excess of 90% of the total waste output in 2020.

To continue this positive trend we are engaged in
implementing waste reduction strategies at branch and
depot level - including working W|th suppliers to reduce
waste generation at source.

What happened

to our waste?

[ Diverted from landfill
(94%)

Landfill
= (6%)

Water
A comprehensive Group-wide water audit is underway to
review our usage and identify savings opportunities. Within
the audit, special consideration is being made to evaluate
the possibility of additional rainwater harvesting and grey
water recycling where we have high water usage due to.
washdown facilities.

Paper
Group wide usage of paper is also under scrutiny. We are
reviewing the utifisation of recycled paper as well as

- eliminating the use of paper media wherever possible with

3 number of our trading divisions having already moved
from paper to digital marketing and d|g|t|sed invoice and
purchase order generation.

A significant reduction in our paper usage has come from
transferring many of our training materials and logistical
processes onto digital tablets. The Group has recently
invested in an online training portal which will facilitate the
changes we require. These activities have already provided
an annual reduction of three million printed pages, equal to
13 tonnes of paper.

Our Annual Report and Accounts are principally offered in
electronic format. Where print format is requested the
documents are printed on 100 per cent recycled materials.

Allied to the focus on paper, we are reviewing our -

integrated printer hardware and within our largest division
have upgraded to the latest inkjet printer technology which
has reduced energy usage by more than 80%.

wv
~—
=
o
—_
]
=)
=
b
<3
©
o
=
=3

| JULUIBA0H

SIUBLAIRIS |enueUld

uonewIo)u| Japjoyaieys

Vp pic Annuai Report and Accounts 2021 vpplc.com

17




| RéSponsﬁbﬂe Business Report

SUPPLY CHAIN AND RENTAL FLEET
Vp aims to source all of its equipment responsibly and is
committed to reduce the embedded emissions in equipment
by working with manufacturers, suppliers and customers to
drive innovation. The Group has begun the process of
auditing the supplier network and it is our goal to work with
those whose environmental objectives best align with our
own and to encourage improvements in those who fall short.

We are developing procurement quidelines and performance
standards for branch upgrades "using the best-in-class
innovations to implement our efficiency requirements.

We work closely with our supply chain to provide the best
performing rental fleet possible to the customer and those
considerations have developed substantially to include
environmental and sustainability elements.

We maintain our long-term focus on innovation working
with both our suppliers and customers to expand and

improve our offering. Concurrently, we actively raise the '

awareness of, and encourage, our customers to utilise
products that are less impactful to the environment and
user. As a Group, we continually seek to reduce the number
of fossil fuel powered products that we operate in our fleet
through harnessing alternative solutions using innovative
technologies. There are many examples of equipment
across the Group which display more sustainable
characteristics than traditional models.

Working closely with our key suppliers and our larger

customers, we are developing a decarbonisation strategy that

will reduce emissions from the small plant and tools in our

rental fleet in four distinct ways:

® Using battery technology to replace small diesel and petrol
generators : .

* Supplying battery charging stations powered by solar and

" hybrid generator technologies

® Replacing corded and petrol tools with cordless equipment
wherever possible

® Using mechanical fleet with no internal power source
where possible

Whilst there is 3 répidly widening range of products with
better environmental credentials, we highlight the following
as some examples of the latest hire fleet developments.

Reducing Energy Consumption
Battery and Solar - Our range of ‘zero emissions at point of
use’ assets continues to grow. These include the 19C-1E Mini
Excavator, 525-60E 6-metre Telehandler, HTDS E-TEC Dumpster
from JCB and Tufftruk’s 450 Bendie.

We are also pleased to offer solar panelled fencing that allows
our customers to generate and store their own renewable
energy. The latest addition is a battery powered cold pressure
washer which is 70% more efficient than its fossil fuel
predecessor. : '

1 &5 Examples of battery operated equipment
: 2, 3 & 4 Battery powered tools

6 Brandon Hire Station ChargePod

: 7 Electric 6 metre telehandler

8 Low level access machines that consume no energy

9 Example of our greener product range including cleaner lighting solutions
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The Group has invested heavily away from fossil fuel power -
tools with around 65% of our powered small plant and tool .

assets now battery powered.

The demand for cordless electric tools has in turn created the
need for multiple charging points, so working closely with our
supply chain, the ChargePod has been developed to deliver 24
_battery charging points in 3 single, secure container, powered
by a hybrid generator with industry leading solar panels. In
addition to the ChargePod, we supply 24 and 60 kWh battery
packs which are offered with solar panels for renewable
power generation.

Lighting efficiency - The majority of our lighting towers use °

LED technology which draw- far less power and require a

much smaller engine to operate them. Compared to older.
models, they- consume approximately a quarter of the fuel

fuel usage, emissions and. operating costs are 70% lower.
- Over the next few months, 100% of our lighting tower fleet
will be LED. We also offer solar powered lighting solutlons to
the rail sector.

Non enetgy-consuming"solutions - We currently operate

close to 5,000 mechanical low-level access -platforms, the-

majority of which are zero emission and powered by the
“user and therefore have zefo emissions on use.

CONSERVATION PROJECTS
Our economies, livelihoods and well-being all depend on
- our most precious asset: nature. Source: The-Economics of
Biodiversity: The Dasgupta Review, 2021 ' ‘

In parallel with aiming to maximise our long-term emission
reductions, we recognise the intrinsic value- of a well-
managed, furictioning biosphere.. We also acknowledge the
priceless utility nature has in providing the many and varied
ecosystem services humanity depends on such as emission
capture and storage, food provision and flood mitigation. To
date, the UK has failed to reverse the steep loss of biodiversity

- with 41% of UK species in decline and one in 10 species
threatened with extinction.

To this end, the Group has recently made an initial investment.
in conservation projects. We are supporting projects with the

Yorkshire Peat Partnership and Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust. |

Respectively, the projects aim to discover effective methods to
restore degraded peatlands and demonstrate well managed
soils and wetlands as crucial carbon sinks and harbours of
biodiversity. ' '

Through these projects, we hope 10 enhance the connection

"Vp employees and families have to the natural world by

providing first hand restoration and learning experiences.

FUTURE COMMITMENT
The Group is setting ambitious yet achievable targets. Over
the next 18 months we shall achieve IS0 standard 50001
which ‘will refine and define each Divisions energy
management policy. We will maintain an active and real focus
on our sustainability performance and impact as a Group. -

We aim to influence the awareness of our. employees so that -

“the environmental impact of our actions is considered in.

everything we do. We shall continue to adopt industry-leading
practices across the Group to minimise our greenhouse gas
emissions and other negative environmental impacts. We are
currently working towards being compliant with ESOS Phase

3 and future initiatives -will be identified as we progress

towards compliance with 150 50001.

to maximise the opportunity presented by the newly emerged

B digital communication platforms which will significantly

reduce travel and the associated impact on the environment.

" Our commitment to the environment is defined by this
sustainability- strategy, and this strategy. will- evolve over -

time. We see the above initiatives and actions as

Tepresenting the start of a long tefm- commitment to

continually challenge the impact of the Vp group activities,
direct or indirect, on the environment. - :

The environmental criteria on which the Group is measured
seek to quantify our effectiveness as a steward of nature. As
articulated in our business objective, we look to take a long

‘term view as we develop the Vp Group.

Our approach to sustamablhty is no different’ and hts wellinto

that objective.

“In light of the lessons learnt from'the pandemic we are seeking

Vp plc Annual Report and Accounts 2021 vpplo.c:om .

19

wv
=2
=
o
=S
o
Qe
~
o
o
©
]
2
=3

DURUJIA0D

v
=7
ar
Q
™
=7
=2,
a
]
1




Responsible Business Report

OUR PEOPLE
Covid-19

During the Covnd19 pandemic, the ‘health, safety and .
wellbeing of our employees has continued to be our

utmost priority and we have been extremely proud of .our
employees’ response whilst working in - different
environments and challenging circumstances. We continue

" to review and respond to the global Covid-19 situation and -

the health, safety and wellbéing of our employees
" continues to be our key priority.

Wellbeing

The wellbeing of our people is of pnme importance and we

are therefore committed to addressing Mental Health
Awareness through' development programmes. We have
previously introduced a Mental Health Awareness course for
all line managers and we are now evolving a programme to
create awareness for, all of our people across the Group. This
will include the development of internal Mental Health First
Aiders as Ambassadors. Added to our occupational health,
private medical and employee assistance programme

services we are continuing. to raise awareness of safety,

health and wellbeing to all employees.

Development

The development and retentlon of our people remains a key
focus for us. Similarly, attracting talented people to join us
supports our aims of exceeding our customers’ expectations

and enhancing shareholder ‘value. We are committed to -

-helping all of our people develop the necessary knowledge,
skills and behaviour to perform even better in their current
jobs, whilst creating exciting opportunities for them to fulfil
_ their potential. Investment in our new Learning N\anagement

System will enable Us to design rich learning experiences for -

" everyone. At the same time, we are encouraging all of our
people to-take responsibility for their own learning and
ensuring they have a personal development plan in place.
This will allow us to develop the operational capabilities of
our team and enhance the- management and leadership
skills across the Group.

To enrich the learning experiences for our people, we are

evolving our portfolio to complement face to face and
virtual sessions with engaging digital learning solutions.
" Our learning and development agenda starts with the on-
boarding-and the welcome we give to our people. This
includes a detailed plan-for each individual ensuring they
can carry out their role safely and effectively. In addition,

we offer technical, behavioural, management and -

’
.

" leadership developmenf relevant for each individual

learner. This will further enhance our capability to handle
change and the challenges of the future.

We recognise the need toattract our future engineers and
have always considered apprenticeships a great way to
source this since our earliest years. Currently, we have 28
engineering apprentices across the Group. Fighteen of
these are completing their second year, with another 10

~ finishing their apprenticeship this year. These apprentices

will work towards the new Level 3 Land Based Engineering
standards, allowing us to tailor the scheme for our specific
business needs. Alongside this we are currently
considering other apprenticeship opportunities for sales
and customer service roles. Our belief in_apprenticeships
will see us explore even more possibilities in the future.

We also successfully facilitate a Group - Graduate
programme. This is an eighteen-month comprehensive
programme, where our graduates work across. all of our
functions and as many of our businesses as possible. We

‘have successfully placed all of our previous people into
- management roles, and will hope to do likewise with our
- four new graduates who start with us in September.

Inclusion and Diversity

Our“people are what makes our business successful and

we aim to provide a welcoming environment where they
feel valued and able to have a successful career. with us.
We believe in equality, diversity and inclusion and
recognise that it is critical to our continued future growth.-
We continue to be an inclusive employer committed to
ensuring that we engage with our current and future
employees and are fully supportive of them regardless of
age, gender, ethnicity or disability. We recognise. that a
diverse workforce helps to promote innovation and
business success. The Group is an equal opportunity
employer committed to providing the same level of
opportunity to all. Women are represented at all levels of

-our organisation, 20% of the Board and 15% of senior

managers are female.

"Workforce by gender Male Female Female %[

Board of directors 4 1 .20
Senior management 68 12 15
All employees 2055 359 15
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| Responsible Business Report

Retention

Retaining talented people is vital to our continued success.
We aim to build and maintain excellent relationships with
.our employees. We take our duty of care to our employees
seriously; we encourage them to achieve an appropriate
- work life balance and we provide access to confidential
advice and support on personal issues such as health and
financial problems. '

Employee share "ownership is encouraged and where
practical the Group offers the opportunity to participate in
share schemes. At 31 March 2021, approximately 41%
~ (2020: 39%) of our UK employees were participating in the
Save As You Earn Scheme. '

A major factor in our success in delivering operational

excellence and outstanding customer service is the .
continuity provided by long service which is récognised -

and celebrated throughout the business. As a Group, over

48% of our emiployees have in excess of five years” service.
“and 30% have more than ten years’ service. We aim to’

keep employee turnover as low as passible. Our employee
turnover was 23% in the year (2020: 26%).

We operate comprehensive training modules at all levels

of employment throughout the Group. These commence.

with detailed induction training and then advance to cover
the technical skills required. to carry out each -role
effectively and safely. Management development
programmes are run for all ‘
management roles and we actively encourage and
sponsor individuals to develop themselves through further
education programmes. The Group now also offers a
leadership development programme, which aims to
further enhance the capability of the business to handle
change and the challenges .of the future. We are
committed to providing a safe and secure working

environment, and to promoting the health, safety and well

being of all our employees. We provide a range of support
including an employee care help line, discounted policies
. for a health care provider and access to- an employee
healthy lifestyle assistance programme. We have also
introduced a one-day Adult Mental Health Awareness
programme for all our Branch, Depot and Line Managers
which has been extremely well received.

HEALTH & SAFETY - D -
Excellent health and safety performance is fundamental to
our business. It is essential that we provide a safe working
environment for our employees and that the equipment we
supply to our customers is safe and fit for purpose.”

individuals new . to

We strive to minimise accidents and dangerous.occurrences.
We aim to continually improve standards of health and safety
within all our businesses and with our customers. The Group

sets an overall policy for the management of health and -

. safety. The Chief Executive retains oversight in this area aqd

discusses performance on a regular basis with the individual
businesses. He also reports to the Board on overall
performance and any more serious incidents that arise.

Operational responsibility lies within the Group’s. individual

* businesses which are closest to and best positioned to

manage their .risks. All businesses, however, have clear
policies and procedures and appropriate risk assessment
techniques backed by training and clear communication.

Training is focused not only on specific hazards but also the
wider obligations of management. These activities are

~ overseen by appropriately' qualified and experienced

health and safety advisers and are subject to reqular audit,
both internally and externally.

As noted above Health and Safety performance “is
monitored at a business level. This incorporates analysis of
accidents, near misses and dangerous occurrences. Where

accidents, near misses or .dangerous occurrences happen -

these are investigated in. order for them to be fully
understood and for approprlate action to be taken to
minimise the risk of occurrence.

" We ended the year with an Accident Frequéncy Raté of
0.29, a slight increase on our 2020 rate of 0.27.

The AFR is calculated.by multiplying the number of RIDDOR
reportable accidents by 100,000 (the average number of
hours worked in a lifetime), divided by the overall number
of hours worked. by all members of staff. Reportable
accidents under the Reporting of . Injuries Disease and
Dangerous Occurrences regulatlons 1995 were 17, in. line
with prior year (2020: 17).

2020 2019 !

‘ 2021
Accident frequency rate  0.29 027 - .0.19

COMMUNITY H

" We aim to have a positive impact on communities in which

we operate. We actively encourage our teams to support
their communities by providing their time and enthusiasm
to raise money for local and national charities. In most
cases the monies raised by employees are matched by the
Group. During the year we donated £41,000 (2020:
£50 000) to charities. -
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Resypon_sible Business Report - -~

BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS AND ETHICS

The Group has always conducted its business responsibly
and ethically. The Group is committed to operating with
~honesty and integrity, and all employees are expected to
maintain high standards. The standards expected are
specified in codes of conduct to which employees are

required to adhere, including compliance with all applicable -

laws and regulatiens.

Policies
Anti-bribery policy

The Group has in place an anti- 'bnbery pollcy, Wthh clearly

states a number of obligations for our employees, and is

committed to zero. - tolerance to acts of bnbery and -

corruption.

Competition law policy '

We believe that a competitive marketplace benefits both
the Group and our customers. Accordingly, we .compete
vigorously but fairly, acting in full compliance with all
applicable Competition Laws and Regulations. We are
committed to conducting our business ‘with honesty and
integrity, and we expect the same of all employees.

‘Modern slavery statement
We support the objectives of the Modern Slavery Act and
will not tolerate modern slavery or human trafficking within

NON- FINAN(IAL INFORMATION STATEMENT

our own supply chain. During the year the Group conducted
a further review of its supply chaln and published its

“statement accordingly.

Environmental policy

A new environmental policy was developed at the
beginning of 2021 and outlines that we recognise that a
changing climate requires that society and business work
together to adapt.

Whistleblowing policy :

Our whistleblowing policy ensures our employees feel

empowered to raise concerns relating to malpractice or

wrongdoing through a confidential hotline. We have no -
incidents of whistleblowing.” Where incidents of -
whistleblowing are reported, there is a process for bringing

this to the Board’s attention to seek gmdance on how to

_respond.

Respect for human rights ‘

We do not maintain a standalone human rights policy. The
Group supports and is guided by the Universal Declaration of
Human Rights. The Group understands its responsibility to
respect the human rights of the communities and
workforces with whom it interacts, and employees are
expected to behave accordingly.

Our Annual Report and Accounts details our approach to environmental, social and employee related matters. The table below
outlines where in this report you can find this information and where additional information can be found on our website.

" Reporting requirement

Business model, principal risks and
non-financial KPis

Standards and policies that govern our approach

For the business model, see p.1
For principal risks, see p.28
For non-financial KPIs see, p.1, 16, 17, 21. .

-Environmental matters

Environmental policy, see p.15
Sustainability, see p.15
Corporate responsibility, see p.15

Employees

Diversity-and inclusion policy, see p.20
Health safety and wellbeing policy, see p.20
Whistleblowing policy, see above
.. Recruitment and retention of staff, see p.28 (Risk section) and p.21
Employee handbook

Human rights

Modern slavery statement, see above
Corporate responsibility, see p.15

Social matters

Sustainability, see p.15
Corporate responsibility, see p.15
Diversity and inclusion policy, see p.20

Anti-fraud, bribery and corruption

Anti-bribery policy, see above
Competition Law policy, see above
Whistleblowing policy, see above
Employee handbook -
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‘Financial Review |
The Covid-19 pandemic had a significant

impact on financial performance in the year.

Group revenues decreased to £308.0 milli
(2020: £362.9 million). Profit before tax,

amortisation and exceptional items (PBTA
fell to £23.3 million (2020: £47.1 million)

* with PBTAE margins at 7.6% (2020: 13%).

Statutory (loss)/profit before tax was (£2.
million (2020: £28.4 million) after excepti
items of £15.1 million and £7.1 million of

on

)

3)
onal

Group Finance Director: Allison Bainbridge

goodwill impairment. The return on average:
capltal employed was 9. 2% (2020: 14. 5%)

: EARNINGS PER SHARE DIVIDEND AND SHARES

Basic earnings per share before the amortisation of
intangibles, exceptional items and IFRS 16 impact
decreased from '91.0 pence to 46.8 pence. Basic
earnings/(loss) per share after -the amortisation of.
intangibles and exceptional items reduced to (11.6)
pence (2020: 46.9 pence). :

Exceptional items -of £15.1 million (2020:. £1.5 million)
comprised regulatory review costs, and Covid-19 driven
reéstructuring costs across the Group.

In January 2021 a special dividend of 22.00 pence per
share was paid in lieu of the final dividend for the year

- ended 31 March 2020 resulting in a full year dividend of
30.5 pence for 2020. For this financial year no interim
dividend was paid and a final dividend of 25.0 pence for
the year ended 31 March 2021 has been proposed by the
directors. If approved the full year dividend would be
reduced by 5.5 pence (18%) with d|V|dend cover of 1.9
times (2020: 3. 0 times).

The application of IFRS16 reduces PBTAE by £97,000.

BALANCE SHEET

Net assets decreased. by £16.8 million to £153.1 million.
The Group’s balance sheet is summarised. above.

Total property, plant and equipment decreased by £13.9
million to £233.9 million. The movement in the year
mainly comprised; £44.2 million (2020: £56.3 million) -
total capital expenditure offset by £45.0 million total
“depreciation and. £13.3 million net book value of
disposals, the balance being foreign exchange movement.

Rental equipment at £206.0 million (2020: £218.1 million)
accounts for 88% of property, plant and equipment net -
“book value. Expenditure on equipment for hire was £40.2
million (2020: £49.1 million) and depreciation of rental

- equipment £39.8 million (2020: £40.5 million).

JAsTat] JAsTat]
131]March 131 March]
2021 2020)
£;million] (E1million]
Hire fleet 206.0 218.1
Other fixed assets 27.9 297
Intanglble/goodwdl 64.4 74.3
VWOI'I(II'IQ capital - (11.5) 191
Pension asset 2.2 30
IFRS 16, net . (3.6) (33)
Deferred tax liability  (10.4) - (M2),
Net debt - . (121.9) - (159.8)
Net assets 15340 169.9

The Group carried forward £20.6 million (2020: £23.7

million) of intangible assets and £43.8 million (2020:
£50.6 million) of goodwill at 31 March 2021. The £9.9
million movement in the year mainly reflects £3.3 million
of amortisation and £7.1 million of goodwill impairment.
The goodwill impairment mainly relates to the historic
acquisitions of Hire Station. Taking into account current and
budgeted financial performance the Board remains

satisfied with the carrying value of the remaining assets.

Debtor days decreased to 56 days compared to 62 days in
the previous year. Gross trade debtors were £68.5 million
at 31 March 2021 (2020: £76.5 million). Bad debt and
credit note provisions totalled £7.2 million (2020: £4.3

million) equivalent to 10% (2020: 6%) of gross debtors. .

The bad debt write off for the year ended 31 March 2021
as a percentage of total revenue was 0.6% (2020: 0.8%).
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Financial Review

. The Group’s defined benefit pension schemes have 3

surplus of £2.2 million (2020: £3.0 million) which is
recorded as an asset on the balance sheet on the basis
the Company has an unconditional right to a refund of
the surplus. The valuation of the pension schemes is
subject Lo uncertainty associated with the assumptions
used. This is covered in more detail in notes 1 and 25.

CASH FLOWS AND NET DEBT

The Group continues to generate strong cash flows and
net debt reduced by £37.9 million from £159.8 million
at 31.March 2020 to £121.9 million at 31 March 2021.
EBITDA before exceptional items totalled £72.7 million
(2020: £98.1 million). '

The Group’s cash flow is summarised below:

RS 15 it
EBITDA 127 98.1 °
Working capital 34.2 (14.9)
Profit on sale (4.3) (8.9)
Cash from operations 102.6 743
Exceptional items’ - (15.2) - (15)
Capital expenditure ' (46.5) (54.7)
proceeds from disposal 175 214
Acquisitions - (3.3)
Interest : 4.7) (4.5)
Tax : (2.9) (10.7).
Dividends (8.7) (12.1)
Other _ ' (4.2) (1.0)
Change in net debt 379 79

Cash generated from operations increased by £28.3
million to £102.6 million (2020: £74.3 million) mainly
due to a £34.2 million inflow of working capital of which
£18.2 million was a decrease in trade and other
receivables.

- After adjusting for an outflow for capital creditors of £2.4
million; cash flows in respect of capital expenditure were
£46.5 million. (2020: £54.7 million). Proceeds from
disposal of assets amounted to £17.5 million- (2020:
£21.4 million), producing a profit on disposal of £4.3
mllllon (2020: £8.9 m|II|on) The margin on profit on sale

from disposals of fleet. assets at 25% (2020: 42%)

.reflects effective asset management.

Net interest outflows, excluding IFRS 16 adjustments, for
the vear totalled £4.7 - million (2020:" £4.5 million).
Interest cover before amortisation was 6.66 times (2020:
10.58. times) and the gearing ratio of adjusted Net -
Debt/EBITDA was 1.62 (2020: 1.65); both are calculated
in accordance with our bank facility agreements and are
comfortably within our covenants of greater than 3 times
and lower than 2.5 times respectively. Net interest
expense including IFRS 16 was £7.8 million (2020: £8.8
million). Cash tax fell by £7.8 million due to the impact of
Covid-19 on profitability.

| Special dividend payments to shareholders in respect of

2020 totalled £8.7 million (2020: £12.1 millionY, and cash
investment in own shares on behalf of the Employee
Benefit Trust (EBT) during the year was £5.1 million
(2020: £2.4 million). The application of IFRS16 increases
EBITDA by £24.0 million.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its operations through a ¢combination
of sharéholders” funds, bank borrowings, finance leases
and. operating leases. The capital structure is monitored

_using the gearing ratio quoted above. The Group’s funding

requirements are largely driven by capital exbenditure.
and acquisition activity. '

As at 31 March 2021 the Group had £200.0 million (2020:
£200.0 million) comprising £135 million committed
revolving credit facilities and £65 million private
placement agreement. In addition to the committed
facilities the Group’s net overdraft facility at the year end
was £7.5 million (2020: £7.5 million). These facilities
were with Lloyds Bank plc, HSBC Bank plc and PGIM, Inc.
Borrowings under the Group's bank facilities are priced on

~ the basis of LIBOR plus a margin. The interest rate margin
- is linked to the net debt to EBITDA leverage of the Group.

The £135.0 million revolving credit facilities were due to
mature in December 2021. Consequently, in April 2021, the
Group drew down a new £28.0 million seven year private
placement under the existing agreement with PGIM inc. In
June 2021, the Group also refinanced its £135.0 million
revolving. credit facilities with a new £90.0 million facility.
The new revolving credit facility agreement also includes a
£20.0-million uncommitted accordion facility.
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Financial Review

The Board has evaluated the facilities and covenants on
the basis of the budget for 2021/22 (including the
2022/23 long term forecasts), which has been
prepared taking into account the current economic
climate, together with a severe but plausible downside
scenario.. All scenarios retain adequate headroom

against borrowmg facilities and fall W|th|n “existing -

covenants.

Refer to further discussion regarding going concern
within the Directors’” Report on page 54. -

TREASURY

The Group has exposure to movements in interest rates
on its borrowings, which is managed by maintaining a
mix of fixed and floating interest rates. At the year end
- the Group had seven interest rate swaps to hedge the
risk of exposure to changes in interest rates, these
swaps have fixed interest rates net of bank margin at
between 0.49% and 1.21% and are detailed in note 17

on page ‘92 of the accounts. In the year ended .

-31 March 2021, the fixed element of borrowings

including the private placement agreement was £109.5

million which was 84% of average net debt.

The Group is exposed to movements in exchange rates
for both foreign currency transactions and the translation
of net assets and income statements of foreign

subsidiaries. The Group regards its interests in overseas’

subsidiary companies as long term investments and

manages its translational exposures.through the currency.

matching of assets and liabilities where possible.

The matching is reviewed reqularly with appropriate

~risk mitigation performed, where necessary. The Group

has exposure to a number of foreign currencies. The

-Group had two foreign exchange hedges to reduce the
risk of rate fluctuations between US dollars and Sterling
in the year ended 31 March 2020. It-also has further
foreign exchange hedges between US dollars and
-+ Sterling covering the penod from 1 April 2020 to 30

June 2022.

TAXATION

The overall tax charge on profit before tax was £2.3
million (2020: £9.8 million), a negative effective rate of
(102.8)% (2020: 34.5%). The current year tax charge
on a statutory loss of £2.3 million was increased by
£1.6 million in respect of expenses not deductible for

‘tax purposes and £1.1 million in respect of impairment

of intangibles. The underlying tax rate was 21.3%
(2020: 20.3%) before prior- year - adjustments,
disallowable expenses and impairment of intangibles.
A more detailed reconciliation of factors affecting the
tax charge is shown in note 8 to the Financial
Statements.

~ SHARE PRICE

During the year the Company’s share price increased
by 27% from 642 pence to 814 pence, compared to a
72% increase in the FTSE smiall cap index excluding
investment trusts. The Company’s shares ranged in

price from 604 pence to 888 pence and averaged'»

720 pence during the year.

Allison Béinbridge '
Group Finance Director
. 8 June 2021
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Viability Statement

‘The directdrs have assessed the viability of the Group up to 31 March 2023.

. The directors have assessed the prospects of the Group in
accordance with provision 2.2 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2014 with reference to the Group's
current position, .its strategy, risk appetite and the potential
impact of the principal risks and how these are managed.
During the financial year the Group has continued to use
regular reporting of the lead rndicators relating to the
principal risks.

The assessment of the Groups prospects by the directors '
.. covers the two years to 31 March 2023 and is underpinned
- by management’s -2021 - 2023 business plan . which .

includes projections of the Group’s profit performance, cash
flow, investment plans and returns to shareholders.

Risk Management

The projections have been subjected to sensitivity analysis,
involving the flexing of key assumptions reflecting severe
but plausible downside scenarios. A range of scenarios
have been modelled to reflect changing circumstances
with respect to the principal risks facing the Group together
with the likely " effectiveness of mitigating actions that

~would be executed by the directors. These scenarios
- include consideration of market risk arising from the impact

of a downturn in economic activity, slower recovery from
Covid-19 and financial risk.

Based on this assessment the directcrs have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be .able to- continue in
operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the
two year assessment period

- The Board is responsible for determining the level and nature of risks it is appropriate to take in
delivering the Group’s objectives, and for creating the Group’s risk management framework. The
Board recognises that good risk management aids effective decision making and helps ensure
that risks taken on by the Group are adequately assessed and challenged. :

RISK ASSESSMENT

" The Group has an established risk management strategy in

place and regularly reviews divisional and departmental risk
- registers as well as the summary risk registers used at Board

level. A risk register.is prepared as part of the due diligence

carried out on acquisitions and the methodology -is
'subsequently-embedded.

All risk registers have a documented. action p_Ian to mitigate

.each risk identified. The progress made on the action plan is

- considered as part of the risk review process.- Within the last
financial year Group Internal Audit Department has

_ cornpleted key control reviews in all divisions.

The summary diVisional and departmental risk registers and
. action plans were reviewed at risk meetings held in May
2027. In all cases it is considefed that the.risk registers are
being used as working documents which provides the
required assurance that existing risks are-being managed
appropriately. Work is also underway on communicating risk
registers more effectively using our chosen visualisation
software. This will enhance accountability over key risk areas.

The risk registers are reviewed at the start (to facilitate the
planning process) and at the end of each internal” audit
project. A post audit risk rating is agreed with management.
If new risks are identified following an audit project they are.

added to the relevant risk register. Heat maps illustrating post . -
~ audit risk ratings and new Tisks are provided to the Board in

each published internal audit report.

Covid-19 has not been identified as a specific new risk, but
considered in relation to each area of risk it impacts. As such,
3 of the 8 principal risks disclosed in this report (Market,
Safety and Financial) have an increased risk status.

' The Executive Board.created a Covid-19 working party (Group A

CEO, .Group FD, Group HR-Director and senior Divisional

‘Managing Directors) to consider the risks facing-the Group

and individual divisions. This group has met reqularly
throughout the pandemic and continues to meet as. the
Group navigates through the reopening of the economy.

- Refer to further discussion regarding going concern within

the Directors’ Report on page 54.

Further information is provided on pages 28 and 29 on our

~principal " risks and uncertainties . section alongside - the

mitigating activities to address them. -

26

© vpplc.com Vp plr: Annual Report and Accounts 2021



~ Risk Management

Our risk reporting framework is set out below:

A Board
Group strategy and structure
Risk appetite and policies
Ensure appropriate controls
Monitor indicators of Group risks

e o o o o

Accountable to shareholders and key external stakeholders

Divisional Boards
» Determine appropriate controls
+ Review financial performance
« Ensure compliance.with directives and
governance principles set by the Board

Audit Committee
Monitor financial reporting integrity
Approve annual audit programme
Review and monitor internal audit work and
the statutory audit
Review internal control effectiveness

A systematic approach
and hierarchy to risk
management

Internal Audit
Risk-based programme of project work -
both assurance and consulting engagements
Production of KPI data on key risks
Maintain Group risk registers

The Group operates the following approach' to risk management:

| 1st Line of Defence

Functions that own and
manage the risk

2nd‘ Line of Defence

Functions that oversee risks,
e.g. Compliance

3rd Line of Defence
Internal audit
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PArincipaI Risks and Uncertainties

The dlrectors carry out.a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group and continue to '
review lead indicator reportlng on these risks. The principal risks in the current risk register are:

~

A}

RISK DESCRIPTION

MITIGATION

CHANGE
FROM 2020

Market risk

An economic downturn (as a result
of economic cycles, political or Brexit
related uncertainty) could result in.
worse than expected performance of
the business due to lower activity
levels or pricés.

Vp provides products and services to a diverse range of
markets with increasing geographic spread. The Group
regularly monitors economic conditions and our investment
in fleet can be flexed with market demand.

"The Covid-19 pandemic has impacted the business, some

Divisions being more affected than others dependmg on the
end market they serve.

o

Competition

The equipment rental market is

already competitive and could |
- become more so, impacting market

share, revenues and margins.

Vp aims to provide a first class service to its customers and
maintains significant market presence in a range of specialist
niche sectors. The Group monitors market share, market
conditions and competitor performance and has the financial
strength to maximise opportunities.

" Investment/Product Management
In order to grow it is essential the
Group obtains first class products at

. attractive prices and keeps them well

. maintained.

Vp has well established processes to manage its fleet from
investment decision to disposal. The Group’s return on average
eapital employed was 9.2% (2020: 14.5%) in 2021. The quality
of the Group’s fleet disposal margins dlso demonstrate robust
asset management and appropriate depreciation policies.
Immediate, action taken in response to Covid-19 was to defer
capital expenditure in many areas. Selective spending resulted
in fleet capital spend of £40.2 million (2020: £49.1 million).

People

Retaining and attracting the best .
people is key to our aim of
exceeding-customer expectations
and enhancing shareholder value.

Vp offers well structured reward and benefit packages; and
nurtures a positive working environment. We_also try to
ensure our people fulfil their potential to the benefit of both
the individual and the Group, by providing appropriate career

- advancement and training.

The Group utilised the Government's Job Retent|on Scheme
until October 2020: :

©

“Safety
The Group operates in industries
where safety is a key consideration
for both the wellbeing of our
employees and customers that hire
our equipment. Failure in this area
would impact our results and_
reputation.

~ - The Group has robust health and safety policies and management

systems. Our induction and training programmes reinforce these
policies. We have compllance teams in each division.

We provide support to our customers exercising their
responsibility to their own workforces when using our equipment.

The Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on our
employees, many of whom successfully transitioned to working
from home as required during the various lockdowns. Our [T
processes and prior planning facilitated this. In line with
Government quidance, we have commenced a phased transition
back into working at our various back office locations..

Our compliance teams have carefully considered safe methods of ,
- working in our depot network and with due consideration of how °

the business can safely interact with our customers.

o
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Principal Risks» and Uncertainties

RISK DESCRIPTION -

MITIGATION

CHANGE
FROM 2020 | -

Financial rrsks

To develop the business Vp must have ‘

access to funding at a reasonable cost.
~ The Group is also exposed to interest
_rate*and foreign exchange fluctuations
which may impact profitability and
has exposure to credit risk relating to
customers who hire our equipment.

The Group currently has borrowing facilities of £190.5 million and
strong relationships with all lenders. Our treasury policy defines the
level of risk that the Board deems acceptable. Vp continues to benefit
from a strong balance sheet, and EBITDA, which. allows us to invest into
opportunities.

~ Our strong balance sheet position and committed borrowing facilities

provided adequate headroom against the downturn in activity caused -
by the Covid-19 pandemic. Notwithstanding the impact of Covid-19, the
Group ended the finaricial year in a healthy financial position. The
Group continues to generate strong cash flows and net debt reduced

“by £37.9 million from £159.8 million at 31 March 2020.to £121.9

million at 31 March 2021. Management are in regular dialogue with -
our lenders who continue to express their commitment to the business.

Our treasury policy requires a significant proportion of debt to be at
fixed interest rates and we facilitate this through interest rate swaps
and fixed interest borrowrngs We have agreements in place to buy or
sell currencies to hedge adainst foreign exchange movements. We
have strong credit control practices and use credit insurance where it is
cost effective. Debtor days were 56 days (2020: 62 days) and bad
debts as a percentage of revenue remained low at 0:6% (2020: 0.8%}.

-

o

Contractual risk
Ensuring that the Group commits to
appropriate contractual terms is
essential; commitment to inappropriate
terms may expose the Group to

" financial and reputational damage.

The Group mainly engages in supply only contracts.

“The majority of the Group’s hire contracts are governed

by the hire industry standard terms and conditions. Vp -
has robust procedures for managing non standard
contractual obligations.

' Legal and Regulatory Requirements -

Failure to comply with legal or
regulatory obligations culminating in
financial penalty and/or reputatronal
damage. .

The Group mrtrgates thrs risk utilising:

« Specialist Project Committees (e.g. GOPR) with ongoing
responsibility to review key compliance areas and investigate
breaches and non-conformance.

* Assurance routines from Group Internal Audit and External
Auditors.

« Comprehensive training and awareness programmes rolled
out to wider business (including GDPR, Modern Slavery,
Competition Law, Bribery and Corruption) by representatives
from Group Finance, HR, Internal Audit and IT. Many of these
programmes are completed usrng our preferred online training

" portals.

* Established whistleblowing policy circulated to aII employees.
» Use of legal advisers where required.’

()

0 Decreased risk

0 Increased risk

Q No change

STRATEGIC REPOR'I’

Neil Stothard :

Chief Executive
8 June 2021

The strategic report has been signed on behalf of the Board by:
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he Board .

Jeremy Pilkingtdn BA (Hons)
Chairman

, 3
L. AL
Neil Stothard ma, Fca
Chief Executive

Allison Bainbridge ma, FcA
" Group Finance Director

Appointment 4
Appointed to the Board in 1979 and
became Chairman in 1981.

Experience .
Jeremy was Chairman and Chief
Executive between 1981 and 2004.

Committee membership
Chairman of the Nomination
Committee. :

- Steve Rogers Bsc, FCA, JP

Non-executive Director

Appointment

Appointed to the Board as Finance .
Director in 1997 and became Group
Managing Director in 2004 and
subsequently Chief Executive:

Experience

Neil previously held Finance Director
roles in the business travel
management and logistics sectors.
He is a non-executive director of
Wykeland Group Limited.

Committee membership
None

B
Phil White 8com, FCA, (BE
Non-executive Director

Appointment ' :

" Appointed to the Board as Finance

Director in March 2011.

Experience

Allison was previously Group Finance
Director of Kelda Group Limited, the
holding company of Yorkshire Water-
and also Finance Director of Yorkshire
Water. She is a non-executive director
of RPS Group Plc.

Committee membership
None '

Appointment )
Appointed to the Board in October
2008. )

Experience
Steve retired as a senior partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2007.

Committee membership
Chairman of the Audit Committee and

~ a member of the Remuneration and

Nomination Committees.

Appointment
Appointed to the Board in April 2013.

Experience

Phil is a chartered accountant and has.

extensive experience within both
listed and private companies. He is
Chairman of Lookers Plc..

Committee membership

_ Chairman of the Remuneration

Committee and member of the Audit
and Nomination Committees.
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Governance

' INTRODUCTION FROM THE CHAIRMAN
The Board

. the effectiveness of corporate governance.

The. values and ethical standards of the Group rest upon
principles of fairness, integrity and respect and the Board seek
~ to promote and exemplify these values in discharging their
responsibilities. These principles are both ethically based and
commercially essential to delivering our strategic and growth
objectives and to the long term success of the Company.

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 30 to
54 and includes the Directors. Remuneration Report on. pages
37 to 51. This section of the annual report covers how we
manage the Group and how we comply with the provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code. The Group continues

to maintain and review its systems, processes and policies to

support its governance practices.
The revised UK .Corporate Governance Code which was

published in July 2018 (the “Revised Code”) applies to the .

Group with effect from 1 April 2019.

The Board reports that throughout the year the Company )

complied with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance

Code as applicable to a small market capitalisation company--

- with the following exceptions - Steve Rogers has served as a

non-executive director for more than nine years, the impact
- of Covid-19 delayed his replacement and now he will remain

on the Board until we have completed the audit tender process.

Existing executive’ directors’. pension’ contributions are all

. moving to 15%. The Board recognises this is not in line with
provision 38 as it is not in line with the wider workforce. In

line with the Remuneration Policy approved last year, new

executive directors’ pension contributions will be 10%.

This report and thie foIIoWing reports of. the "Committees'
" describe the structures, processes and events through which
. compliance is achieved.

'CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Board structure '

The, Board comprised two executive: directors, two non-
executive directors and the Chairman. All directors are

<

is accountable to our shareholders. and - -
~ stakeholders.for the: Group’s activities and is responsible for:

subjéct to-annual re-election by shareholders. Accordingly, alf
the directors will retire at the AGM in July 2021 and their

details are provrded on page 30.

-The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive. are separate

andA clearly defined. The Chairman, Jeremy Pilkington, is
responsible for the effective working of the Board and leading

- the development of the strategic agenda for the Group.

The Chairman is also responsible for promoting a culture of
openriess and debate, in addition to ensuring constructive
and productive relations between executlve and- non-
executive directors.

The Chief Executive, Neil Stothard, has operational :
- responsibility for the management of the Group’s business and
forimplementation of the strategy as agreed by the Board.

The ‘role of-.the non-executive directors is to provide -
independent and considered advice to the Board in matters of

strategy, risk and performarice, whilst providing governance
oversight through operation of the Board's committees.

The Board is ‘satisfied that all non-executive directors'are

relationships that may affect Judgments

Each director is requrred-, in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006, to declare any interests that may
give rise to_a conflict of interest with the Company on
appointment and subsequently as they may arise. Where
such conflict, or potential conflict arises the Board is

-empowered under-the Company’s articles of association to

consider and authorise- such conflicts as appropriate and

" subject to such terms as they think fit.'No such .conflict

arose during the year.under review.

Any term of a non-executive director beyond nine years is

i reviewed. Steve Rdgers has served for longer than this.

Covid-19 delayed Steve Rogers' réplacement and now he will
remain on the Board until after the audit tender is complete.

Our senior independent_director, Steve Rogers, is available
to shareholders f they request 3 meeting or have concerns
which contact through normal channels has failed to

. resolve. No such requests were received during the year.

. Length of service of director gl Balance of directors Balance of directors

I 31 March 2021 | ' I . 31 March 2021 | [ 31 March 2021 l

One to two years R Gender Role - : - }
Two to three years - Male 4 " Executive Chairman 1
Four to six years 1 Female 1 Executives o 2

_ More than six years 4 ] Non executives 2

- independent and that there are no crrcumstances or -
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Governance

The Board is assisted by the Audit, Remuneration. and
Nomination Committees. Separate reports from the Audit
and Remuneration Committees can be found on pages 34
and 37. There were no Nomination Committee meetings
during the year. The Chair of-each Committee provides
reqular updates at Board meetings.

- Board meetings and operation

The Board's agenda seeks to achieve balance between

- review of performance, the development of strategy, the
~ adoptiori of appropriate corporate policies and the
~ ‘management of risk and requlatory. obligations.

““The Board has a clearly documented schedule of matters

- reserved for its approval including:

. Strategy,

o Group results and the Annual Report: and Accounts,

o Significant market announcements,

o Dividends and dividend policy

« Annual budgets and business plan,

o Major capital expendrture significant mvestments or
disposals

« Review of internal control and nsk management .

) Treasury policy. '

. In certain areas, specific responsrbrlrty is delegated to
~ committees of the Board within defined terms of reference.

Matters falling outside of the Board's: reserved list .are’

delegated to-the Group executive under the direction of the
Chief Executive; responsibilities are delegated further to the
Group’s business segments and in turn ‘within each business.

A system of delegated authorities whereby the incurring of

expenditure and assumption of contractual commitments -

can only be approved by specified individuals and within
predefined limits is in place throughout the Group.

Detailed papers “are made available in advance of
meetings in support of relevant agenda items. The
‘Company Secretary assists-the Chairman in ensuring that
Board procedures are followed and is available to assist
directors generally as well as advrsrng on matters of
. corporate governance.

The Company Secretary, Allison Barnbndge is also the
Group Finance Director. The Board continues to keep the
Company Secretary role under review, but feels that the
“combination of the roles continues to work well for the
business as a whole

-| Neil Stothard 6 - - ' -

| Steve Rogers 6 3. .2 -

The Board had six scheduled meetings during the year, but

also met on -other ‘occasions as required by specific

~ activities.

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination

Numb
@3 2 0

Executive directors

Jeremy Pilkington 6 - - -

Allison Bainbridge 6

Non-executive directors

Phil white 6 3 2 . -

Whilst Jeremy Pilkington, Neil Stothard and Allison
Bainbridge are not members of the Audit Committee, they -
did attend all meetings; they also attended, in part, certain
of the Remuneration. Committee meetings. There were no
Nomrnatron Committee meetings. '

During the year the non-executive directors met with the
Chairman without the executive directors present and the

_non-executives met without the Chairman present.

The Board is satisfied that the Chairman and each of the

non-executive directors committed sufficient time during:

the.year to enable them to fulfill their duties as directors -

of the company.

Aopointments to the Board

The Nominations Committee is chaired oy the Company’s
Chairman, Jeremy Pilkingten, with the two non- executrve_
directors also on the Committee. '

The Nomination Committee ‘meets as required to ensure
that appointments to Board roles within the Group are
made after due -consideration of the relevant and
necessary skills, knowledge and experience of the
potential candidates. - :

In. addition it considers succession planning in order to-
ensure -the continued ability of the Group to compete
effectively in the market place. The Group’s policy on
diversity is set out on page 20 in the Strategic Report.
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Governance

Training and mductlon

- All new directors receive 3 full, formal and tailored induction
on joining the Board, including meetings with senior
management and advisers and visits to the Group's
operational Iocatrons

During the year the Chairman and non- executrve directors
met with and received presentations from.members of the
Group’s senior management and engaged with the Group’s
businesses maore generally.

Advice is available from the Company’s solicitors, auditors
and brokers if required. There is an.agreed procedure for
directors to take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense. Updates are provided on key technical-
issues as required mcludrng those relating to corporate
governance. ‘

Performance evaluatlon

The Board undertakes an annual appraisal of its performance
During 2021 an internal evaluation of Board performance was
undertaken, whereby the Company’s directors were asked to

SECTION 172 AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

) ~
rate various areas of board and committee activity and to
raise any areas of concern and suggestions. No areas of

. material concern were highlighted during this year’s review.

Annual Review

The Board retains overall responsibility for setting the Group’s
risk appetite as well as risk management and internal control
systems.

A detailed report regardlng the Group’s systems of risk
management and internal controls was prepared. Having
reviewed and discussed this report the Board was satisfied
that these systems are effective. The principal risks to which
the Group is exposed and the measures to mitigate such risks
are described on pages 2810 29.

The respective responsibilities of the directors and the
independent auditors in connection with the accounts are
explained on pages 55 to 62 and the statement of the
directors'in respect of going concern appears on page 54. The
long term viability statement is set out on page 26.

4

The requirements of Section 172 and how they have been met are set out in the table below. Directors of the Company -
actin a way he or she considers, in good faith, would be mast likely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit

of its members as 3 whole and in doing so have regard to:

'| $172 REQUIREMENTS

ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE BOARD

the likely consequences
of any decisions in the
long term

financial plan

~ Refinance of maturing RCF

Annual process to determine current and medium term prrontres and set two year

Covid-19 impact - cost and cash management and approprrate use of Government support

the interests of.the }
Company's employees

Health, safety and wellbeing of employees a prrorrty _ S ‘
Preserved jobs during global pandemic

Refer to pages 20 and 21 of Responsible Business Report
Neil Stothard CEO is the director with designated responsibility for workforce engagement

the need to foster the
Company’s business

~ relationships with suppliers,
customers and others -

Refer to Business Review pages 9 to 14

~“the impact of the Company’s
*, operations on the community
and environment

The Board receives monthly updates on health, safety and wellbeing of our employees
.Group activities aligned to targeted UN sustainability goals pages 15 to 19 and page 21

the desirability of the
Company for maintaining a
reputation of high standards
of business conduct

Please see Responsible Business Report page 22

the need to act fairly as
between members of the
. Company
- of investors’ priorities
Regular trading updates

Presentations to new investors

" Annual Report available on line and sent to shareholders on request
AGM open to all investors and questions to the Board welcomed :
Receiving reports from sector analysts to ensure that the Board maintains and understandrng

Half year and full year results presentations and investor meetrngs
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| Audit Committee Report

STATEMENT FROM STEVE ROGERS, CHAIRMAN OF |
THE AUDIT COMMITIEE

I am pleased to present our Audit Committee report for the
year ended 31 March 2021. The report below describes the
- Committee’s ongoing responsibilities as well as the major
activities undertaken in what has been an unprecedented year
in which the Group has had to address the challenges
~ presented by the global pandemic.

~ MAIN RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an independent overview of the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process and internal
financial control systems including;

e Reviewing the financial statements and announcements
relating to the financial performance of the Group, including
reporting to the Board on the significant issues considered
by the Committee in relation to the financial statements and
how these were addressed,

o Advising the Board in relation to-whether the Annual RepOrt
~ complies with the Code prrncrple to be ‘fair, balanced and
- understandable’, :

‘o Assessing the scope and results of the annual audit and
reporting to the Board on the effectiveness of the audit-
process and how the independence and objectivity of the
auditors has been safe-guarded,

e Determining matters associated with the apporntment
terms and remuneration of the external auditors,

e Evaluating the scope, remit and effectiveness of the rnternal
audit function and the Group’s mternal control and risk
management systems,

e Reviewing significant legal and requlatory matters and

e Reporting to the Board on how the Committee has
discharged.its responsibilities.

MEMBERSHIP AND MEETINGS o

The Committee met three times during the year and has a
programme of business reflecting. the Committee’s
“.responsibilities and Terms of Reference. ‘

The effectiveness of the Committee in fulfrllrng its remit was

considered by the-Board as part of.the most recent evaluatron
of performance

Phil White-and | are members of the Commrttee The foIIowrng
other attendees regularly attend meetings; the Chairman and
executive directors, Head of Internal Audit, Group Financial
_ Controller and representatives from the external auditors, PwC.
I also meet separately with the external auditors and the Head
of Internal Audit twice 3 year without management being
present. :

The Committee is authorised to seek outside IegaI or other
independent advice as it sees fit, but has not done so dunng
the year.

Steve Rogers

" The qualifications of the Committee members are outlined in

the directors’ biographies on page 30. The members of the

* Committee are- all independent_non-executive directors. The

Board is satisfied that the Committee as a whole has
competence relevant to.the sectors in which the Group .
operates.and have recent and relevant financial experience as
required by the Code. | am a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of England and Wales and was prevrously a-senior
partner at Prrcewaterhouse(oopers

ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN.DURING THE YEAR

The following activities were undertaken in the -year, some of
which are described in more detail below; - :

e Reviewed PWC's proposed audit strategy and plan for the o

2020/21 audit, including the level of materiality applied by
- PwCand the areas of ‘particular audit focus,

o Agreed Pw(’s engagement letter and- negotiated the
statutory audit fee for the year ended 31 March 2021,

e Confirmed:the independence of the auditors and assessed
the effectrveness of the 2020/21 external audit,

e Discussed the final audit report from PwC on the financial
* statements as well as PwC’s report following therr interim-
review, . ‘

o Reviewed and discussed reports on the frnancral statements
and considered management’s significant accountrng
judgements and policies being applied,

“» Reviewed the basis of preparation of the financial

statements as a going concern and the long term viability.
- statement, prior to making a recommendation. to the Board,

o Assessed the 2020/21 Annual Report and recommended to
the Board that it was ‘fair, balanced and understandable’,

e Approved the internal audit plan and reviewed reports on

the work of’ the |nternal audit function from the Head of
|nterna| Audit,

e Considered. the findings of the rnternal audit reports and
satisfied ourselves that management has resolved or is in
. the process of resolving any outstanding issues or concerns,
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Audit Committee Report

o'Approved the internal audit plan for 2021/22,

e Reviewed .the effectiveness of the risk managernent and
internal control systems prior to makrng a recommendatron
to the Board, : : :

e Reviewed the conclusion of the Commrttees annual
evaluation.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ISSUES

It was a challengrng year given the global pandemrc As a

“result the Group scrutinised the going concern assumption at
half year and full year and more detail on this is set out on our
going concern statement on page 54. In respect of the year
under review and as part of its role in reviewing estimates and
judgements made by management, the following srgnrfrcant
issues were reviewed and addressed

Existence and valuatioh of rental equipment

The Group holds a significant quantum and carrying amount of
rental equipment in the normal course of its business..
Management carry out fleet checks at interim and year end
periods to confirm the existence of the rental fleet. There is
management judgement involved in estimating the useful
- economic lives, residual values and any impairment of rental
_ assets. Management annually. review the appropriateness of
useful lives and residual values assigned to rental equipment.

Intangible assets

This classification of assets receives consideration from the
Board and Committee who need to be satisfied that its
carrying ‘value is appropriate. Goodwill impairment testing is
carried out at each year end. ' '

- The'Board and Committee considered the appropriateness of
the (GUs for goodwill testing along-with the assumptions-and
estimates used in the modelling. Following the yearend
review, the Board and the Committee-concluded that it was
appropriate to book impairment charges of £10.2 million.

Exceptional items -

A paper was presented to the Committee detarlrng the
exceptronal items in question and confirming that those items
are significant in quantum and expected to be non- recurring.
The Board and Committee are satisfied that it.is appropriately
to separately disclose those items.

FAIR BALANCED AND UNDERSTANDABLE VIEWS

Having reviewed the Report and Accounts, the Committee
concluded and advised the Board that in. its view the Report
and Accounts for 20271, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable. The Board then separately considered this
matter and concurred with the Audit Committee’s
~ recommendation. In reaching this conclusion the Committee

and the Board were satrsfled that the Group's performance
across its segments, as well as its business model, strategy

and the key risks that it faces are clearly explained in the

relevant sections of the Report and Accounts.

AUDITOR EFFECTIVENESS AND INbEPENDEN(E :

The Committee keeps the scope, cost and effectiveness of
the external audit under review. The Committee assessed
the effectiveness of the external audit process during the
year, based upon the Committee’s interactions with .the
external auditors and through feedback from the Group
Finance Team and Internal Audit. As a result the Committee
has satisfied itself that PwC have provided an effective audit
service to the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Committee ensures that the Group auditor remains
independent of the Group and reviews. this on an annual
basis, with PwC providing a written report to the Committee
showing its compliance with professional and requlatory
requirements designed to ensure their independence.

During the year PwC proposed a significant fee increase for . .

the year ended 31 March 2021 which has taken the fee
from.£260,000 to £510,000. This intrease is attributed to
external factors in the audit market, including regulatory
changes, resulting in an increase in the cost of delivery. After
discussions the Committee approved the proposed fee.

As part of its reéponsibility to ensure audit independence,
the Committee has adopted a policy in relation to the use

_ of auditors for the provision of non-audit services set out in

an appendix to the Committee’s terms of reference.

-In the year the only non-audit service provided by the

audifors was the half-year review and non-audit fees were
£21,400 representing 4% of the audit fee (2020: £13,000
representing 5% of the audit fee). Over a three year rolling

period, the level of non- audrt fee has averaged 3% of the
- audit fee.

Pw(C was appointed as the Group’s Auditor on October 2014

- following a comprehensive tender process, and presented

their first report to shareholders for the year ended 31
March 2015. PwC operate a policy requiring a change in
lead partner every five years, with other senior staff rotating
at regular intervals. The:Group’s audit partner lan Morrison
has just completed his fifth year as the lead audit partner.

The Group’s policy is that the audit appointment should be

retendered at least.every_ten years. Whilst-the Committee
“have been satisfied with PwC's work, during 2021 the

Committee invited PwC and other audit firms to tender for
the audit service for the year ended 31 March 2022 with
effect from October 2021.

‘The Committee recommended to the Board that 3

resolution to re-appoint PwC as auditor be proposed at the

Annual General Meeting.
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Audit Committee Report

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Audit Committee has responsibility for reviewing risk
management systems and the effectiveness of these systems.
The responsibilities and - processes in- respect of risk
'management are descnbed in detail on pages 26 and 27.

There is in place an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating
and managing significant risks faced by the Group. This process

is reqularly reviewed-by the Board. Risk management reports,
prepared by the operating divisions supported by Internal
Audit, were submitted to the Committee at its meeting in July
2020. The reports identified the significant risks to the Group,
highlighted controls that mitigate the risks and the resultant
post-mitigation risk. The. Committee also considered the
tolerance levels (risk appetite) that the Group. is prepared to
accept.

During the year the Committee monitored an_d'reviewed the
effectiveness of the Groups internal contfol systems,
accounting policies and practices, risk management procedures
and compliance controls.

The Group’s internal control systems are de5|gned to manage'

rather than eliminate business risk. They provide reasonable -

but not absolute assurance against material mis-statement or -
loss. Such systems are necessary to safequard shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets and depend on reqular
evaluation of the extent of the risks to which the Group is
exposed.

Management is responsible for establishing and mairitaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Group.

The Committee also reviews the Group's whistleblowing policy
whereby employees may, on a confidential basis,” raise:
concerns with regard to improprieties relating to financial

reporting, internal control or other matters. In the financial year -
there have been no whistleblowing reports which require

changes in the Group’s control environment.

The Committee is of the view that the Group. continues to
_ operate a well-designed system of internal contral.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group's internal audit function comprises a team of four
auditors. The purpose of the department is to support the
business in its achievement of objectives and facilitate and aid
effective risk management. Internal Audit provides assurance
that the Group’s process for managing internal control is
effective and appropriate to the level of risk facing the Group.

‘The annual internal audit plan is considered and approved each

year by the Committee. In reviewing the proposed plan the
Committee considers the Group’s strategic priorities, specific
initiatives which could impact the business and the Group’s risk
register. The Committee ‘assesses the appropriateness of the
internal plan and the resourcing of the function. to enable it to

-deliver it. Progress against the internal audlt plan is revnewed

at each meeting.
During the year the Chairman of the Committee met privately

- with the Head of Internal Audit on two occasions to discuss the

Internal Audit plan, completed projects, identified -issues and
resource levels. The Head of Internal Audit reports functionally
to the Group Finance Director. In addition'the Head of Internal
Audit attended each Committee meeting, where his reports
were reviewed and discussed in detail. The Committee
‘considered the results of the internal audits and the adequacy
of management’s response to  matters raised in them,
including the time ‘taken to resolve any such matters. The
Committee were satisfied with both the reports and the
responses. ' '

W

Steve Rogers

" Chairman of the Audit (ommmee

8 June 2021
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Remuneration
Committee Report
Annual Statement

Dear Shareholders

~0On behalf of the Remuneration Committee (the Committee)

| am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneration Report
for the year ended 31 March 2021. This report is in three
sections: my statement, a-summary of the Directors’
remuneration policy approved by the shareholders at the
2020 Annual General Meeting and our annual report on
remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2021.

BACKGROUND

As detailed in the Strategic Report, Covid-19 presented the

Board and the Vp senior management teams with a unique
_set of challenges during the year. In this context profitability
was materially lower than prior year but slightly ahead of
consensus expectations. Group revenues were down year on
year by 15%, with adjusted profit before tax. 50% lower.
Operational -highlights during the year included the securing
of a long-term’ preferred supply agreement with -Balfour
Beatty Rail, a successful first year of our new long-term
contract with Netwaork: Rail and a growth in online tool hire
rental at Brandon Hire Station, a signal of our continued
- innovation. The Committee remains optimistic as we move
into FY22, with early signs of recovery evidenced by a return

of revenues to 95% of pre-Covid levels despite some sectors

not yet being fully up to speed.

APPROVA‘. OF REMUNERATION POliCY
Following a _consultation process the Committee was

pleased to receive 87.25% support for the modifications -

made to our remuneration policy at the 2020 Annual
General Meeting. The changes largely focused on updates
for changes in investors ‘best practice” expectations arising
from the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code at the same
time providing the Committee with flexibility to compete
for, and retain, talent.

Changes to the policy included the introduction of a new
post-employment shareholding requirement and a 5-year
time horizon (vesting plus holding period) for the LTIP each
providing further alignment with shareholders. Pensions for
new executive directors were reduced to 10% of salary to
align more closely with all employees, whilst in respect of
existing directors, we committed to reduce pension
contributions to a new policy maximum of 15% of salary
from 1 April 2022. Finally, we took the opportunity to increase
the maximum annual bonus opportunity from 100% to 150%
of base salary (with effect from 1 April 2021), to recognise
that our total remuneration offering to executive directors
had fallen behind peers, but to do so in such a way that
reflects our pay-for-performance philosophy. '

Phil White

2020 REMUNERATION OUTCOMES

In approving remunération ‘outcomes for the year ended 31
March 2021, the Committee took into account the impact of
the pandemic on the experience of a range of Vp's
stakeholders and the actions taken by management in this

 regard.

The Committee considers that management responded
quickly to the challenges presented by the pandemic and
successfully implemented appropriate plans to protect the
health, safety and well-being of our employees whilst
ensuring that we could continue to serve our customers,
some of whom were deemed to be providers of essential
services. The Group participated in the UK Government’s job
retention scheme during H1, but saw a phased return of
employees such that by October 2020, none of the workforce
remained on furlough. There were, regrettably, a small

" number of redundancies . announced during the vear;
however, the Committee noted that these were not solely -
‘attributable to the pandemic and reflected a previously

planned streamlining of d|V|5|ona| operations.

From a shareholder perspectwe the Committee noted the

* strong recovery in Vp's share price over the year, with our

closing price on 31 March 2021 of 814p tracking broadly in

line with the average share price over the 2019/20 financial

year, prior to the pandemic. We announced in June 2020 the
deferral of the decision on a final dividend for 2019/20, with
an improved cash position allowing the payment of a special
dividend in lieu on 17 January 2021. No interim dividend has
been paid for the 2020/21 financial year, although

management and the Board continue to recognise the

importance of income to shareholders and has -outlined its
intention to maintain the Group’s- progressive dividend policy.

Overall, the Committee is comfortable that actions taken on
pay during the year across the Group (as outlined below)

_ were appropriate and balanced the interests of all

stakeholders.
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Remuneration
Committee Report
'Annual Statement

Base salary
Due to the -uncertainty created by the global pandermic,
executive and non-executive directors volunteered to accept
a 20% reduction in their salaries and fees between April and
June 2020. The Group’s senior' management also volunteered
to accept a 20% reduction in salarres for the same 3-month
period.

In line with the group-wide salary increase propased in the
annual April 2020 pay review, the Committee approved a
2% salary increase for Neil Stothard and Allison Bainbridge.
Due to the pandemic, and again in line with the rest of the
Group, this award was deferred until 1 October 2020.

Annual bonus

Targets for annual bonus payments are set by the Committee
at the beginning of the financial year and are based upon
growth in Group profit before tax, amortisation and
exceptional items (PBTAE). :

The targets are stretching and generally took for year-on-year
growth, with entry thresholds set in line with the Group’s
budget. PBTAE for the relevant financial year. The level of
challenge in the target setting process was highlighted in the
. financial year 2019/20 when adjusted profits of £47.1m

were- delivered but the threshold for any bonus payment -

was not achieved.

At the beginning of the 2020/21 financial year, in April 2020,

. the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic made it extremely
difficult to predict financial outcomes. At that time, base case
forecast PBTAE was £7.6m which was significantly below the
£47.1m achieved in 2019/20 (our highest ever) and the
budget for 2020/21.-Consequently, target setting for the
2020/21 annual bonus scheme was deferred to the half-
year. In September 2020, the Committee approved a PBTAE

target range of £17.0 million (threshold) to £23.0 million

(maximum), which was considered to be suitably stretching
and motivational based on latest available forecasts at-the
_ time. Recognising that achieving even the stretch target for
2020/21 would reflect a year-on-year decline in PBTAE, the
Committee resolved to reduce the maximum opportunity
available to executive directors from 100% of salary to 75%
of salary. Actual PBTAE achieved was £23. 3 million and a
bonus of 75% of salary was therefore earned by each
executive director under the scheme:

A simifar approach to target setting was taken in respect of
other Group and divisional participants to ensure fairness and
alignment.

Lmip

With- regards to our long-term incentive, the stretching -

_performance targets applying to the July 2018 award were
not met due to the impact of Covid-19 on EPS performance

in the year ended 31 March 2021. Reflecting the experience

of stakehblders, and recognising the smaller, more senior
employee population. covered by “this incentive, the
Committee agreed that there should be no adjustment to -

" the targets applying to the 2018 LTIP. Accordmgly, all of these

awards will lapse in July 2021.

In respect of other outstanding LTI'P cycles (performance

_ periods ending 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023), the

Committee will consider the appropriateness of adjusting the -

original target ranges (both upwards ‘and downwards) to
- ensure they remain as stretching as originally intended.

Alternatively, the Committee may elect to instead assess

* whether the use of discretion would be appropriate based
-on all relevant considerations at the time of vesting. Further

details of any such considerations will be included in the

* relevant annual report on remuneration in future years.

IMPLEMENTATION OF POLICY FOR 2021/22
Base salary

- Following a review of the executive directors’ base salaries,

the Committee approved an increase of 2% for Neil Stothard

~ and Allison Bainbridge with effect from 1 April 2021, in line

with the wider workforce.

Pensions B . v :
From 1 April 2021, Jeremy Pilkington’s pension contribution
will reduce from 25% to 20% of base salary and Neil -
Stothard's will reduce from 17.5% to 15% of base salary.

Annual bonus

In line with the new policy maximum from 1 April 2021, the
maximum borius opportunity will increase to 150% of base

salary. for all executive directors. Bonuses will be based on
challenging growth targets for profit before tax, amortisation
and exceptional items derived from the group’s budget, with

“the maximum payout target set at 3. level which
. appropriately reflects the increase in maximum opportunity

available. Details of.the target range and Vp’s performance
will be 'disclosed in next year’s report. -

me -

The maximum LTIP award in 2021 will remain at 100% of
salary for all exécutive directors. Consistent with past awards,
the extent to which any LTIP awards granted in 2021 will
vest will be dependent upon the achievement of challenging
EPS growth targets, underpinned by- Group ROACE. Noting
the preferences of some shareholders, the Committee
considered the prospective disclosure of the target range but

- has concluded that this is commercially sensitive information
which would put the Company at_a disadvantage. Full -

details will therefore continue to be disclosed retrospectively
in the report detailing the vesting of these awards.
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'Remuneration

Committee Report

“Annual Statement

EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS ELSEWHERE IN

THE GROUP

. In setting the remuneration policy for Directors, the pay and'

conditions of other employees of Vp plc were taken into
account, including any base salary increases awarded. The

. Remuneration Committee has not expressly sought the

views of employees and no remuneration comparison
measurements were used when drawing up the policy.

Through the Board, however, the Remuneration Committee .
is updated as to employee views on réemuneration -

generally.

‘ RESPON'SIBILITIES‘ AND ACTIVITIES
The Committee held meetings in the year timed to ensure

the proper discharge of the activities described below. The

" Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive both attend .

these meetings, although they are not present when their

“own remuneration is discussed.

The Remuneration Committee is - responsible for

-determining the overall policy for Executive remuneration

which is then subject to Board and shareholder approval.
within the context of the shareholder-approved.policy, the

~ Committee is then responsible for determiriing the specific .

remuneration packages for the executive directors. This

incorporates review of salaries as well as determining

opportunities under - incentive plans and performance
conditions relating to those plans. Activities also include the
determination of terms for any executive leaving or joining
the Board. -

SUPPORT TO THE COMMITTEE

During the year, the Committee sought external professional
advice in respect of the annual remuneration report. The

‘Committee is satisfied that the advice provided is

independent and objective.

CONSIDERATION OF SHAREHOLDER VIEWS
The Remuneration Committee takes the .views of the

_shareholders very seriously and these have been'influential -

in shaping remuneration policy and practice. Shareholders’

views are considered when evaluating and setting on-going-

remuneration strateqy and .the Remuneration Committee

commits to consulting with shareholders prior to any -

significant changes to the remuneration policy.

ALIGNMENT WITH'SHAREHOLDERS

We continue to be mindful of our shareholders’ interests.
Our share ownership. quidelines and claw-back provisions
for the annual bonus and long-term incentive scheme
support an on-going commitment to the business from our
executives, and continued alignment of shareholder and
executive objectives. '

we are proud of.the support we have received in the past

“from our. shareholders, with 98.4% approval for our Annual

Statement and Remuneration Report last year.

~ This report has been approved by the Board and is signed -
on its behalf by:

" phil Whlte
‘Chairman Remuneration (ommlttee

8 Juné 2021

Vp plc Anﬁual Repbrt and Accounts 2021 vpplc.com
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Directors’ Remun,eration Policy (unaudited)

DIRECTORS / REMUNERATION POLICY

This part of the directors’ remuneration report sets out a summary of the remuneration policy approved by shareholders
~at our’july 2020 Annual General meeting and effective from that date. It is mtended that the policy will formally apply for
three years beginning on the date of-approval. .

POLICY OVERVIEW

The Group aims to balance the need to attract, retain and motivate executive directors of 3 hlgh calibre with the need to be
cost effective, whilst at the same time appropriately rewarding performance. The Committee has designed a remuneration
policy that balances those factors, taking ‘account of prevailing best practice, investor expectations and the level of
remuneration and pay awards made generally to employees of the Group. Our remuneration pollcy is con5|stent with the six
principles set out in Provision 40 of the 2018 Code, namely: - .

-The policy is clear, simple and easy to understand, with a single short- and long-term incentive and a small number of
important financial targets;

~ The design of the policy reflects our risk appetite, with the new LTIP holdingiperiod, the shareholdmg requirements and
the clawback provisions support long-term decision making; -

Incentives are clearly and appropriately ¢apped. The balance of pay is aligned with market norms and a significant
proportion is dependent on the achievement of stretching short- and long-term targets;

Performance measures are aligned with our strategy and culture.

FUTURE POLICY TABLE FOR DIRECTORS
PURPOSE AND LINK » . PERFORMANCE

ELEMENT 10 THE STRATEGY OPERATION ’ . OPPORTUNITY METRICS
~ Base'salary  To attract, retain and motivate Base salaries are reviewed The Committee considers ~ None.
individuals with skills and annually, and any changes are  average increases across the
" experience required to deliver normally effective from 1 April - Group. Current salary levels
the strategy. To provide a in the financial year. - are set out on page 48.

' . competitive fixed reward.

" Pension. To provide retirement All executives are either The maximum pension - None.

benefits. ' ~ members of a defined " “contribution for existing
’ “contribution scheme or . executive directors will transition

receive a cash allowance in - .to 15% of base salary by April
lieu of pension contribution. 2022. Currently the Executive
Chairman receives a cash
" ~equivalent pension contribution
of 25% of base salary. Other
. current executive directors
/- : . receive a pension contribution
of 15% of base salary or an
equivalent cash allowance.

- The maximum pension
contribution for an executive

. director appointed after the date
of this policy is approved by
shareholders will be limited to
10% of base salary.

Taxable To provide market consistent  Cost of providing benefits Car allowance, health None. .
" Benefits benefits. ’ _ paid monthly or as required insurance and other benefits
' : : for one off events. paid from time to time.
-Annual To incentivise achievement  Annual bonuses are generally * Up to 150% of base . Growth in profit
Bonus of demanding performance  paid three months after the salary from 1 April 2021. - before tax,
targets. end of the financial year to - : N amortisation and
' which they relate. SRS . exceptional items.

Clawback provisions apply in
the event of a material
misstatement of the results
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Dlrectors Remuneration Pollcy (unaudlted)

FUTURE POLICY TABLE FOR DIRECTORS (continued)

ELEMENT

PURPOSE AND LINK
TO THE STRATEGY

OPERATION

OPPORTUNITY

PERFORMANCE
METRICS

Long Term
Incentive
Plan

" To drive sustained long

term performance that
supports the creation of

- shareholder value.

Annual grant of nil cost options

“which normally vest after 3 years

based on the achievernent of
profit targets, a minimum ROACE

requirement and continual service.

For awards made from 1 April

2021 an additional holding period

applies so that the total vesting
and holding period is at least 5
years, Shares, subject to awards

may accrue dividend equivalents.
Sufficient shares can be sold at the

Up to 100% of base

salary.

end of three years.to cover tax .~ -

liabilities. .

. The LTIP award to Jeremy.
Pilkington to be in notional shares

settled by cash. _
* Clawback provisions apply in the

event of a material misstaternent

of the results.

Subject to a vesting
period of three
years and the -

.achievement of

target growth in

EPS over a three

year period. -

Minimum ROACE

requirement,

currently set at
12%.

~ Share
~ Matching
Scheme

To encourage share

‘ownership and alignment

with shareholders.

“Annual grant of nil cost

options in proportion to the
number of shares purchased
by an executive director from
their own funds.

Clawback provisions apply in
the event of a material
misstatement of-the results.

/

Maximum award of
shares to the value of
10% of salary.

Jeremy Pilkingtoh does
not participate in this

-scheme.

T

Achievernent of
target growth in
EPS over a three

. year period and a

minimum ROACE, .

-currently set at

12%.

Save As
You Earn -

To encourage share -
participation in the entire
workforce. ~

HMRC approved plan under
which regular monthly savings
are made over a 3 year period
and-can be used to fund the’

. ~exercise of an option whereby

the exercise-price is discounted
by up-to 20%.

Maximum. permitted
savings of £300 per
month across all ongoing
share save contracts in
line with current
legislation.

None.

Share .
ownership
Guidelines

To increase alignment

-between executives and
- shareholders.

Shareholdmg to be bU|It up
over 5 years.

100% of salary for executive

directors. From 1 April 2021

executive directors will also
be.required to retain shares

- to the lower of 100% of

salary or their actual:
shareholding at the time ’
employment ceases. The

" shares must be held for one

year post-employment.

e

None.

Non-executive
director-
Fees

Reflects time commitments
and responsibilities and fees

paid by similar sized companies.

Cash fees paid, reviewed on
an annual basis.

. I .
No prescribed maximum
annual increase.

None.

Notes to the policy table
The performance targets are determined annually by the Committee and are set at a challenging level. The, Commiittee is of the opinion that the performance
targets for the annual bonus are commercially sensjtive and that it would bé detrimental to the interests of the Group to disclose them before the start of the
financial year. The targets will be disclosed after the end of the relevant financial year in that year’s remuneration report. . :
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Director‘S': Remunération Policy (un»a'udited.) R

ILLUSTRATION OF APPLICATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY.

The chart below illustrates the total remuneration for each executive director that could result from the proposed rernunera'tio'n
policy‘in 2021/22 under different performance scenarios.

Jeremy Pilkington - . o ' B I Basic salary, benefits and pension

Percentages/Amounts (£'000) O Annual bonus.

Total £567 _ o O (TP and share matching

Minimum

On plan Ak ANy | Total £1,156
- Maximum 127.%) ] Total £1,745
Maximum
includin -
50% chate 11$35%0) _ ] Total £1,980
appreciation : :
Neil Stothard : . ‘ : - I Basic salary, benefits and pension
Percentaées/Amounts (£000) . o O Annual bonus
Minimum Total £462 o ' 1 1P and share matching
- on plan S0 1 9% | Total £956
Maximum N2 | Total £1,450
Maximum . ' A' E ’
includi e
500% share BE3805 ] Total £1,659
appreciation
Allison Bainbridge o : ‘ B GBasic salary, benefits and pension
Percentages/Amounts (£'000) . A O Annual bonus
Minimum Total £342 ' O3 TP and share matching

“0n plan E0EG %50 ] Total £710
Maximum 152976) ] Total £1,078
Maximum g
. l . -
sty | 3870 ] Total £1,234
appreciation : ' -

The value of base salary for 2021/22 is set out in the Base Salary table on page 48.

The value of taxable benefits in 2021,/22-is takento be the value of taxable benefits received in 2020/21 as shown in the
single total figure of remuneration table set out on page 45. On plan performance assumes bonus payout of 75% of salary
and LTIP and share matching scheme vesting at 50% of maximum award. Maximum performance assumes bonus pay out-of
150% of base salary-and LTIP and share matching schemes vesting at 100% of maximum award. Share price appreaahon has
‘been mcluded in the fourth scenano at an assumed 50%.

42 ' ' _ o vpplc.com Vp plc Annua_l Report and Accounts 2021



Directors’ Remuneration Policy (unaudited)

CONSIDERATION OF EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS ElSEWHERE IN THE GROUP
our approach to annual salary reviews is consistent across the Group, with consideration given to the level of experience,

responsibility, individual performance and salary levels in comparable companies.

Most employees are eligible to participate in an annual bonus scheme. The maximum oppo'rtunitiés available are based
upon the seniority and responsibility of the role with business area specific metrics incorporated where appropriate.

Certain senior managers can qualify to participatée in the LTIP and share matching schemes. Performance conditions are .

consistent for all participants, while award sizes vary by organisational level.
Employees can qualify to participate in approved and unapproved share option schemes whereby they are granted rights
to acquire shares at a predetermined price, which cannot be less than the midmarket price on the dealing day |mmed|ately

before the date of the award. Awards under these schemes are not granted (o executive dlrectors

All UK employees are eligible to participate in the Company’s SAYE scheme on the same terms.

APPROA(H T0 RECRUIIMENT

The Group operates in a highly competitive market. The Commlttees approach 07 rernuneratuon on recruitment is to pay

sufhaent to attract appropriate candidates to the role.

The package of a new executive director is Ilkely to include’ the same elements .and be. subJect to similar constraints as
those of existing executive directors. :

The Committee may make an award in fespect of a new appointment. to ‘buy out’ incentive arrangements forfeited on

leaving 3 previous employer on 3 like-for-like basis. In doing so, the Committee will consider relevant factors including time

to vesting, any_ performance conditions attached to these awards and the likelihood of those conditions being met. Any
such ‘buy-out” awards .will typically be made under existing annual bonus and LTIP schemes, although in exceptional
circumstances the Committee may exercise discretion under Listing Rule 9.4.2R to make awards using a dufferent structure.
Any buy out’ awards Would have a fair value no hlgher than the awards forfeited.
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Di'ret,t'ors’ Remuneration Policy (unaudited)

DATE OF DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS OR LETTER OF APPOINTMENT

Director Date of service contract/letter of appointment

- Jeremy Pilkington © 10 June 2002
Neil Stothard : . 10 June 2002 |
Allison Bainbridge - . _ - 15 February 20171 |
Steve Rogers : 10 September 2008
Phil White 15 April 2013

The sefvice agreements of the executive directors are terminable by either-the Company or the director on twelve months’
notice. The contracts contain no specific provision for compensation for loss of office, other than an obligation to pay salary
and benefits for any notice period waived by the company.-Non-executive directors are appointed under letters of
appointment that may be terminated on six months’ notice. There were no other significant contracts with directors.

The terms and conditions of apporntment of non-executive directors are available for mspectlon by any person at the
company’s reglstered office during normal business hours and at the AGM.

APPROACH TO LEAVERS

-The Company’s palicy is to Irmrt severance payments on termination to pre- establrshed contractual arrangements Such
_contracts contain no specific provision for compensation for loss of office, other than an oblrgatlon to pay for any notice:
vperlod waived by the Company, where pay is deflned as salary plus benefits only.

in the event an executive leaves (other than a.good leaver), non-vested LTIP and share matching awards will normatlly
lapse. For good leavers unvested awards will vest on the normal vesting date-subject to the achievement of any relevant
. performance condition and with pro-rata reduction to reflect the proportion of the vesting period served.

The Committee retains discretion to alter these provisions on a case-by-case basis following a review of crrcumstances and
to ensure fairness for both shareholders and participants..

POLICY ON EXTERNAL APPOINTMEﬁTS

Executive Directors are encouraged to hold a Non-Executive role in addition to their full-time position in order to broaden
their experience, and may retain any fees received in respect of such roles. All appointments must first be agreed by the
Committee and must not represent a conflict to their current role. During the year Neil Stothard served as 3 non- executive
director of Wykeland Group and received £25,000 for his services.

During the year Allison Bainbridge served as non-executive director of RPS Group Plc and recelved £50,000. for her services,
havmg taken a 20% salary reduction for six months.

CONSIDERATION OF SHAREHOLDER VIEWS |

The Committee considers shareholder feedback received at the AGM each year. This feedback, plus any feedback received
during'other meetings is then'considered as part of the Group’s annual review of remuneration policy.

(n- addition, the Commrttee will seek to engage directly with maJor shareholders and their respective bodies should any
material changes be made to the remuneration polrcy '

Details of votes cast for and against the resolution to approve last year's remuneration report and the new remuneration
policy are set out on page 51 of the annual report on remuneration.
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An'nu'al Report on Remuneration |

The following section provides details of how the remuneration polity was implemented during the financial year ending
31 March 2021 and how it is proposed to be implemented in the fmancnal year ending 31 March 2022. Any mformanon
in this section of the report subject to audit is h|gh||ghted :

SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION (audited)

The following table shows a single total- flgure of remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2021 together with the.
comparative figures for 2020.

voday 1baens

Salaries Taxable Pensions Annual Lne Share Total Total

and fees  benefits bonus value price fixed  variable
- at grant appreciation pay pay
(deprediation) - .
[ £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 £000| g
Executive directors : ‘ é
P . . >
Jeremy Pilkington o, g . 2 -2 353 : - 562 33 915 B
C2020 471 . -3 119 - 334 ®) 593 326 919
Neil Stothard 01 351 35 65 2800 - - - 441 280 721
2020 366 26 64 - 250. 7y - 4% 243 699 =
Allison Bainbridge ., ¢, 17 41 208 N 319 208 527 5
2020 272 17 41 - 185 (4 330 181" 511" &
Non-executive directors 2
Steve Rogers 5021 3 i - . i R 23
4 2020 45 - - - - I 45 -
Phil White 2021 43 - - . - : 43 g
2020 45 - - o - - . 45 &
BASE SALARY _ _ . g
* Due to the uncertainty created by the global pandemic executive and non executive directors volunteered to accept a 20% E

reduction in their salaries and fees between April and June. The group’s senior management also volunteered to accept a
*20% reduction in salaries. :

In_line with the group wide salary increase proposed in the annual April 2020 pay review, the Committee approved 3 2%
salary increase for Neil Stothard and Allison Bainbridge. Due to the pandemic and again in line with the rest of the group this .
award was deferred until 1 October 2020."

TAXABlE BENEFITS A
Taxable benefits consist primarily of company car or car allowance and private health care insurance.

PENSION BENEFITS

Neil Stothard received 17.5% of base salary and Allison Bainbridge received 15% of base salary in lieu of pension contributions.
From 1 April Jeremy Pilkington’s payment in lieu of pension contnbutlons transitioned from 25% of salary, bonus and benefits
to 25% of base salary.

Further changes to the pension benefits received by executive directors W|I| take place from 1 April 2021, as set out in the
Remuneration Policy approved at the 2020 AGM.

ANNUAL BONUS PAYMENTS

The annual bonus outturn presented in the table was based on Group profit before tax and amortisation targets as measured
-over the 2021 financial year.

" Targets. for annual bonus payments typlcaIIy are set by the Committee at the beglnnlng of the financial year and are based
upon growth in Group profit before tax, amortisation and exceptional items (PBTAE). The targets are ‘challenging and normally
look for year on year growth with entry thresholds set as a minimum in ||ne with the Group’s budget PBTAE for the relevant
financial year.

At the beginning of the 2020,/21 financial year in April 2020, the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic made it extremely difficult

. to predict financial outcomes. In April 2020, base case forecast profit before tax, amortisation and exceptional items was 7.6m
which was significantly below the £47.1m (highest ever) achieved in 2019/20 and the budget for 2020/21. Consequently,.
target settinig for the 2020/21 annuat bonus scheme were deferred to the half year.
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Annual Repprt on Remuneration

ANNUAL BONUS PAYMENTS (continued)

In September 2020 the Committee approved a PBTAE target range of. £17.0 mrllron (threshold) to £23.0 million (maximum),
which was considered to be suitably stretching and motivational based on latest available forecasts at the time. Recognising
that achieving even the stretch target for 2020/21 would reflect a year-on-year decline in PBTAE, the Committee resolved to
reduce the maximum opportunity-available to executive directors from 100% of salary to 75% of salary. Actual PBTAE achieved
was £23.3 million and 3 bonus of 75% of salary was therefore earned by each executive director under the scheme.

Maximum Covid-19 PBTAE PBTAE Actual %  Actual bonus§
(% of salary) adjusted  required for required for of salary £000

maximum threshold maximum
% salary bonus bonus

| % % £m £m fm %

Jeremy Pilkington 100 TS 17.0 230 232 75 353
Neil Stothard 100 75 17.0 230 232 75 . 280
Allison Bainbridge 100 ‘ 75 17.0 23.0 . 232 75 208 -
VESTING OF LTIP AND SHARE MATCHING AWARDS (audlted) ' N

The LTIP amount included in the 2020/21 single total figure of remuneration is in respect of the conditional share award
granted in July 2018. Vesting is dependent on earnings per share performance over the three years ended 31 March 2021,
achievement of a.minimum return on average capital employed of 12% and continued service until July 2021. As a result
of the impact of Covid-19 on EPS performance in the year ended 31 March 2021, the stretching performance targets were
not.met, and these awards will lapse in full.

The performance targets for this award and actual performance against those targets was as follows

Metric Performance Threshold Stretch Actual % Vesting &
condition target target
Earnings per share® Normalised EPS compound annual ~ 93.64 pence 107.59 pence  46.37 pence -

growth rate of 5% pa (0% vesting) . EPS " EPS EPS. -
10% pa (100% vesting) .

ROACE » : Minimum of 12.0% - 12.0% ' N/A 9.2% See above

“EPS is measured on 3 net basis, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, but assuming a fixed
corporation tax charge on profits currently at the rate of 20% and excluding any amortisation and exceptional items shown
on the face of the Income Statement or in the notes to the Company's accounts and utilising the whole of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company, assummg a constant level of issued Ordinary Share Capital over the three years, in
this case 40. 154 million shares.

Return on average capital employed is calculated by dividing the profit before tax, interest, amortisation and exceptional
items by the aggregate of average net assets and average net debt consistent with those shown in the management
accounts of the Company for the relevant financial year.

The LTIP award details for the executive directors are as follows:

Number of Number of Value at. Estimated value

shares shares grant of shares
at grant to vest . vesting
July 2018 July 2021
, « ' £000 £000 |
Jeremy Pilkington ' T 43,600 - , 449 -
Neil Stothard o 33,200 - _ 342 .
Allison Bainbridge 24,600 - o - 253 -

.The award of the LTIP above was based upon the polrcy of awardrng up to an equrvalent of 100% of salary. The share price
at the time of the award was £10.30. 4

The Remuneration Committee agreed that there should be no adjustment to the targets applyrng to 2018 LTiP
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r

SHARE SCHEME INTERESTS AWARDED DURING THE FINANCIAI. YEAR (audlted)
The following awards were granted to executive directors: ‘ . . E .-

Scheme Basis of award Date of  Share price at Number of Face value Performance
granted grant date of grant £ shares £000 Period end date

Executive

|

{jeremy Pilkington

TP 100% of salary 23 July 2020 - 698 - 67,400 471 31 March 2023

{ Neil stothard - ‘ - ‘ . ) |
' (P 100% of salary 23 July 2020 698 . 53400 373  31March 2023
SAYE CN/A16July2020 - 7.29 616 4 N/A

[ Allison Bainbridge ‘ ' ]
LIP  100% of salary 23 July 2020 . 698 39,700 277 31 March 2023

The.share price at the date of grant has been used to calculate the face value of the awards granted.

The performance targets for this award were a normalised compound annual growth rate of 10% as a threshold (0% yestirig)
and 16% as a stretch target (100% vesting).

PAYMENTS TO. PAST DIRECTORS AND FOR LOSS OF OFFICE .
No payments were made to past directors or for loss of office in the year ended 31 March 2021.

' OUTSTANDING SHARE AWARDS (audited)

The table below sets out details of unvested share awards held by executive dlrectors Detalls of vested awards are shown'in

the statement of directors’ shareholdmgs and share interests on page 48.

Executive Scheme Grant  Exercise No.of  Granted Vested Lapsed No. of Exercise End of
date price shares at during during during shares at peiiod performance

£ 31Mar2020 the year the year the year 31 Mar 2021 period

— [ Jeremy Pilkington ’ 4 : l

Total LTIP ~ Various NIl . 152500 - 67,400 38411 15689 165,800 . July 2021 31 Mar 2001
o o to July 2030 to 31 Mar 2023
[ Neil Stothard : ’ _ ]
Toal P various Nl 116200 - 53,400 28684 11,716 129,200 July:2021 31 Mar 2021
: , . o o ' o July 2030 to 31 Mar 2023
SAYE 2017 '6.96 517 - - 517 - - N/A
SAYE 2018 .08 445 - - - 445  October 201  N/A
: o X S ‘ to March 2022 '
SAYE 2019 . 71 ., 506 - - E 506 October 2022 N/A
’ o March 2023
SAYE 2020 584 - 616 - - 616  October 2023 N/A
. ' . : © o March 2024
Total SAYE ' 1,468 616 - 517 1,567 '
[ Allison Bainbridge . » ' ' |
Total LTIP~ Various Nil 86300 39,700 21,300 8700 © 96000  July2021 31 Mar 2021
: : ' o July 2030 to 31 Mar 2023
SAYE 2017 696 . 57 . - . - 517 - " N/A
Total SAVE - 517 - - 517 . -
’ P
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AND SHARE INTERESTS. (audited)

Executive Shareholding as Shares Shares Options Options Unvested Unvested  Outstanding
% of salary at  beneficially beneficially vested vested TP share SAYE
31 Mar 2021 owned at ownedat butnotyet  butnot yet awards’ | matching awards

31 Mar 2021 © 31 Mar 2020 exercised exercised awards?
31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2020

Jeremy Pilkington s 29,220 : 29,220 239,411 201,000 165,800 - -
Neil Stothard 1839% 858,548 : 790,164 - 159,700 . 129,200 . - 1,567

~ Allison Bainbridge  406% 141,078 68,150 - 116,300 96,000 , - -
Steve Rogers - - ' B - . - . N i .
Phil White - - - - - ]

_~ " Unvested LTIP and share matching awards are sub'ject to performanfe conditions
* The share price used to calculate the value of shares beneflually owned for the purposes of establishing shareholdlng as 3
percentage of salary is the share price as at 31 March 2021: £8.14.

“During the year Jeremy Pilkington-was interested in shares owned by Ackers P Investment Company Lumtted This company is
ultimately controlled by a number of trusts of which, for the purposes of Sections 252 to 255 of the Companies Act 2006, Jeremy -
Pilkington is deemed to be a connected person. As at 31 March 2021 Ackers P lnvestment Company Limited owned 20,181,411
shares (2020: 20,181,411 shares).

The (TIP awards outstandmg in respect of Jeremy: Pilkington are notional shares which would be settled by a cash payment. .

The executive directors are each in compllance with the Companys requirements to hold shares equwalent to. at least 100%
. of salary. - . -

There were no changes in the interests of the directors between 31 March 2021 and 8 June 2021.

‘ _IMPlEMENTATION OF THE REMUNERATIO’N.POLICY FOR THE YEAR_ ENDING 31 MARCH 2022 (unaudited)
A summary of how the directors’ remuneration poticy will be applied during the year ended 31 March A2022‘ is set out below.”

BASE SALARY AND FEES

~ The Committee approved a 2% increase in base salary for Neil Stothard and AII|son Bambndge from 1 April 2021 in line
with the average salary increase across the Group. No increases are proposed for the Executive Chalrman nor for the non-
executive dlrectors :

1 April 2021 1 October 2020 1 April 2020

L R __£000 _ £000 - £000 % increase |
~ Jeremy Pilkington ' Y ' 471 e 0%
Neil Stothard ' , 380 - o373 366 2%
Allison Bainbridge B 283 . 277 . 272 2%
Steve Rogers 45 ‘ } 45 ’ 45 . 0% .

Phil White . 45 ' 45 45 0%

As outlined on page 45, a salary increase averaging 2% across the Group was proposed at the annual 2020 pay review, which
~would have been effective from 1 April 2020. However, due to Covid-19 this increase was deferred until 1 October 2020.
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IMPlEMENTATION OF THE REMUNERATION POlICY FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MAR(H 2022 . L
" (unaudited) - continued ——

PENSION ARRANGEMENTS

From 1 April 2022, pensions for current executive directors will be in-line with the policy maximum of 15% of base salary. -
Pension contributions for new executive directors will be 10% of -base salary in order to be more aligned with our -
workforce. From 1 April 2021 Jeremy Pilkington’s pension contribution will be reduced from 25% of base salary to 20%
" and Neil Stothard’s from 17.5% of base salary to 15% c :

Voday Jibajens

ANNUAL BONUS
" From 1 April 2021 the maximum bonus potential will increase to 150% of base salary (from 100%). Bonuses will be based -
on challenging growth targets for profit before tax, amortisation and exceptional items derived from the group’s budget, with
the maximum payout target set at a level which appropriately reflects the increase in maximum opportunity available. - °
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The Committee is of the opinion that the performance targets for the annual bonus are commercially sensitive and that it
would be detrimental to the interests of the Group to disclose them before the start of the financial year. The targets will be
disclosed after the end of the relevant financial year in that year’s remuneration report.

- LONG TERM INCENTIVES A -
The maximum LTIP award in 2021 will remain at 100% of salary for all.executive directors. Consistent with past awards 8
the extent to which any LTIP awards granted in 2021 will vest will be dependent upon the achievement of a challenging &
target growth in the Group’s earnings per share, underpinned by Group ROACE. The Committee considered the prospective. &
disclosure of the EPS target range but has concluded that this is commercially sensitive information which would put the %
company at a disadvantage. Full detauls will therefore be disclosed retrospectlvely in the report detailing the vesting of 2

. these awards. . :

Clawback provisions in the event of significant misstatement of the results will apply to both the annual bonus and the —
~ - long term incentive. - E

. : o
PERFORMANCE GRAPH AND TABLE (unaudited) &
The followmg graph charts the Total Shareholder Return of the Group and the FTSE Small Cap Index over the ten year period %‘
from 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2021. 2

T00

Price (Rebased to 100)

" 12 ‘13 ‘14 15 ‘18 ‘17 18. ‘19 20

e \/P plc e FTSE Small Cap x Investment Trusts ) Source: FactSet Prices - - .

The FTSE Small Cap index excluding investment trusts s regarded as an appropriate bench mark for the Group’s
shareholders. Total shareholder return is defined as the total return a shareholder would receive over the period inclusive
of both share pnce growth and dividends. )
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH AND TABLE (unaudited) - continued
The total remuneration and award rates of the Executive Chairman across the same period were as follows

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Single figure (000) - 1,919 1795 2,042 2259 1613 1580 1,498 1770 919 915
" Annual bonus % of maximum  100%  84%  520% 100%  27%  72% 57%  94% 0% 75%
LTIP vesting % of maximum  82% 95.1%  100%  100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  71% 0%

EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN PAY RATIO .

The table below provides the ratio between the Executive Chairman srngle frgure total remuneration and total remuneration

“for all UK employees and the details of the salary and total remuneration for UK employees in 2020/21. We have chosen
option B as our method for calculatrng the pay ratio for- this report, consistent with the meéthodology for reporting of the
gender pay gap. : :

[Pay]Ratio —

Method 25th Median 75th _ 25th Median 75th

percentile percentile percentile percentile

Total remuneration 2021 . B . 44 38 - 27 £20,554 £24,238  £33,366
Salary 2021 i 23 ¢ 20 : 15 £20,466 £23,968 . £30,905
Total remuneration 2020 B 44 37- 27 £20,650 £24624  £33,731
Salary , 2020 B 23 20 15 £20,131 £23,915  £30,600,

The Committee has considered the findings of the pay ratio analysis whrch appear to be reasonable in the context of the.
Group's sector and taking into account the composition of the Groups UK workforce against which Executive Chairman’s
: remuneratron is compared.

PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN ALL DIRECTORS REMUNERATION (unaudited) ’

The table below shows the percentage change in the Executive Chairrnan’s salary, benefits and annual bonus between the
financial year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 compared to the percentage change for UK employees of the
Group for each of these elements of pay. -

Executive Chairman Chief Executive FbO NEDS UK employees
% change % change % change % change % change
Salary . (5%) . (4%) L (4%)  (4%) 1%
Taxable Benefits (33%) (4%) ' - , - (7%)

Annual Bonus® - (100%) - (100%) . (100%) - - (67%)

The percentage change for UK employees is based upon 3 consistent set of employees and is calculated using P60 and P11D data.

“To be comparable to the data for the UK employees the annualbonus for the directors disclosed above is the bonus paid in the -
relevant tax year, which is the bonus in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2020. '

" The reduction in directors salary reflects the 20% voluntary reduction in salary and fees between April and June 2020.

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY (u‘naudired) )
The followin'g table shows the Group’s actual spend on pay (for all employees) relative to dividends.

2020 2021 % change |

Staff costs - m 121.3 ’ 108.8 ) : (10%)
Dividends : £fm 12.0 T 99 (18%)

Dividend figures relate to amounts payable in respect of the relevant frnancral year and reflects the payment in January
2021 of a special dividend in respect of 2019/20
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (unaudited)

The Groups approach to executive directors’ remuneration is determrned by the Board on the advice of the Remuneration
Committee.

The primary role of the Committee is to: _

. 'Revi_evv; recommend and monitor the level and structure of remuneration for executive directors;

e Approve the remuneration packages for executive directors; .

¢ Determine the balance between base pay and performance related elements of the package 50 as to align drrectors
interests to those of shareholders. Ca :

~ The Committee’s terms of reference are set out on the Companys website.

The members of the Remuneratron Commrttee all rndependent non- executrve drrectors during the year under review were
. as follows: .

- Phil White
e Steve Rogers

Brographrcal information on Committee members and details of attendance at the Committee meetings during the year
are set out on pages 30 and 32. The Remuneration Committee has access to rndependent advice where it considers
appropriate. During 2020,/21. the Committee sought external professronal advice and is satisfied that the advrce provrded
is independent, and objective. . '

~ ANNUAL GENERAl MEETING VOTING OUTCOMES

The followrng table details votes for and against the 2020 directors’ remuneration polrcy and the drrectors remuneration
report for-2019/20, along with .the number of votes withheld. The Committee will continue to consrder the views of .
shareholders when determining and reporting on remunération arrangements '

Directors’ Remuneration Pollcy 2020 Directors’ Remuneration Report 2019/20

Votes for . 29,022,433 (87.25%) - : 32,728,510 (98.39%)
Votes against . , 4,240,672 (12.75%) ~ 534,595  (1.61%)

Votes withheld : , - 8713 ' .. 8,713

0
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DirectorS' Report

The dlrectors of vp pIc present their annual report and the audlted fmancual statements of the Group and Parent
~Company for the year ended 31 March 2021. :

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Group is equnpment rental and assoaated services.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Pursuant to Sections S414C(11) Companies Act 2006, the business review has been replaced with a strateglc report, which
can be found on pages 1 to 27. : »

RESUlTS AND DIVIDEND -~

Group loss after tax for the year was £4.6 miIIion'(2020 profit £18.6 million). The directors recommend 3 final dividend
of 25.0 pence per share. The final dividend WIH be paid on 5 August 2021 to all shareholders on the register as at 25 june -
2021. ' :

DIRECTORS

Details of the directors of the Company who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the.financial
statements are given on pa’ge 30. Details of directors’ interests in-shares are brovided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on page 48. The directors’ exposures to conduct and liability issues are mmgated by Directors and Officers insurance cover
where appllcable during the financial year. -

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the company’s share capital structure are shown in note 20 to the accounts. AII shares have the same voting
nghts There are no restnctlons on the transfer of shares in- the Company or restrictions on voting rights.

SUBSTANTIAl SHAREHOLDERS

As at 2 June 2021 the following had notlhed the Company of an interest of 3% or more in the Companys issued ordlnary
share capital.

Number of Percentage of Issued

Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares
[ ‘ , . ) ‘ . %I
Ackers P Investment Company Limited .- . : 20,181,411 - 50.26
Schroders plc : : . ‘ 1,804,589 E 4.49
Discretionary Unit Fund Managers Limited ' 1,800,000 448
- Canaccord Genuity Group Inc. A . ’1;750,000; : : 436
_Invesco Asset Management Ltd. - ‘ . 1,560,473 o 389
Tellworth Investments ' " 4 _ ’ 1,420,450 N . 354
J P Morgan Chase & Co. - | . -~ 1,400,253 . 349

'Jeremy Pilkington is a director of Ackers P Investment Company Limited which is the hol.ding company of Vp plc. A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT '
“Consideration of the financial risk management of the Group has been included in the Strategic Report on pages 26 to 29.

OVERSEAS BRANCH |

. The Group has one operating branch of a UK reglstered company operatlng in another country within the EU, namely a
: branch of Hire Station Limited operating in the Netherlands. -~ - . ‘
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION UNDER LISTING RULE 9.8.4.
The directors confirm that the Company has entered into a relationship agreement with Ackers P Investment Company Limited

" (a controlllng shareholder) and has complied with the independence provisions of the-agreement. As far as the drrectors are :

aware, the controlling shareholder and |ts assocrates have also complied with the mdependence provrsron

Pursuant to listing rule 9.8. 4C the Company is required to disclose that an arrangement is in pIace whereby the trustee of
the Company employee beneflt trust has agreed to waive present and future dividend rights in respect of certain shares

-that-it holds.

EMPLOYEES

‘ . The directors are committed to marntarnrng effective communication with employees on matters which affect their

occupations and future prospects while at the same_ time increasing their awareness of the Group's overall activities and
performance. This communication takes the form of comprehensive team briefings to all employees together with reqular
Group and divisional newsletters. :

“ It is the policy of the Group to employ and train disabled people whenever-their skills and q'ualifications allow and suitable

vacancies are available. If existing employees become disabled, every effort is made to frnd them appropnate work and training

is provided if necessary.

Further details regarding employees are provided in‘the Responsible Business Report on pages 15 to 22.

" 'POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

donations made in the year principally relate to sponsorship of employee dnven fund raising activities on behalf of local and
national chantres : ‘

SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICY

Itis the Company’s policy to make payment to suppliers on agreed terms. The Company seeks to abrde by these payment terms
whenever it is satisfied that the supplier has provided the goods or services in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions.

. The Group made no political contributions during the year. Donations, to charities amounted to £41,000 (2020 '£50,000). The '

The number of days purchases outstanding at 31 March 2021 was 46 days (2020: 46 days). This figure fluctuates dependent -

on the creditor positiori for fleet purchases at the year end compared to the average purchases during the year.

'I'AXATION PRINCIPLES
We operate in accordance with our Tax Principles, whrch can.be found at: www.vpplc.com

fn 2020/21 the Group paid £2.9 million (2020: £10.7 mrllron) in corporate taxes. We are a responsible corporate tax payer and

: conduct our affairs to ensure comphance with all laws and relevant regulations in the countries in which we operate.

B CONTRACTS

_There -are no drsclosures requrred under $417 of the Companres Act in relatron to. contractual or other arrangements wrth
customers or supplrers :

PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES ,
A resolution is to be proposed to the Company’s shareholders at the AGM to authorise the Company to purchase its own shares

up to a maximum of 10% of the Company’s issued share capital either to be cancelled or retained as treasury shares. This _

resolution will be proposed as a special resolution. The maximum and minimum prices that may be paid for an Ordinary Share
in exercise of such powers is set out in Resolution 11(b) and 11(c) of the Notice of Meeting. The directors undertake to

shareholders that they will only exercise this power after careful consideration, taking into account the financial resources of

the Company,-future funding opportunities and the price of the Company’s shares. The directors will ot exercise the ability to

.purchase the-Company’s own shares unless to do so would result in: an increase in earnings per share and would be in the best

mterest of shareholders generaIIy

During the year ended 31 March 2021 the Company did not acqurre any shares under the authority of the resolution passed at '

the Annual General Meeting.
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GOING CONCERN

"Notwithstanding the impact of Covid 19, the Group ended the financial year in 3 healthy financial position, The Group continues
10 generate strong cash flows and net debt reduced by £37.9 million from £159.8 million at 31 March 2020 to £121.9 million -
at 31 March 2021. EBITDA before exceptional items and IFRS 16 impact totalled £72.7 million which was lower than prior year
£98.1 million due to the impact of Covid 19. The Business Review above sets out the Group’s business actrvrtres markets and
outlook for the forthcomrng year and beyond.

The Group frnances its operatrons through a combination of shareholders funds, bank borrowrngs finance leases and operating
leases. The capital structure is monitored using the gearing ratio of adjusted Net Debt/EBITDA. The Groups funding
requirements are largely driven by capital expenditure and acqursrtron activity.

As at 31 March 2021 the Group had £200.0 million of debt capacrty (2020: £200.0 million) comprrsrng committed revolving
credit facilities of £135.0 million and a £65.0 million private placement which are subject to covenant testing. In addition to
the committed facilities, the Group net overdraft facility at the year-end was £7.5 million (2020: £7.5 million).

The £135.0 million revolving credit facilities were due to mature in December 2021. Consequently in April 2021, the Group
drew down a new £28.0 million seven year private placement under the existing agreement with PGIM, Inc. I June 2021,
‘the Group also refinanced its £135.0 million committed revolving credit facilities with a.new £90.0 million facility. The new
revolving credit facility agreement also includes a £20.0m uncommitted accordion facrhty Management are in reqular dialogue
with our lenders who continue to express their commitment to the business. :

The Board has evaluated the facilities and covenants on the basis of the. budget for 2021/22 (including. 2022/23 long term
forecast). All of which has been prepared taking into "account the current economic climate, together with appropriate
sensitivity analysis. Stress scenarios have also been considered by the Board. Under thése scenarios material revenue
reductions have been applied for the financial year.ended 31 March 2022 against the Group's original budget. All scenarios
retain adequate headroom against-borrowing facilities and fall within the existing covenants.

Our most. severe downside modelling, which reflects ‘@ 20% reduction in revenue levels demonstrates headroom over
borrowing facilities and existing covenant levels throughout the forecast period to the end of June 2022.

On the basis of this testing, the directors have a reasonable ekpectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operation for the foreseeable future. For this reason the going concern basis has been adopted in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. : . : ’ '

GOVERNMENT SUPPORT

" During the year, amounts received from the Government as part of the Job Retention Scheme were passed through to
~ furloughed employees. This'is further explained in note 3. Where approprrate the Group also took government support from
tax deferrals on VAT/PAYE and from Busrness Rates relref

CORPORATE GOVERNAN(E
- " The Corporate Governance Statement on pages 31 to 33.forms part of the Directors’ Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS o S

In accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolutron for the re- apporntment of Pncewaterhouse(oopers LLP
as audrtors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcomrng Annual General Meetrng

By Order of the Board
==
Allison Bainbridge

Company Secretary
8 June 2021
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‘Statement of Directors’ Respbnsibilities

IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ,
The directors are responsible for preparing-the Annual Report and Accounts in accordance with applicable law ‘and regulation.

'Co_mpany law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have

" prepared the Group and Parent Company financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. Additionally, the Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules require the directors to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with international financial
reporting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606,/2002 as it applies in the European Union.

The Parent Company has also prepared financial statements in accordance with and international financial reporting standards
adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606,/2002 3s it applies in the European Union.

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they grve a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of the profrt or loss of the group for that period. In’preparing
the financial statements, the drrectors are required to: :

e Select suitable accountrng polrcres and then apply them consrstently,

e State whether applrcable international accountrng standards in conformity with the requiremnents of the Companies Act 2006
and international financial reporting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606,/2002 as it applies in the
European Union have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

® Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

o Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and parent
company will continue in business. :

~ The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Parent Cémpany and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularitiest The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group's and Parent Company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and Parent Company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements and the Directors” Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006. ' ‘

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Parent Company’s website. Legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The directors consider that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides
the information -necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s and Parent Company’s position and performance, business
model and strategy. ,

Fach of the directors, whose names and functions are listed in governance section of the annual report confirm that, to the best
of their knowledge:

e The Group and Parent Company financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and.international financial reporting standards
adopted pursuant-to Regulation (EC) No 1606,/2002 as it applies in the European Union, give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position and loss of the group and profit of the parent company;-and ’

o The Business Review and Financial Review includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and

the position of the group and parent company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.
In the case of each director in office at-the date the directors’ report is approved: ‘
® 5o far as the director is aware, there is no reIevant audit information of whrch the groups and parent companys auditors
are unaware; and

o They have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director.in order to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the group’s and parent company’s auditors are aware of that information.
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Independent Audrtors Report
to the Members of Vp plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In-our opinion, Vp plc’s group hnancral statements and parent comipany fmancral statements (the-“financial statements”):

. & give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March.2021 and of the group’s
loss and the group’s and parent companys cash flows for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance wrth international- accountlng standards in conformity with the requrrements of
the Companies Act 2006; and = t : : .

» have been prepared in accordance with the requrrements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within-the Annual Report and Accounts (the “Annual Report”), which comprise:
the consolidated and parent company balance sheets as at 31.March 2021; the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity and the consolidated and
parent company: statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, wh|ch include a
description of the significant accounting policies.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Separate opinion in relation to international financial reporting standards adopted pursuant to
Regulation (EC) No 1606,/2002 as it applies in the European Union -

As explained in note 1 to the financial statements, the group and parent company, in addition to applying international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, has also applied international financial reporting standards
adopted pursuant to Requlation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union. _ 4
In our opinion, the group and parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international
financial reporting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606,/2002 as it applies in the European Union. :

Basis for opinion .

We -conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing - (UK) ("ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our

responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
~of our report‘ We._believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent ‘of the group in accordance with the ethical requrrements that are relevant to our audlt of the flnanclal
statements in the UK, which includes the FRCs Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the'FRC’s Ethical Standard were not provided.

Other than those disclosed in note 3, we have provided no non-audit services to the parent company of its controlled undertakings in
the period under audit. ’ :

Our audit approach
Overview

® The group is organised into 12 reporting units. The group financial statements are 3 consolrdatlon'
of these reporting units.

® Of the 12 reporting units, we identified four which, in our view, required an audit of their complete
financial -information.

e The reporting units over which we performed audit procedures accounted for over 88% of the groups
external revenues and 92% of the group’s profit before tax, amortisation and exceptionals.

Audit scope

4 e Existence of rental equipment {group and parent) -
Key audit ® V3luation of rental equipment (group and parent)

matters ® Impact of COVID-19 (group and parent)
®

_Risk of impairment to assets - Goodwiill and acqurred intangible assets (group and parent)’

e Qverall group materiality: £1,944,000 (2020: £2,400,000) based on 5% of 3 three year average
of profit before tax, amortisation and exceptionals.

e Overall parent company materiality: £706,000 (2020: £950 ,000) based on 5% of a three year
average of profit before tax, amortisation and exceptionals. ]

e Performance materiality: £1,458,000 (group) and £530,000 (parent company). -
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of Vp plc (continued)

The scope of our audit : —
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the fmandal statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional Judgement were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or
not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the
allocation of resources in the audit: and directing the efferts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we
make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1oday Jbajens

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.
Risk of impairment to assets - Goodwill and acquired intangible assets is a new key audit matter this year. Provusmn in respect

[l
" of Competition and Markets Authority (CMA) investigation (group and parent), which was a key audit mattef fast year,-is no longer 2
included because of the matter reaching a conclusion during the year and therefore no provision remaining at the year end date. 3
Otherwise, the key audit matters below are consistent with last year. 2
 Key audit matter : How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Existence of rental equipment - ' ' —
group and parent ) .
Refer to page 35 (Significant accounting issues) Our audit work in respect of the existence of rental equipment 2
and note 9 in the financial statements: we included understanding and evaluating management’s key controls in §
focused on this area because the group and. this-area, confirming the correct recording of rental asset movements - @
parent company hold a significant quantum and | on the fixed asset register on a sample basis and substantively S
carrying amount of rental equipment in the testing the existence of a sample of assets. E
normal course of theif business. - For a sample of rental equipment purchases in the year we agreed to &
The net book value of rental equipment was -invoice and capitalisation onto the fixed asset register, confirming the
£206.1 million and £96.0 million as at 31 value and the useful economic life applied. We agreed a sample of —
March 2021 (2020: £218.1 million and £102.4 rental equipment out on hire to invoice and delivery notes. We %
million) for the group and parent company attended a sample of year end rental equipment counts and: %:fr
respectively. Given the volume of assets and e considered the design and effectiveness of count controls by &
the frequency of movement (through : understanding and observing the count procedures; and il
purchases, hires and sales) Fhe_re |s,the ) e counted a sample of assets and reconciled these to both g
potential for assets to go missing. This results in management’s count and the fixed asset register. 5
complexity in maintaining an accurate fixed , _ ) 5
asset register. : For a sample of revenue resulting from the hire of rental equipment >

to customers we have also agreed to sales invoice and either a
despatch note or cash receipt which provides us with evidence of
~| existence over the underlying asset.

We found, based on the results of our testing, that the amounts

recorded, and disclosures made in the financial statements were
consistent with the supporting evidence obtained.

Valuation of rental equipment
- group and parent

Refer to page 35 (Significant accounting Our audit work’in respect of the valuation of rental equipment comprised

issues), page 76 (Significant accounting - an assessment of the accuracy of estimates made by management in
_policies) and note 9 in the financial A previous years, testing of utilisation statistics, integrity checks over the

statements. We focused on this area because’ underlying fixed asset data and budgeted trading performance to

there is significant management judgement . determine the appropriateness of management’s estimates.

involved in estimating the useful economic We tested the appropriateness of the useful economic lives and

lives, residual values and any impairment of estimated residual values applied on a sample basis through

the rental assets. - : consideration of any profits/losses on disposal of rental equipment and

The utilisation of rental equipment is key to the level of fully written down assets still generating revenue, noting no

supporting its valuation, so if there were a evidence of systematic over or under depreciation of the assets.

downturn in the trading performance in a We tested the integrity of the data held within the fixed asset registers,

particular market or reporting unit, this-would given the reliance upon this information for management's impairment

present an inherent impairment risk. , analysis. This comprised scanning the entire population of assets for

inappropriate entries (such as assets with a useful economic life
inconsistent with the type of asset) or evidence that the useful economic
life assigned is not being applied correctly in the fixed asset register.

" we found, based on the results of our testing, that the amounts

recorded, and disclosures made in the financial statements were
consistent with the supporting evidence obtained.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of Vp plc (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impact of COVID-19 (group and parent)

Refer to page 23 for the impact of COVID-19 on the group’s
and parent company’s financial performance during the
year. COVID-19 was declared a global pandemic by the
World Health Organisation on 11 March 2020 and the on-

going response is having an unprecedented impact on the

economy which has been considered as part of the audit.
Management have considered the implications across the
business, including the going concern assessment, the
impact on asset impairment assessments, and appropriate
disclosures in the Annual Report.

In respect of the going concern assessment, management
have prepared detailed analyses to assess the potential
impact on revenue, profit and cash flows of a severe but
plausible downside risk scenario. This analysis includes
consideration.of the group’s liquidity and loan covenants,
which are based on the ratio of net debt to EBITDA and
interest cover. In doing so, management have made
assumptions that are critical to the outcome of these
considerations. Because of its significance to the financial
statements and to our audit, we determined that
management’s consideration of the potential impact of
COVID-19 on going concern is a key audit matter. We also
determined that the potential impact of COVID-19 on asset
impairments is a kéy audit matter. '

Qur audit procedures performed in respect of the impact
of COVID-19 on management's going concern assessment,
and our conclusion in respect of going concern, are
included in the “Conclusions relating to going concern”

- section below. :

We have reviewed management’s assessment of the
impact of COVID-19 on the carrying value of each
category of assets and any adjustments made. We
evaluated and challenged management on how they .
reflected the impact on future cash flows of COVID-19 in
their impairment analyses.and the consistency of their
assumptions with the forecasts used in their going
congern assessment.

- We have reviewed management’s disclosures in the
financial statements in relation to COVID-19 and are
satisfied that-they are consistent with the risks affecting

* the group, their impact assessment and the procedures
that we-have performed.

Risk of impairment to assets - Goodwill and
acquired intangible assets (group and parent)
Refer to page 35 (Significant accounting issues) and note
10 in the financial statements for detailed group and
parent company goodwill and intangible assets
disclosures. The group has £43.8 million (2020: £50.6
million) of goodwill and £20.6 million (2020: £23.6
million) of acquired intangible assets as at 31 March
2021. The parent company has £9.5 million (2020: £10.4
million) of intangible assets as at 31 March 2021. The
carrying value of goodwill is assessed by an annual
impairment review with intangible assets at a group and
parent company level reviewed for indicators of
impairment and if needed an impairment review
performed. A £7m impairment charge has been recorded
by management in the current year against goodwill held
within the group. The risk we have focused on is that
these non-current assets could be overstated and a larger
impairment charge may be required. We focused on this
area because the determination of whether or not these
" non-current assets are impaired involves subjective-
judgements and estimates about the future results and
-cash flows of the business. On an annual basis,
management calculate the amount of headroom
between the value in.use of the group’s Cash Generating
Units (‘CGUs") and their carfying. value to determine
whether there is a potential impairment of the goodwill
and acquired intangibles relating to those CGUs. The value
~in use of the CGU with respect to goodwill and acquired
intangibles within the group and the parent company is
dependent on a number of key assumptions which
-include:
® Forecast cash flows for the next five years;

® A long-term (terminal) growth rate applied beyond
the end of the five year forecast period; and

e A discount rate applied to the model.

We understood and evaluated management’s budgeting and
forecasting process. We obtained the group impairment
analysis and tested the reasonableness of the key
assumptions, including the following:

e We tested the mathematical accuracy of the impairment -
model and agreed the carrying value of non-current
assets being assessed for impairment to the balance
sheet; -

e We challenged management’s.calculated group weighted
average cost of capital (WACC) used for discounting future
cash flows within the impairment model, utilising
valuation experts to assess the cost of capital for the
group and comparable organisations;

e We evaluated the historical accuracy of the budgeting
process to assess the reliability of the data; and

& We traced the forecast financial information within the

model to the latest Board approved budget and assessed
the rationale for any variances between thie two.

We have reviewed the financial statement disclosures made
with respect to the sensitivity of the WACC, cash flows and -
growth rates.

In summary, we found, based on our audit work, the carrying
value of goodwill and acquired intangibles and the
impairment charge recognised in the year in respect of
goodwill and acquired intangible assets to be acceptable. We
also considered the disclosures made within the financial
statements and considered these to be appropriate.

58 -

vpplc.com” Vp plc Annual Report and Accounts 2021




Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of Vp plc (continued)

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the fmancual
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the group and the parent company, the accounting processes and
controls, and the industry in which they operate. The group’s accounting process is structured around a group finance function at
its head office in Harrogate which is responsible for the group’s reporting units. The group is organised into 12 reporting units and
the group financial statements are a consolidation of these reporting units. Of the 12 reporting units, we identified four which, in
our view, required an audit of their complete financial information. The reporting units over which we performed audit procedures
accounted for over 88% of the group’s external revenues and 92% of the group’s profit before tax, amartisation and exceptionals.
All of the audit procedures have been performed by the group engagement team. In addition, the group audit team performed
analytical review procedures over a number of smaller reporting units. This included an analysis of year on year movements, at
a level of disaggregation to enable a focus on higher risk balances and unusual movements. This gave us the evidence we needed
for our opinion on the financial statements as a whole.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our apphcatlon of matériality. We set certain quantltatlve thresholds for matenahty
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent
of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of
misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Financial statements - group

Financial statements -'parent company

Overall materiality

£1,944,000 (2020: £2,400,000).

£706,000 (2020: £950,000).

How we determined it

"5% of a three year average of profit before

tax, amortisation and exceptionals

5% of a three year average of profit before
tax, amortisation and exceptionals -

Rationale for
benchmark applied

We have chosen this as our benchmark as
it is a key performance measure disclosed
to users of the financial statements. This
figure takes prominence in the Annual
Report, as well as the communications to
both the shareholders and the market. we
consider the use of a three year average to

provide a more reflective benchmark that

considers the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on the current year results.
Based on this, the three-year average of
profit before tax, amortisation and
exceptional is considered to be an
appropriate benchmark.

We have chosen this as our benchmark as
it is a key performance measure disclosed
to users of the financial statements. This
figure takes prominence in the Annual
Report, as well as the communications to
both the shareholders and the market. We
consider the use of a three year average to
provide a more reflective benchmark that
considers the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on the current year results.
Based on this, the three-year average of

- profit before tax, amortisation and

exceptional is considered to be an
appropriate benchmark.

For each component in the scope of our group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall grbup materiality. The
range of materiality allocated across components was between £0.5m and £1.7m . Certain components were audited to a local
statutory ‘audit materiality that was also less than our overall group materiality. . .

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggreqate of.uncorrected and

undetected misstatements exceeds overall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the scope of

our audit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures, for example in
determining sample sizes. Our performance materiality was 75% of overall materiality, amounting to £1,458,000 for the group
financial statements and £530,000 for the parent company financial statements.

In determmmg the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the history of mlsstatements risk assessment
and aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount at the upper end of our normal range was
appropnate

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we’ would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £0.1m
(group audit) (2020: £0.1m) and £0.1m (parent company audit) (2020 £0.1m) as well as misstatements below those amounts
_that, in our view, warranted reportlng for qualltatlve reasons.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
‘to the Members of Vp plc (continued)

Conclusions relating to going concern

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group's and the parent company’s ability to continue to-adopt the going concern
basis of accounting included: .

. e We obtained from management their Iatest assessments that support their conclusions with respect to the gorng concern
basis of preparation of the financial statements;

* We evaluated the historical accuracy of the budgeting process to assess the reliability of the- dat;

~e We evaluated management’s base case forecast and severe but plausible downside .scenario and challenged the
adequacy and appropriateness of the underlying assumptions; and

e In conjunction with the above we have also reviewed management’s analysis of both hqurdrty and covenant complrance
to satisfy ourselves that no breaches are anticipated over the period of assessment.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
_ individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the parent company’s ability to continue as 3 going
concern for a.period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authotised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accountrng in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group s and
the parent company's ability to continue as a going concern.

In relation. to the directors’ reporting on how they have applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothrng material to -
add or draw attention to in relation to the directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether the directors consrdered
it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting. .

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to gomg concern are described in the relevant sectrons
of this report. . '

Reporting on other mformatlon ‘ ‘ o 3

" The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an 3udit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.” If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or- material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures. to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or @ material misstatement of the other information. If; based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other mformatron we are required to-report that fact. We have nothing to report based
on these responsibilities.

Wwith respect to the Strategic Report and Drrectors Report we also consrdered whether the drsclosures requrred by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companres Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions and’
matters as described below. :

Strategrc Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the mformatron grven in the Strategrc Report and
Directors' Report for the year ended 31 March 2021 is consrstent wrth the frnancral statements and has been prepared in
accordance-with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and parent company and their environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors' Report.

Directors’ Remunera tion

In our opinion, the part of the Annual Report on Remuneratron 1o be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006.

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the directors’ statements in relation to going concern, longer-term viability and that part of the. .
corporate governance statement relating to the parent company’s compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code specified for our review. Our additional responsibilities with respect to the corporate governance statement as other information
are described in the Reporting on other information section of this report
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of Vp plc (continued)

Corporate governance statement (continued) : ‘ E—

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the corporate
governance statement, included within the governance section of the annual report is materially consistent with the financial
statements and our knowledge obtained during the audit,.and we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation to:-

e The directors’ confirmation that they have carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and principal fisks;

o The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those principal risks, what procedures are |n place to identify emerging
~ risks and an explanation of how these are being managed or mitigated;

e The directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing themn, and their identification of any material uncertainties to the group’s and parent
company’s ability to continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial
statements;

o The directors’ explanation as to therr assessment of the group's and parent company’s prospects the period this assessment
covers and why the period is appropriate; and

¢ The directors’ statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the parent company will be able to continue
in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of its assessment, including any related disclosures drawing
attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

1oday sbarens
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Our review of the directors’ statement regarding the longer-term viability of the group was substantially less in scope than an audit e
and only consisted of making inquiries and considering the directors’ process supporting their statement; checking.that the statement -
is in alignment with the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code; and considering whether the staternent is consistent 2
with the financial statements and our knowledge and understanding of the group and parent company and their environment obtained §
in the course of the audit. ) : _ oy
In addition, based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the g
corporate governance statement is materially consistent with the financial statements and our knowledge obtained during the audit: g
e The directors’ statement that they consider the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable,-
and provides the "information necessary for the members to assess the groups and parent company's position,
performance, business model and strategy; v
o The section of-the Annual Report that describes the review of effectrveness of risk management and internal control §
systems; and =1
o The section of the Annual Report descnbrng the work of the Audit Commrttee g
We have nothing to report in respect of our responsibility to report when the directors’ statement relating to the parent company’s g
3
compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a departure from a relevant provrsron of the Code specified under the Listing =
Rules for review by the auditors. S

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The
directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparatron of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of -
accounting unless the directors either intend to Irqurdate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so. ,

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material -
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements. A '

irreqularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to whrch
our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and -
regulations related to the Listing Rules, non-compliance with competition law and health and safety legistation, and we considered
the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and
regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management’s
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Independent Auditors’ Report
‘to the Members of Vp plc (continued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and
determined that the principal risks were related to deliberate manipulation of results via improper revenue recognition,
management bias in key accounting estimates and posting of inappropriate journal entries to improve the group’s result for the :
period. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

& Discussions with management, including consrderatron of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and
requlation and fraud;.

s Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their srgnrfrcant accountrng estrmates particularly in
relation to the valuation of assets;

» Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations or posted
by unexpected users. Specifically we tested journal entries which increased the group result for the period with unusual
offset entries, and we tested a risk based sample of journal entries |mpact|ng revenue with unusual offset entries to detect
any potentially fraudulent revenue being recognised; and :

» Review of the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation, review of correspondence with the
regulators and review of correspondence with legal advisors.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less fikely to become aware of instances of non-
compliance with laws and requlations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may |nvoIve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or mtentronal misrepresentations, o
through collusion.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data auditing
techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing complete’
populations. We will often seek to target particular itemis for testing based on their size-or risk characteristics. In other cases, we
will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's websrte at:
www.frcorg. uk/aud|torsrespons|b|||t|es This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the parent companys members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpase. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this-report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting 4 : - N

Companles Act 2006 exceptlon reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

e ‘we have not obtained all the information and explanatrons we require for our audit; or A

o adequate accounting records have not been kept by the’ parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or

e the parent company financial statements and the part of the Annual Report on Remuneration to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

FoIIowing the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the members on 15 October 2014 to audit the
. financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 and subsequent financial periods. The perrod of total uninterrupted
engagement is 7 years, covering the years ended 31 March 2015 to 31 March 2021,

i Mievmos

lan Morrison (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP - -
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

" Leeds

8 June 2021
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| Consolldated Income Statement
for the Year Ended 31 March 2021

(292,746)

- (32,975)

2020
£000

362,927

70,181

55,480 -
(16,756).

(1,518)

137,206

2021

_ Note ' £000

Revenue o : S 2 : 307,997
Cost of sales- - . , o 7 (259,887)
Gross profit . - . K 48,110
Administrative expenses o o - (42,427)

Operating profit before amettigation and exceptibnal items 2 ‘. . 30,928
Amortisation and impairment - ] 0 ‘ (10,373)

. Exceptional-items ' , 4 : (14,872)
Operating profit ‘ 3 5683
Financial income - o o 7 : -8
Financial expenses - .. ' L 27 : (7,760)

' Profit before taxation, amortisation and exceptional items ‘ ‘ 23,176
Amortisation and impairment - . 10 - 1(10,373)
Exceptional items . . ® : . A, .4 o ' (t5,072) .

(Loss)/Profit before taxation =~ - ' :  (2,269)
Income tax expense .. ' 4 8 ' (2,332)

. (Loss)/Profit attributable to owners of the parent L (4,601)
Besic.(loss)/earnings per 5p ordinary share : C22 R . (11;62p) -
Diluted (loss)/earnings per 5p ordinary share .22 N : (11.62p)
Dividend per 5p ordmary share-interim pald ' ’ 21 -
Dividend per 5p ordlnary share special pald : 21 . o22.0p

\

\

46,640
(16,756) |

" (1,518)

" 28366

(9,779)

18,587 -

46.92p
46.17p
8.45p
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'Consolldated Statement of Comprehenswe Income

for the Year Ended 31 /\/\arch 2021 - S <
R L L 7 aom 2020
‘ ' Note . £000 " £000
(Loss)/Proflt for the year ) ) : o . _(4,601) ‘ ‘ 1 8,587,'

Other comprehenswe mcome/(expense)

items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of defined benefit pension scheme: . e 25 o ' (795) 368
Tax on items taken to other comprehensive income Co - -8 56 ‘ - . .86
Impact of tax rate change - AR 8 . 47

‘Items that may be subsequently reclass:fled to proflt or. loss

- . Foreign exchange translatnon difference ' ‘ C ] . - 439 _ (1,045)
Effective portion of changes in faibr vélue of casvh'flow hedges ' -. R _554 . o '(48'2)«
Total other comprehensive income/(e-xpens‘e) ' . " 284 | R o (1,026)
Total comprehensive (expense)/mcome for the year ' R A ‘ ' ' ' (4,317) 1%,561,

attnbutable to owners of the parent
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the Year Ended 31 I\/\arch 20271

(ajpital . ~ Foreign - - Non-
share Redemption =~ Share Hedging Currency  Retained controlling Total B §
‘ Capital Reserve Premium Reserve Translation  Earnings Interest Equity B
"Note  £000 £000 £000  £000 - £000 £000 £000  £000 al
. . . ; =
Equity at 1 April 2019 . 2,008 301 16,192 (323) (780) 151,460 “27 168,885 g
- Total comprehensive income for ' - oo - (482) . (1,045) 19,088 - 17,561
- the year (see page 64) : ’ : . , ' : : R
Tax movements to equity . . 8 - - - - - - (648) - (648)
“Impact of tax rate change 8 - - - - - - B3 - (33)
Share option charge in the year o - - - - - . 758 ) - 758 2
Net movement relating to . ‘ - - - - - (2,396). . - (2,396) 2
shares held by vVp Employee Trust n o . ' ' ' . . 2
Dividend to shareholders 27 - e - - (12,055) © - (12,055)
Effect of changes in - -1 C e - - - - (2,151) - (2,151)
accounting standards ’ ’ o :
. Total change in equity during the year - Ce - (482) (1,045) ' 2,563 - 1,036 %
’ &
=2
- - Equity at 31 March 2020 . 2,008 301 16,192 (805)  (1,825) 154,023 27 - 169,921 ,3
. and 1 April 2020 ' S ‘ : B o - s
" Total comprehensive mcome/(expense) : - - - 584 439 (5,340) - (4,317)
for the year.(see page 64) o : -
- Tax movements-fo equity 8 - - - - - 165 - 165 ’,%-
Share option charge in the year - - - - - 1,098 - 1,098 g
Net movement relating to ’ - e - - - (5,076) - (5,076) g
shares held by Vp Employee Trust . - g
Dividend to shareholders 21 - - - - - (8,674) - (8,674) §
. . . - =)
“Total change in equity during the year - . R - 584 . 439 (17,827) - (16,804)
' Equity as at 31 March 2021 2,008 301 16,192 (221)  (1,386) 136,196 27 153,117
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| Parent Company Statement of Changes in Eqmty

for the Year Ended 31 I\/\arch 2021

A . Capital : : '
Share Redemption Share  Hedging Hive Up Retained Total
-Capital Reserve Premium Reserve Reserve  Earnings .Equity
Note £000 £000 - -~ £000 £000 £000 " £000 £000
Equity at 1 April 2019 . o - - 2,008 301 16,192 (323) 8,156 40,488 66,822
Total comprehensive income for ’ - - - (482) 2,806 2,324
the year : o ' _ B
-Tax movements to equity - 4 , - - - - - (648). (648)
fmpact of tax rate change . - - - - - S (33 (33)
Share option charge in the year - - - - - - 758 758
. Net movement relating to. B - - - - : (2,396)  (2,396)
shares held by vp Employee Trust ’ : )
Dividend to shareholders 1L - : - - - (12,055) (12,055)
Effect of changes in - - - - - - (613) (613)
accounting standards : . "
Total change in equity duting the year ' - - - (482) - (12,181)  (12,663)
'Equity at 31 March 2020 ) T - 2,008 . 301 16,192 (805) 8,156 28,307 54,159
and 1 April 2020 o . ’ . : .
Total comprehensive income for o - - - 584 - 454 1,038
the year : A
~Tax movements to equity . - - - - - 165 165
Share option charge in the year o - - - - - 1,098 1,098
Net movement relating to .~ - - - - - (5,076)  (5,076)
shares held by Vp Employee Trust ) . B .
Dividend to shareholders o 21 : - - - - (8,674)  (8,674)
Total change in equity during the year o - - 584 . (12,033) (11,449)
Equity at 31 March 2021 . ' 2,008 301 16,192 (221) 8,156 16,274 42,710
/..
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
“at 31 March 2021 o ) - S

. . . . 2021 - 2020
NET ASSETS - ‘ " Note | .  £000 .. £0600
_'Non-cutrent assets ' o S @
Property, plant and equipment : o 9 ' 233,912 ' 247,761 g
Intangible assets A N " 64,366 74,267 &
Right of use assets . o 11 53,311 i 68,566 %?
Employee benefits A 25 . 2,175 . 3,018 - -
Total non-current assets ) 353,764 . 393,612
Current assets : '
Inventories : - - 3. , 7,342 . © 9,073
Trade and other receivables 14 - 66,546 . 84,263 §
Income tax recéivable - ) c S 817 - 1,003 E
Cash and cash equivalents L . 15 : 15,917 ‘ 20,094 3
Total current assets : 90,622 : 114,433
Total assets ' : 444,386 508,045
Current liabilities ‘ ' — ) : ) -
. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - . 16 ' (73,009) - . (6,161) §
Lease liabilities ' 1 : (14,909) - (17,692) g
Trade and other payables - 18 (86,163) - (75,186) g
Total current liabilities o ’ : (174,081) o (99,039) %
. . , —_ v —_— ]
Non-current liabilities o , : S . ’
Ihterest-Bearing loans and borrowings ' . 16 o (64,814) T (173,739) —
Lease liabilities - 11 © (41,980) (54,158) 2
" Deferred tax liabilities o ‘ 19 o (o394 . (11188) g
Total non-current liabilities - o : . ) (117,188) ' (239,085) g
Total liabilities ' o S (291,269) (338,124) EX
. Net assets A N o : _ 153,117 : 169,921 3
o
EQUITY _ . - .
Issued share capital 20 - ' 2,008 2,008
" Capital redemption reserve - . : : 301 : 301
Share premium ‘ \.\ A 16,192 - 16,192
Foreign curréncy translation reserve - ' N ) (1,386) ST . (1,825)
Hedging reserve . - o . ' @21y . (805).
Retained earnings - ‘ : C 136,196 154,023
Total equity attributable to i ' .
" equity holders of the parent’ - o . ' 153,090 - . 169,894
Non-controlling' interest ] ) . 27 27 "
_ Total equity _ ' - : ' 153,117 ' 169,921

The financial staiem’ents on-pages 63 to 108 were apbroved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 8 June 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

Jeremy Pilkington - Allison Bainbridge
Chairman o ) . : Director

Company number: 481833 .

Vp plc Annual Repdrt and Accounts 2021 vpplc.éom . . . o © 67



Parent Company Balance Sheet
at 31 March 2021 -

2021 ' 2020

NET ASSETS - ‘ . Note £000 . ' £000
Non-current assets o : N ,
Property, plant and equipment } . Co 9 ) 112,082 . 118,638
. Intangible assets S ' 10 9,547 - 10,376
Investments in subsidiaries - 12 71,884 71,884
Right of use assets 11 : 11,255 o 14,000
Employee benefits ‘ .25 2,657 ' - .3,353
Trade and other receivables , A 14 47,473 ' : 80,626
Total non-current assets , B ' o ’ . 254,898 ; 298,877
Current assets : : . ,
Inventories S 4 13 ' 2,258 2,548
Trade and other. receivables T ' 14 .. 19,279 ] 24,376
income tax receivable : ' Co - 642 1,508
Cash and cash equivalents 15 A 5,112 . 6,011
Total current assets ' ) o ) ) 27,291 ) o " 34,443
_ Total assets ) , B 282,189 » 333,320
" Current liabilities _ : -
" Interest-bearing loans and borrowings . 16 ' (72,951) . (6,023)
_Lease liabilities : _ , 1M ) - (4,2486) - : (5,216)
Trade and other payables : , . 18 - : (61,438) L (58,998)
Total current liabilities : "~ (138,635) : (70,237)
Non-current liabilities ' .
‘Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 16 ’ (64,777) . (173,644)
Deferred tax liabilities _ ' 19 (9,708) : " (9,751)
Lease liabilities ' : 1 - (7,662) 4 - (9,584)
Trade and other payables ' o 18 : (18,697) : (15,945)
Total non-current liabilities : ' ‘ _ (100,844) © (208,924)
Total liabilities S - (239,479) - (279,161)
Net assets 42,710 ' 54,159
"EQUITY
Capital and reserves S
Issued share capital ' : 20 2,008 » 2,008
"Capital redemption reserve : L 301 4 301
Share premium ‘ . o . 16,192 . : 16,192
Hedging reserve -~ . : . ; (221) ' (805)
Hivé‘up reserve _ 8,156" . 8156
Retained earnings _ , ' ‘ o
At the beginning of the year . : - 28,307 40,488
Profit for the financial year ' ' S 1,001 ' T 2,560
Other"changes in retained earnings N (13,034) ' (14,747)
At the end of the year - , ‘ 16,274 28307
Total equity o : ‘ » 42,710 , ' 54,159

_The financial statements on pages 63 to 108 were approved and auihorised for issue by

the Boardmnﬂ June 2021 -and were signed on its behalf by:‘ A - .

" Jeremy Pilkington . Allison Bainbridge
. Chairman ) Director

Company number: 481833
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Censolldated Statement of Cash Flows
for the Year Ended 31 IV\arch 2021

(

. . 2021 . ' 2020
"~ " Note . g000 - ‘ £000
Cash flows from operating actlvmes T 4 ’ ' » @
(Loss)/Profit before taxation - T : ' : L (2,269) S 28366 E’
Adjustments for: ' . . . : o »
Share based payment charges’ . A . S 1,098 758 8
Depreciation . A S 9 _ '44,980 . T 46,160
Depreciation of right of use assets ' o Y ' 20,752 ‘ 22,177 S
- Amortisation andEimpair'ment . 10 o 10,373 . . 16,756
Release of arrangement fees S 215 L -
Financial expense o ' . 7,760 ’ - 8,892 e
 Financial income o S ® (52) §
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - . ‘ (4,263) ‘ (8,939) ®
* Operating cash flow before changes in I 78,638 - 418
working capital and provisions : ) : : I
Decrease/(increase) in.inventories ' ‘ , ' B 1,731 o (1,215)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other.receivables - o ' o ‘ az7nr ~ (3,890) ;;="
"Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payébles ' ’ . - 14,450 . . (8,898) é_
Cash generated from operations C o . ' : 112,536 ‘ 100,115 &
CInterest paid - - A ‘ " (4,723) O (4,458) g
Interest element of finance lease réntal payments - (38) (92) 2
" Interest received . . I 7 ' - 10
Income taxes paid . : - ‘ ' \ ‘ - (2867) - . (10,694) .
Net cash generated from operating activities o m o 84,885 §
‘ : . . . _— =z
. &
Cash flows from investing activities . ' : ) g
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment : - : ‘ 17,536 o 21,381 g
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ' , . (46,582) <. (54,686) =
Acquisition of businesses and subsidiaries (net of cash acquued) . 26 S - . ‘ (3;325), . >
Net cash used in mvestlng activities : B '. . W) W)
Cash flows from financing.activities ) . ‘ )
Purchase of own shares by Employee Trust A ' (5,076). - (2,396)
Repayment of borrowings A : ' (53,000) : ~(94,000)
New loans _ , ‘ : 17,000 ) 89,000
- Payment of lease liabilities - a ' : ’ - (24,107) - : (26,530)
Dividends paid : . S Y T (8,674) (12,055)
Net cash used in financing activities I (73,857) T (45,981)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents. ' v 2012 2,274
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held o ) (242) : (259)
Cash and cash equivalents net of overdrafts as at the beginning of the year 14,147 ' . 12,132

Cash and cash equivalents net of overdrafts as 15 . 15,917 - 14,147
at the end of the year ' : ' ' '
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Parent Company Statement of Cash Flows
for the Year £nded 31 March 2021

, 202i - 2020
A Note : £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities 4 o ' " '
Profit before taxation A - S T 2,518 ‘ 6,415
Adjustments for: o ) o '
Share-based payment charges : ; : ' . 1,098 . o 758
Depreciation - . ’ 4 - 9 © 13,640 13,792
Depreciation of right of use assets ' Mmoo ) 7,454 ' , . 6,921 -
Amortisation and impairment : ’ . ‘4 10 - 829 A o 11,722
Release of arrangement fees ‘ ‘ o ' S 215 ‘ -
Financial expense ‘ - S ' 3,552 3,298
Financial income ‘ o - ‘ ' - - l , (10)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment ' o A . (989) ‘ A (2,447)
Operating cash flow before changesin - o 28,317 40,449 .
working capital and provisions : : -
Decrease/(increase) in‘inventori:es . , : 290 . - (658)
Decrease in trade and other receivables ' o ' : 40,298 . . 19,418
Increase in trade and other payables ' ’ . 5874 i 6,120 .
Cash generated f}om_operations 4 B : o 74,779 . 65329
CInterest paid . S ' ' (4,723) o (4,496)
Interest element of finance. Iease rental payments . ) - . ' . (32). a _(76)
Interest received B R : 10
Income taxes paid- o o _ (651) o (4,080)
Net cash generated from operating activities A_ , ' - 69,373 , © 56,687
Cash flows from investing activities L
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment o ' : 9,334 © 15,825
Purchase of property, plant and equipment. . : : ’(15,376): T (27,932)
Investment in‘new/subsidiary L 26 T ' - S (3,325)
Net cash used in investing activities ’ . i S (6,042) S (15,432)
Cash flow from financing activities . : .
Purchase of own shares by Emp'loyee'Tr'ust L S (5,076) o (2,396)
Repayment of borrowings o ) : : (53,000) (94,000)
New loans . o R 17,000 : © 89,000
" Payment of lease liabilities - . : o (8,533) ) (8,244) .
Dividends paid : . 21 ' (8,674) (12,055) -
Net cash used intinancing activities - ' A ' (58,283 - . (27,695)
_ Net increase.in cash and cash equivalents : . . 5,048 s . 13,560
Cash and cash equivalents net of overdrafts as at the beginning of the year 64 o (13,496)
Cash and cash equivalents net of overdraft as 15 .- . 5,112 C S 64

at the end of the year
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Notes

(forming part of the financial statements)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- Statement of compliance

vp plc is a public limited company (hmlted by shares) which is listed on the London Stock Exchange and incorporated and domiciled in

Great Britain. These consolidated Financial Statements of Vp plc for the year ended 31 March 2021, consolidate those of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to"as the “Group”). The Parent Company’s Financial Statements present information about the
Company as a separate entity and not about the Group.

Basis of preparation :
Both the Parent Company Financial Statements and the Group Financial Statements have been prepared and approved by the d|rectors in

accordance with International Accounting Standards in. conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 (IFRS) and the applicable -

legal requirements of the Companies Act 2006. In addition to complying with international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirernents of the Companies Act 2006, the Financial Statements also comply with International financial reporting standards adopted pursuant
. to Regulation (EC) No 1606,/2002 as it applies in. the European Union. In publishing the Parent Company Financial Statements here together
with the Group Financial Statements, the Company has taken advantage of the exemptions in s408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present

its individual income statement; statement of comprehensive income and related notes that form part of these approved Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements ate presented in sterling, rounded to the nearest thousand. They are prepared on a going concern basis (further
details are provided in the Directors’ Report) and historic cost basis except that derivative financial instruments and cash settled share
. options are stated at fair vaIue :

Accounting policies and restatements

The Group’s and Company’s accounting policies are set out below and the accounting policies have been applied consnstently to all penods
presented in these consolidated Financial Statements. There were no changes to IFRSs or IFRSIC mterpretatlons that have had a material
impact on the Group for the year ended 31-March 2021.

Future standards )

" Ceftain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 March-2021 reporting period
and have not been early adopted by the Group. These standards are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current
or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions. These standards are as follows: :

e Amendment to IFRS 16 Leases Covid-19 related rent concessions (effective 1 June 2020) )

* Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (effective 1 January 2021)
e Amendment to IFRS 3, Business combinations (effective 1 January 2020) ‘

e Amendments to tAS 1 and IAS 8 on the definition of material (effective 1 January 2020)

" - Basis of consolidation

‘Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power, dlrectly or indirectly, to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to.obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that

_ presently-are exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The Financial Statements of subsndlanes are included in the consolidated

Financial Statements from the date that control commences unul the date that control ceases.

Property, plant and equipment’
" Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or deemed cost Iess accumulated deprecnanon and impairment losses.

Certain items of property, plant and equipment that had been revalued to fair value on or prior to 1 April 2004, the date of transition to
adopted IFRSS, are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amount at the date of that revaluatlon as permitted by
the exemption in IFRS 1.

Leases under which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Plant and

* equipment acquired by way of finance leases is stated at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Operating lease payments
are accounted for as described in the accounting pollcy on operating leases. '

Where the information is available, assets acquired via acqmsmons are recorded in the accounting records at fair vaIue 0N a gross cost
and accumulated depreciation basis. The fair value of the acquired praperty, plant and equipment is therefore the net of the cost and
accumulated depreciation shown in the fixed asset note. The Group considers it-appropriate to show this on a gross basis as the cost
gives a better indication of the earning capacity of the hire fleet.

Depreciation is provided by the Group to write off the cost or deemed cost less estlmated residual vaIue (where appropriate) of tangible
fixed assets using the following annual rates:

Land and Buildings - Freehold buildings - 2% straight line
Land and Buildings - Leasehold improvements - Term of lease .

" Rental equipment \ T - 7% - 33% straight line depending on asset type' . ®
Motor vehicles - . - 25% straight line '
Other - Computefs ‘ - 339% straight line
Other - Fixtures, fittings and other equipment - 10% - 20% straight line

Estimates of residual values are reviewed at least annually and adjustments made as appropriate. Any profit generated on disposal is

credited to cost of sales. No depreciation is prowded on treehold land. p

uodax nbarens

aNIBLIBA00

Vp plc Annual Report and Accounts 2021 vpplc.com

| HONPLLHON 1ADINHAIPLC l



Notes
1. SIGNIFICANT A((OUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill .
For acquisitions on or after 1 Apnl 2010, the Group measures goodwill at the acquusmon date as:

o The fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
o The recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
e The fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree; less
. ® The net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the ldenttllable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

Costs refated to the acquisition are expensed to the mcome statement as incurred.

In respect of acquisitions between 1 April 2004 and 1 April 2010 goodwnll represents the difference between:the cost of the acquisitions
and the fair value of identifiable net assets and contmgent Ilabllmes acquured Costs related to the acquisition were capltallsed as part of
the cost of the acquisition.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated |mpa|rment losses and is mcluded on the balance sheet as an mtangnble asset. It is
allocated to cash generating units ‘and is not amortised, but tested annually for-impairment against expected future cash flows from the
cash generating unit to which it is allocated.

The Group has chosen not to restate busiriess combinations prior to 1 April 2004 on an IFRS basis as permitted by IFRS 1. Goodwill is.
included on the basis of deemed cost for the transactions which represent its carrying value at the date of transition to adopted IFRSs.
other mtangtble assets

Intangible-assets other than goodwill that are acqunred by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is included within cost of sales within the Income Statement. The rate of amortisation attempts to writé-off the cost
of the intangible asset over its estimated useful life usmg the following rates: :

Customer relationships - up to 10 years
Supply agreement - the initial term of the agreement .
Trade names - over the estimated initial period of usage, normally 10 years

No amortisation is provided where trade names are expected to have an indefinite life.

: Impalrment

.The carrying amounts of non financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. if any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment 1oss is recognised whenever the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised through the
Income Statement. For goodwull and assets that have an indefinite useful life the recoverable amount is tested at each balance sheet
date. .

Investments
In the Company’s Financial Statements, investments in subsidiary underlaklngs are stated at cost less |mpa|rment

Dividends received and recelvable are credited to the Companys lncome Statement to the extent that the Company has the right to
receive payment

' lnventones

. inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and sellmg expenses. For slow movmg or obsolete items, where net reallsable
value is lower than cost, necessary provision is made.

Raw materials and consumables stock is held primarily for the fepair and maintenance of fleet assets. Goods for resale relate to stock
held for sale. The basis of expensing stock is on a first-in first-out basis. :

Trade and other receivables -

Trade and other receivables are stated at their due amounts less impairment losses. The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Trade receivables are written
“off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The loss allowance for trade receivables are based on assumptions about fisk
of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions based on the Group’s past hlstory, eX|st|ng '
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Cash and cash equwalents

(Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purposes ol the Statement of
Cash Flows.
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Notes = | - o | 3
1. SIGNIFICANT A((OUNTING POI.I(IES (contlnued)

Interest bearing loans and borrowings :
* Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the Group becomes party to the contractual provision of the —

instrument. Interest bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings

are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemptron value being recognised in the Income Statement over the .

periods of the borrowings on an effective interest basis. §

Taxation : 2

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year and takes into account full provrsron for deferred taxation due to temporary ES

differences. ) - , S . . -

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method to provide for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of | p—

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided

is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, usrng tax fates enacted or

substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. @

<

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to. the. extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the §
~asset can be utilised. Deferred tax asséts are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be - 3

realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are’ not discounted and are offset where amounts will be settled on a net basis as a result of

a legally enforceable rrght ' ] .

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, usrng rates enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adJustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. A tax provision is recognised where there is a probable requrrement to settle, in the
future, an obligation based on a past event. .

Trade and other payables . b
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

I
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Employee beneflts pensmns .
Obligations for contrrbutrons to defined contrrbutron pension plans are recognrsed as an expense, in the income statement as incurred.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of its defined benefit pension plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value, and the fair value of any plan assets is-deducted. The liability discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on AA credit
rated bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of the Groups obligations. The.calcufation is performed by a qualified
actuary using the prorected unit method.

The Group’s net obligation is recorded as a balance sheet asset or Irabrlrty and the actuarial gains'and losses assocrated with this balance
sheet item are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as they arise. Actuarial gains and losses occur when actuarial
assumptions differ from those previcusly envisaged by the actuary or when asset returns differ from the liability discount rate.”

- UDIeULIOJU JAPIOYRIRYS

An asset for the surplus has been recognised on the basis that it is recoverable prior to wind up of the scheme however the balance
sheet position is sensitive to small fluctuations in the assumptions made.

when' the benefits of the plan are’improved, the pioportion of the increased benefit relating to past service by employees is recognised
as an expense in the Income Statement at the earlier of the date when a plan amendment or curtailment occurs and the date when an
entity recognises related restructuring costs or termination benefits. :

D|V|dend
Dividends are recognrsed as a liability in the period in which they are approved however interim dividends are recognised on a pard basis.

Share (apltal
Ordinary shares are classified as equrty

Employee trust shares .
The Group has an employee trust (the Vp Employee Trust) for the warehousrng of shares in suppoit of awards granted by the Company
under its various share option schemes. The Group accounts include the assets and related liabilities of the Vp Employee Trust. In both
the Group and Parent Company accounts the shares in the Group held by the employee trust are treated as treasury shares, are held at
cost, and presented in the balance: sheet as a deduction from retamed earnings. The shares are ignored for the purpose of calculating
the Groups earnings per share. ,

Treasury shares

When share capital_recognised as equity is repurchased and classified as treasury shares the amount of the consrderatron paid is
recognised as a deduction from equity. When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognlsed as an
increase.in equity, and the resultmg surplus or deficit on the transaction is transferred to/trom retained earnings.
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Notes

1. SIGNIFICANT A((OUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments .

Interest rate and exchange rate swaps are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as speculative investments. At inception of
the hedge relationship, the Group documents the economic relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items. The Group
documents its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions. The Group determines the hedge
effectiveness of its interest and exchange rate swaps-at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective
effectiveness assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

Interest rate and exchange rate swaps are accounted for in the balance sheet at fair value and any movement in fair value is taken to the
Income Statement, unless the swap is designated as an effective hedge of the variability in cash flows, an “effective cash flow hedge”.

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as an effective cash flow hedge, the effective part of any gain or loss on the
derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in equity. If a hedge of a forecasted transaction subsequently results in the
- recognition of a financial asset or 3 financial liability, the- associated qains and losses that were recognised directly in equity are
reclassified into profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss (i.e.
when interest income or expense is recognised). For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding policy statement, the
associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and recognised in the Income Statement in the same period or periods during
which the hedged item affects profit or loss.

when a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or éxercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge relationship but
the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulatlve gain or loss at that point remains in equity and is recognised in
accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount the Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the balance sheet
date, taking into account current and future interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties. The fair value of
the exchange rate swaps is the estimated amount the Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the balance sheet date taking
account of current and future exchange rates. The carrying value of hedge mstruments is presented within other payables or other assets
as appropriate. .

Financial guarantee contracts :

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to quarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its Group, the
Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such. In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee
contract as a contlngent liability until such time as it becomes probable that the Company WI|| be required to make a payment under the
guarantee. .

Revenue
Revenue represents the amounts (excludlng Value Added Tax) derived from the hire of equment and the provision of goods and
services to third. party customers during the year. Revenue from equipment hire, which is the vast majority of Group revenues, is
accounted for under IFRS 16. Revenue is recognised from the start of hire through to the end of the agreed hire period predominantly on a
time apportioned basis. Revenue for services and sales of goods are accounted for under IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. The majority of
services provided are short term and only an immaterial proportion bridge a financial period end. Any increases or decreases in estimated
revenues or costs arising from changed circumstances are reflected in profit in the period-in which they become known by management.
Customers are invoiced on an agreed upon basis and consideration is payable when invoiced. Revenue from sale of goods primarily
relates to consumables and new machine sales. Revenue is recognised when a Group entity sells a consumable to the customer or when
controt of the new machine has transferred ownership to the buyer upon delivery. Depending on the-type of sale, a receivable is.
“recognised when the goods are delivered or due immediately. As the Group does not in the course of its ordinary activities routinely
dispose of equipment held for hire, any sales proceeds are shown as a reduction in cost of sales. Below summarises the dlsaggregatlon
of revenue from contracts wnh customers from the total revenue disclosed in the consolidated income statement:

2021 . 2020

UK International . Total UK International Total .

£000 o £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Equipment hie . 211,515 20,043 " 231,558 249,248 24,276 273,524
Services , 46,793 4930 51,723 52,299 6,270 58,569
Sales of goods o 23,001. © 1,715 24,716 29,458 1,376 30,834
Total revenue 281,309 26,688 307,997 331,005 - 31,922 362,927
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Notes

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) ‘

~ Share based payments

The fair value of share options is charged to the Income Statement based upon thelr fa|r value at the date of grant with a corresponding
increase in equity. The charge is recognised evenly over the vesting period of the optlons The liabilities for cash settled share based payment
arrangements are measured at fair value.

The fair values are calculated using an appropriate option pricing model. The Group’s Approved, Unapproved and Save As You Earn (SAYE)
schemes have been valued using the Black-Scholes model and the Income Statement charge is adjusted to reflect the expected number of
options that will vest, based on expected levels of performance against non-market based conditions and the expected number of employees
leaving the Group. The fair values of the Group’s Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) and Share Matching scheme are calculated using a discounted
grant price model, again adjusted for expected performance against non-market based conditions and employees leaving the Group. | I
Amendments to IFRS 2, “Share Based Payments”, clarified the treatment of cancelled options, whereby if a grant of equity instruments is
cancelled the Group shall account for the cancellation as an acceleration of vesting and shall recognise immediately the amount that would
have been recognised over the remainder of the vesting period. :

1Joday nbajens

Any cash settled options are valued at their fair value as calculated at each period end, taking account of performance criteria and expected
numbers of employees leaving the Group and. the liability is reflected in the balance sheet within accruals.

IURUIIA0Y

- The parent company recharges the subsidiary entities W|th the fair value of the share options relatlng to the employees associated with that
entity. :

The Group’s results are subject to fluctuations caused by the cash settled share options.and national insurance costs on LTIPs and unapproved
share options as these are required to be re-measured at each reporting date based on the Company share price. Changes in the Company’s
share price during the reporting period therefore impact the charge to the Income Statement for cash settled options and national insurance,
including vested but not exercised options, as well as unvested options. A movement of 10 pence in share price would |mpact the charge to
the Income Statement by £36,000 (2020: £36,000).
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Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded usmg the rate of exchange rulmg at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the gains or
losses on translation are included in the Income Statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are stated at fair value are translated
to sterling at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date the values were determined.

The assets and liabilities. of foreign operations are translated at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The revenues
and expenses of foréign operations are translated at rates approximating to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of the
transactions. Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation are recognised directly in equity. :

UOIRWIOJU| J3P|OURIRYS

Leases : :

The Group holds leases for various properties, equipment and vehicles. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed penods of 1to 10
. years, but may have extension options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for bofrowing purposes ’

Until 1 April 2019, leases of property, plant and .equipment were classified as either operatmg leases or finance leases. Payments made

.under operating leases were charged to the Consolidated Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. From 1 April
2019, leases are recognised as a right of use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use
by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit over the lease
period. The right of use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the tease term on 3 straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from 3 lease are initially measured on 3 present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value
of fixed payments less any incentives receivable, variable lease payments that are based on a specified index or a rate, the exercise price
of a.purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option. Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also
included in the measurement of the fiability. A separate provision for onerous leases is therefore no longer required.”

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used. This incremental borrowing rate is the interest
rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value over a similar term and with
-similar security-to the right of use asset in a similar economic environment. To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group, .
where possible uses fecent third-party financing received by the lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in the financing

* conditions since third party-financing was received; adjusts for credlt risk as required; and makes adjustments specmc to the lease for
example to country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and firtance cost. The finance cost.is charged to profit or loss oveér the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
While the Group re-values its land and buildings that are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do s0 for
the right-of-use bmldmgs held by the Group. )

Payments assooated with short term leases and leases of low value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in the ~
Consolidated Income Statement. Short term leases are certain leases W|th a lease term of 12 months 6r less. Low value assets comprise
certain IT equipment and small items of office equipment.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases across the Group. In determining the lease term, management
considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination
‘option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to
be extended (or not terminated). The assessment is reviewed if 3 significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects the assessment and that. is within the control of the Group This reassessment could result in a recalculation of the lease I|ab|||ty
and a material ad;ustment to the assouated balances.

Until 31 March 2019, payments made under operating leases were retognised in the Income Statement on 3 straight line basus over the
term of the lease. :

Exceptional items
The business. classifies certain events as excepnonal due to their size and nature where it feels that separate dlsclosure would help
understand the underlying performance of the business, Further discussion is dlsclosed in note 4 '

Govemment grants :

Government grants for furlough income and similar income. are not recognised until there is reasonable assuyrance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and the income will be received. Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are mtended to
compensate. : :

Accounting estimates and judgements : -

The key-accounting policies, estimates and judgements used in preparing the Group’s and Company’s Annual Report and Accounts for the
year ended 31 March 2021 have been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. The areas of principal accounting uncertainty
- that could have a significant impact in the next 12 months are estimated useful lives of rental assets, including residual values and
assumptions relating to pension costs. In addition the testing for impairment of goodwill and other intangibles requires significant estimates
and judgements relating to cash flows, and the valuation of the fair value of acquired net assets also requires 5|gn|f|cant estimates and
judgements.: : .

‘The Group continually reviews depreciation rates and using its judgement adopts-a best estimate policy in assessing estimated useful

~ economic lives of fleet assets (see page 71). The rate of technological and legislative change is factored into the estimates, together with
thie diminution in value through use and time. The Group also takes account of the proflt or loss it makes on the disposal of fixed assets
in determining whether depreciation policies are appropriate. :

The key assumptions and sensitivities applied to pensions are disclosed in note 25. The pen5|on scheme position is derived usmg actuanal
assumptions for inflation, discount rates and assumed life expectancy which are inherently uncertain. Due to the relative size of the
scheme, small changes to these assumptions can give rise to a significant impact on the pension scheme position reported in the Balance
Sheet. A pension asset for the Vp plc pension scheme has been recognlsed as there is an uncondmonal right to a refund of the surplus
prior to wiriding up the scheme. :

Goodwill and other intangibles are tested for impairment by reference to the expected estimated cash generated by the business unit.
This is deemed to be the best approximation of value, but is sub;ect to the same uncertainties as the cash flow forecast being used.
Further details are provided in note 10.

'The accounting for acquisitions requires the-Group to use its judgement and use estimates to determme the fair value of net assets
acquired, particularly intangible assets. Further details are provuded in note 26.
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‘Notes

2. SEGMENT REPORTING

‘ Segment reporting is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical segments The Groups reportable segments are_the
two units, UK and International. This has been determined on the way in which financial information is organised and reported to the -
Group Board who are responsible for the key operating decisions of the Group, allocating resources and assessing performance and hence
are the chief operating decision makers. Total external revenue in 2021 was £308.0 million (2020: £362.9 million). Inter-segment pricing
is determined on an arm’s length basis. Included within revenue is £24.7 million (2020: £30.8 million) of revenue relating to the sale of
goods, the rest of the revenue is service related including hire revenue. Segment results, assets and liabilities include items duectly

. attributable to 3 segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Geographical segments

Revenue is generated mainly within'the United ngdom with no single overseas geographical area accounting for more than 10% of
the Group revenue. Total overseas revenue was £50.0 million (2020: £58.2 million), including overseas revenue generated by the UK
based divisions. The Group has one operating branch of a UK registered company operating |n another country wrthm the EU, namely a
branch of Hire Station L|mrted operating in the Nethérlands. .

Business segments o ST o ‘ i ' Operating -
' : ' profit before

- . ' amortisation and"_

Revenue - exceptional items

2021 ' 12020 2021 2020
External _Internal Total _External - Internal Total !
Revenue - Revenue Revenue _ Revenue Revenue Revenue . ’
£000 £000 £000 £000 . £000 . £000 £000 £000
UK o 281,309 - 5,019 286,328 . 331,005 6,109- 337,114 30,266 53,672
International 26,688 - 26,688 31,922 _ ' - 31,922 - 662 1,808
© 307,997 5019  -313,016 362,927 - 6,109 369,036 30,928 - 55,480

A reconciliation of operating profit before amortisation and exceptional items to profit before tax is provided in the Income Statement.

Assets Liabilities ) Net Assets

2021 " 2020 ' 2021 2020 2021 | 2020
S £000 - £000 £000 £000°° . £000 £000
UK _ 407,184 . 468,465 280,411 328791 - 126,773 139,674
International 37,202 39,580 - 10,858 9,333 . 26,344 30,247
' 444,386 508,045 291,269 338,124 153,117 169,921
Acquired _ Capital . Depreciation, Amortisation

Assets - - . Expenditure and Impairment
2021 . 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 . £000 £000 £000 £000
UK o _ o - 3,344 " .39,308 47,628 . 50,157 58,346
International ' - - 4,896 8711 5,196 - 4,570
- 3,344 44,204 . 56,339 55,353 . 62,916

Acquired assets relate pnmanly to tangible and intangible assets acquired as a result of acquisitions. Cap|tal expenditure relates to

tangible fixed assets acquired in the normal course of business.

Included within segmental assets above is goodwill and indefinite life intangibles in relation to the following segments: UK £41.7 million
(2020: £48.7 million), International £2.1 million (2020: £1.9 million). .

Included within segmental assets above is non-current assets in relatlon to the following segments: UK £323.2 mllllon (2020: £362.9
m|II|on) Internatronal £30.6-million (2020: £30 7 million).
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Notes

3. OPERATING PROFIT 2021 : 2020

: , ‘ : . . : S £000 £000
. Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting): ’
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets o 10,373 - - 16,756
Deprecratron of property, plant and equipment ~ owned ' o 44,980 a - 46,160
- - leased o S - o -
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment ’ : T (4,263) ' - (8,939)
Amounts paid to auditors: | ' ’ ' .
Audit fees - parent company annual accounts L . | 500 . . 145
~ other group companies , _ o 70 . 115
~ total group o . S ©y, 570 260
Audit related assurance services T A . ’ 21 ’ E 13

. Amounts paid to the Company’s auditors in respect of services to the Company, other than audit of the Companys Financial Statements
have not been disclosed as the information is only required to be disclosed on a consolidated basis.

Furlough payments of £8. 6m received from the Government were passed through to employees during the year. These have been treated
as a credit against employee costs in the Income Statement.

Audit fees include £60,000 in 2021 which relates to the 2019/_20 audit due to the impact of Covid-19 on the audit.

4. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

" . During the year, the Group incurred £15.1 million (2020 £15 mrllron) of exceptional costs in relation to regulatory review costs, restructunng
costs and Covid-19 covenant amendments.

The Competition and’ Markets Authority (CMA) announced on 17 December 2020 that three businesses, including. a part of the Group's
. excavation support system business (Groundforce), were involved in anti- competrtrve behaviour.- Consequently, the CMA imposed a penalty-
of £11.2 million on the Group.

In April 2019, the CMA had announced its provisional findings and as required by accouriting standard IAS 37,.an exceptronal cost of £4.5.
million was recorded in the Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Although, the Board fundamentally disagrees with-the conclusions of the CMA it was determined after careful consrderatron that on balance
it would be in the best interests of the Group not to appeal the decision and to pay the penalty when it became due in February 2021. After
utilising the provision already held, a further exceptional item of £6.8m has been recognrsed regarding the penalty. The Group also incurred
professional fees of £0.7m relatrng to this matter which are also classified as exceptional. -

During the period the Group also incurred £7.4 million of exceptronal costs in relation to restructuring costs across the Group, arising pnmanly

from required cost mitigation actions as a result of the Covid 19 impact on business revenues. .

As noted in the previous year's accounts, in May 2020 the Group incurred financing expenses of £0.2m relating to precautronary Covid-19

covenant amendments. . .

- In the prior year.ended 31 March 2020, the Group incurred £1 5 million of exceptronal costs in relation. to regulatory review- costs and ..

continued restructuring costs regardrng severance payments. o
: 2021 . - 2020

_ £000° . £000
Requlatory review costs 7,519 - ' 834
Restructuring costs . » 7,353 - ’ ’ 684
Exceptional Items recognised in Operating Profit . 14,872 B - 1,518 -
Frnancrng expense 200 : . .
Exceptional Items recognrsed in Net Financial Expense 200 . _ R
Total Exceptional Items . 15,072 - ‘ 1,518

Exceptronal costs are excluded from the profit measures reported in the strategic report-on the basis that they are non- recurrrng in nature.
The rmpact of exceptionals is a reduction in the tax charge of £1,513,000 (2020 £288 000)
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Notes
5. EMPLOYMENT COSTS

Group . .
The average monthly number of persons employed by the Group (including drrectors) during the year, analysed by category, was as follows: .

Number of employees
‘ : : , : .o2021 - . 2020 =
Operations - - L 2,183 . ‘ 2,370 &
Sales S ' . . 363 . ‘ C370 =
‘Administration - ] 431 s T 516 3
o L : 2,977 : 3,256 7
The aggreqgate payroll costs of these persons were as follows: -
' ' 2021 2020 —
: o - : : £000 £000
Wages and salaries . » . 96,572 o 107,603 -
* Social 'security costs : : : o o 9,059 - : 10,290 2
Other perision costs: ) : 3,136 _ . 3,451 3
Share. optron costs including associated social securrty Costs - equrty settled -~ 1,355 : S 109 2
: : “cash settled ~ 606 : " (1,062)
© 110,728 120,391
(ompany -
The average monthly number of persons employed by the Company (mcludrng directors) durrng the year analysed by category, was as §
follows: ) 2
Number of employees , g
, : ‘ . <2021 ) 2020 3
- Operations o : T 423 S 453 z
Sales o . . 119 . 122 .
- Administration o _ . . 154 ' - 161
St L . T 696 ‘ 736 g
| 5
(ompany =
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were a5 follows . ' ) o g
e .01 - o oL 2020 g
o R : SR £000 ‘ _ £000 -
Wages and salaries . . o . 26,475 ‘ .- 29,108
" Social security costs . -~ 4 , ' . 3,284 o C 3,674
Other pension costs o - ‘ . 674 ' o 781
Share optron costs including associated socral securrty costs - equity settled . 1,040 : o 139
- cash settled 606 - (1,062)

32079 - 32640 . .
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Notes

6. REM-UNER'ATION OF DIRECTORS -

The Group’s key. management are the executive and non- executlve drrectors ‘The aggregate remuneration paid to or accrued for the
- directors for services in all capacities dunng the year is as follows: ' i

2021 o ' 2020

, _ , . £000  £000

Basic remuneration including bonus and benefits . 2,031 ) . '1,245

Cash allowances/pension contributions 218 o 224
Share options ) S ' - o 750 .

’ 2,249 L '5375

Further details of dlrectors remuneranon pensions and share options, including the h|ghest pald dlrector are given in the Remuneration .
Report 0n page 45 :

S
7. FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES' o :
' ' 2021 ' 2020°
£000 : £000
Financial income: A ' o o
Bank and other interest receivable S . 8 52
Financial expenses: » : : A g A :
Bank loans, overdrafts and other interest . : " (4,405) _ (4,751
Finance charges payable in respect of finance leases and hire purchase contracts (38) - ‘ o (92)
Finance charges in respect.of operating leases under IFRS 16 - . - (3,317) - . (4,049) ~
' (7,760) ' ' © (8892)
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE e .

‘ , , 2021 o 2020
Current tax expense - . ) £000 . . £000
UK Corporation tax charge at 19% (2020: 19%) . : : . 2,354 . ‘ 6,566
Overseas tax - current year . C . ) 552 o 1,042

_ Adjustments in respect of prior years - UK. o _ (isj 3 e : 333
Adjustments in respect of prior years - ‘Overseas : ' 56 - .28
Total current tax ' : ' o T 2,884 . I m
Deferred tax expense . ) _
.Current year deferred tax : : . . (445) 615
Impact of tax rate.change ) S i 1,171
Adjustments to deferred tax in respect of. prior years ) (107) ‘ ) 24
Total deferred tax: - ' o - (552 E

- Total tax expense in income statement ' 2,332 : 9,779 -
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Notes .
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Reconciliation of effectlve tax rate

The tax on the Group's proflt before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate appllcable
to profits of the consolidated entities as follows: . o, .
' ) o 2021 2021 2020 2020 5
. % £000 % - £000° §~
(Loss)/profit before tax’ . (2,269) o 28,366 ;f
profit multiplied by standard : . N L =
rate of corporation tax - o 19.0 . (431) 19.0- 5,389
Effécts of: ' " ’ —
-Impact of tax rate chariges e A . R oo : 41 11N
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ' " (72.0%) . 1,633 - 1.0 280 o
Non-qualifying depreciation and amortisation (11.6%) g 263 1.4 404 B
Gains covered by exemption/losses - ' 16.1% s (365) T (e (407) . §
Overseas tax rate ' ' -~ (12.5%) . 285 13 . 358 ®
Adjustments in respect of prior years - .- : - 5.6% (129) 13 385
Impairment of intangibles ' 4 ' (47.4%) " 1,076 o 78 2,199, -
Total tax charge for the year — * © ~ (102.8%) 2,332 345 9,779 -
. . . &
Tax recognised in reserves : ‘ 2021 ' 2020 ;z:-
: : ‘ “£000 . £000 'g’
Other comprehensive income: . 3
Tax relating to actuarial gains on defined benefit pension scheme ) . (151) ' : . 63 d
Tax relating to historic asset revaluations . : V\A ; ' (1) . . ' (1) ——
ltens recognised in reserves : S < o 9 o (148) ©w
Impact of tax rate change o - ' - ' : _(47) r%;r
. , - - .3
Direct to eqmty ! (56) ' . (133) 5]
Deferred tax relating to share based payments : . o (103) ©o932 g«
Current tax relating to share based payments. a . (62) o (284) g
Impact of tax rate change - ' T - - 33 g
Included within effect of changes in accounting standards’ ] ' . (482)°
| | T - E
Total ' : ' ' ' T(221) S 66

The corporation tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2021 was 19% (2020: 19%).

The main reconcmng items are:

* Expenses not deductible for tax purposes; primarily related to capital transactions, disallowable expenses and customer entertamlng
* Non-qualifying depreciation; mainly relates to depreciation on land and buildings

* Gains covered by exemptions/losses; primarily relates to chattels exemptions on the disposal proceeds of fleet items

", » Overseas tax rates; due to higher overseas tax rates compared to the UK, particularly in Australia and Germany

* Adjustments inrespect of prior years; reflects the differences between the tax calculation for accounts purposes and the final tax returns.
The main areas were- overseas taxes, disallowed expenses and chargeable gains
» Impairment of intangibles; this relates to the write down of goodwill where there is no tax relief

" The reconciling item relating to the impairment of intangibles and other exceptional costs are non-recurring in the normal course of business. All
the other items will be expected to re-occur on a regular basis, although amiounts will vary from year to year. The effective tax rate before-any
+ prior year adjustments, impairment of intangibles and otheér exceptional items would be expected to be about 2.3% over the standard rate of tax.
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Notes .
9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

GROUP o Land and " Rental Motor . other

. : Buildings Equipment Vehicles -~ Assets - Total
Cost or deemed'cost £000 " £000 - £000 © £000 - £000 -
At 1.April 2019 _ . : 135828 . 422800 . 3,570 L 37688 499,886
Additions o g o 2914 - 49,136 693 T 359 . 56,339
Acquisitions . . - 2921 . 95 316 3,332
Disposals S G (42,217) - (659) (2499) ©  (45952)
A Exchange rate differences i (22) (490) (15) . (166) (693)
Transfer between categories , : 4,444 " (1,160) 100 (3,384) A -
AL31March2020 42,587 430990 . 3784 35,551 512,912 -
Additions . ‘ 1353 . 40,165 - 606 2080 44,204
Disposals - - A . (2,126) (47,468) (606) C(1,681) . . (51,881)
Exchange rate differences ) 5 V) '8 193 : 308
Transfer between categories T ' - v ~(5) - - ‘ 5 . -
* At 31 March 2021 o : © 829 423,774 3,792 36148 - 505543

Accumulated depreciation and impairmgnt losses

A1 April 2019 o 16466 202802 2322 29,645 251,235
Charge for year . : 2135 . 40,487 429 3,109 £ 46,160-
" Acquisitions : ' e 1,193 : 75 C290 1,558
on disposals . - (163) . (30,259) C(616) . (2,472) - (33,510)
Exchange rate differences : 21 (163). (17) (91) -(292)
Transfer between categories 4410 *(1,208) 100 . (3,302) -
At 31 Maich 2020 ', - . 22,827 212,852 2,293 27,179 265,151
Charge for year - - R 1,386 39,760 " 467 3367 . 44980
© Ondisposals . S (1,769) " (34,868) (580) . . (1,391) (38,608)
Exchange rate differences T ’ 21 - (16) (1) o104 . 108
" Transfer between categories N N ) - 4 ' -
At 31 March 2021 ' o T465 217,724 2179 29263 . 271,631

Net book,Value

At 31 March 2021 A 19364 - 206,050 1,613 6,885 233,912
At 31 March 2020 A 19,760 . 218,138 1,491 . D832 247,761
At 31 March 2019 L S 19362 219,998 1,248 8,043 248,651
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Notes

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

COMPANY . . Land and Rental Motor .  Other . -
: . Buildings Equipment . Vehicdles . . Assets * Total”
" Cost or deemed cost ' ' £000 £000 £000 £000 - £000 "
AT April 2019 : C7642. 180,384 2,139 Con9s7T 212,122 &
Additions S 578 120,684 252 1,350 22,864 2
Group transfers in . ) - . 8241 95 316 8,652 r‘é
Group transfers out ' ' ' - (8172) - o (8.172) -
Disposals ‘ . 4 . (435) (12,926) "(341) (64) (13,766) : :
" AU31 March 2020 h o 17,785 1188211 2,145 1355 221,700 |
Additions ' , _ 467 . 10,765 395 . - T 12,738 8
Group transfers in N - . 5757 - - - 5,757 %
' Group transfers out - - . (6,846) - R (6,846) 3
Disposals. . ' (148) (12118) . (580) (280) - (13,126)
Transfer between categories , . - : @ - 2 .-
AL 31, March 2021 ' 18,104 185,767 1,960 14392 - 220223 .
o ‘ 2
Accumulated depreuatlon and |mpa|rment Iosses . . R %
At April 2019 S 5849 80,893 . . 1504 7,897 96,143 ;
Charge for year o 500 ' 11,739 C241 1,312 13,792 g
Group transfers in R : . - 4,025 - s 290 4,390 g
. Group transfers out . ' . A - - (3,583)." : - - .. (3,583
on disposals - @37 (7.262) . (323) T (58) (7,680 ~
At 31 March 2020 ‘ 6312 85812 1497 . 9441  ° 103,062 g
Charge fof year 514 11,539 . 220 1367 13,640 §
Group transfers in _ R - 3033 . - - 3,033 %‘
- Group transfers out - . o . (3,001) - - (3,001) =
ondisposals-. . ©(134) (7,615) - (570) Co@rey (8593) >
Transfer between categories S : R () - ' 1 -
AU31 March 2021 . o 6692 89,767 . 1147 10535 - 108,141

- Net book value

At31March 2021 ;o 11,412 96,000 813 3,857 . 112,082
At 31 March 2020 - B 473 102,399 648 . 4118 118,638
At31 March 2019 ‘ 11,793 99,491 : 635 4,060 115,979

The cost or deemed cost of land and buildings for the Group and the Company includes £3,204,000 (2020: £3,204,000) of freehold land
not subject to depreciation.

Included in the total riet book value of fixed assets of the Group is £169,000 (2020 £488 ,000) in respect of assets held under finance
leases and similar hire purchase contracts, Company £74,000 (2020: £255,000). Depreciation for the year on these Group assets was
£292,000 (2020: £450,000).and £168,000 (2020: £342,000) for the Company included within cost of sales in the Consolidated Incame -
Statement. In addition the banks have a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the Group as set out in note 16. :

-
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Notes
10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS .
GROUP T Trade

Names
. . £000
~ Cost or deemed cost.
At 1 April 2019 - . 13,886
. Acquired through business combinations - 439 .
Exchange rate differencess - | ' (156)
AL March 2020 S 14,169
Exchange rate differences ' . 180

At 31 March 2021 ' 14,349

Accumulated amortisation and lmpalrment ' .
At 1 April 2019 . . C 2,765

" Exchange rate dlfferences . (59 .
Amortisati{)n : ~ 1,211
‘Impairment S S 1,400
At 31 March 2020 ) . 5,317

" Exchange rate differences 4 o - 69
Amortisation : o . 1,224
Impairment ‘ ' -
At31 March 2021 - ST 6610

" Carrying amount :
At 31 Ma(ch 2021 . 7,739

At31 March 2020 - 8,852
At 31 March 2019 1

Customer
Relationships
. £000

25,227

1,158 -

(163)
26,222
161
26,383

9,422

(59)
2,080

11,443

2,080

13,571

12,812
14,779

15,805

Supply Goodwill
Agreements

£000 £000
4,989 71,849
B 173
- (216)
4,989 71,806
- 48
4,989 72,054
4,740 . 9,354
249 -
- 11,816
4,989 21,170
- 7,069
4,989 28239
- 43,815

- 50,636

249 . 62,495

Total

£000

115,951
1,770

" (535)
117,186
589

117,775

26,281
(118)
3,540
13,216
42,919
117
3,304

7,069
53,409

64,366

T 74,267

89,670

GoodW|II and mdeflmte life mtangnble assets considered S|gn|f|cant in comparison to the Groups total carrymg amount of such assets
‘have been allocated to cash generating units (CGUs) or groups of cash generatlng units as follows:

Goodwill
-~ _ 2021 2020
. ' £000 £000
Groundforce /TPA 7,632 8,109
Hire Station 34,066 40,666
R 2,117 1,862
N 43,815 50,636
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Notes \

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) , .
Goodwill arising on business combinations'has been allocated to the CGUs that are expected to benefit_fromthose business combinations.

The carrying value of intangibles and goodwill- has been assessed for impairment by reference to its value in use as this s higher than the

potential fair value on disposal. Values have been estimated using cash flow projections over a period of 5 years derived from the approved
budget for the coming year. The key assumptions within the cash flow projections-are those regarding revenue, margin and level of capital

spend required to support the business. These assumptions have been based on past experience, market conditions, termrnal year growth
- and the size of the fleet. The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently i there are any mdrcatrons that goodwill
might be impaired. . ’

In the current year, eight Hire Station goodwill balances and one Groundforce/TPA goodwill balance were written off_ as we no longer trade
from the acquired locations. In addition, part of the goodwill associated with the acquisition of Brandon Hire was written off as a result of
the restructuring during the year. In the prior year eight Hire Station goodwill balances were written off as we no longer trade from the
acquired location and goodwill associated with the acquisitions of Higher Access.and TPA Portable Roadways was written off as a result of
reduced activity level and cash flows. These impairments along with amortisation have been charged to cost of sales. The charges relate to
the CGUs shown on page 84 and are goodwill £7,068,000 (2020: £11,816,000) and intangibles £Nil (2020: £1,400,000). °

. The pre tax discount rate applied to all CGUs was 9% (2020: 8%),.an estimate based on the Group’s wei>ghted cost of capital.-A'long term -

growth rate factor of 2% was applied when assessing impairment. An increase in discount rate to 10% would increase the impairment
“by £20.3m, a decrease in discount rate to 8% would indicate no impairment is required. A decrease in long term growth rate to-1%
“would increase the impairment by £15.9m and an increase in lorig term growth rate would indicate no rmparrment is Tequired. Based
on this testing the directors do not consider any of the goodwill or intangible assets carried forward at the year end to be impaired even
allowing for a reasonable degree-of sensitivity to the:underlying assumptions, including the discount rate.

COMPANY . o ‘ Trade Customer Supply . '

N : ’ . Names  Relationships Agreements Goodwill Total
Cost or deemed cost _ o _ £000 o £000 _ £000 © £000 © £000
AU April 2019 ' 2083 4390 394 2499 31,817
-Acquired through busmess combrnatrons 439 © 1,158 ) .- - 1730 1,770
At 31 March 2020 and at 31 N\arch 2021° 2,482 5,548 - 394, - ‘ 25163 . 33,587

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 April 2019 1523 3329 1394 7,243 11,489

‘Amortisation charge - ' 63 : 294 - - - - o357
Impairment : . . 1,400 - S~ 9965 11,365
At 31 March 2020 ) ’ . 1,986 . . 3,623 394 17,208 23,211
Amortisation charge - = . 137 , . 223 .- - 360
Impairment . i - - - 469 . 469
* At 31 March 2021 ’ ' ©2123 3846 - 394 17,677 24,040
Carrying amount 4 o ] ' )

At 31 March 2021 - 359 ¢ - 1,702 ' o 7,486 . 9,547
At 31 March 2020 ' 49 . . 1925 . - 7955 - 10376

At 31 March 2019 4 ' o 1,520 1,061 - 17,747 20,328

o The drrectors have reviewed the carrying amount of the Company’s goodwill and indefinite Irfe intangible assets on the same basis as
the Group s goodwill and concluded that there are no addmonal rmparrment charges requrred
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Notes

11. LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

(a) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

\
-The recognised right of use assets relate to the following types of assets

Group . : Company

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 " 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
. £000 £000° A . '£000 £000
Property 39,798 49,688 ‘ 4,785 4,956
Equipment .- 5,273 - 8,998 3,752 - 6,091,
_Vehicles 8,240 - 9,880 - 2,718 2,953
Total right of use assets . '53,31_11 ’ -68,566- ’ 11,255 - 14,000
The reédgnised lease liabilities relate to the following types of assets:
: o ' . Group . ' Company
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£000  ©  £000 o £000° ©  £000
Property- 43,314 . 52,701 ’ "5,213 . 5,443
- Equipment - "5,532 S 9332 . . 4,002 . - 6,389
Vehicles 8,043 9,817 ) ‘ ~ 2,693 2,968
Total lease liabilities 56,889 71,850 11,908 14,800 -
of which are: S : . :
Current lease liabilities 14,909 © 17,692 . 4,246 5,216
Non-current Iease liabilities 41,980 ) 54,158° : 7,662 ° 9,584
56,889 ' 71,850 ‘ 11,908 -+ -~14,800

Addmons to the nght of use assets during the current l|nanc|al year for the Group was £5.4 lTII||IOﬂ (2020 £10.9- million) Company: £2.5

million (2020: £4.3 m|I||on)

(b) Amounts recogmsed in the consolldated income statement '

The consohdated income statement shows the followmg amounts relating to leases for the year ended 31 March 2021:

Group . (ompany
. 31 March 2021 - 31 March 2020 o 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
. £000 " £000 . I £000 £000
Depreciation charge of rlght of-use assets '_ . . ' - '
Property 9,034 9,258 21,109 91,098
‘Equipment ot 6,076 5555 . - 4,424 o 3,85}
Vehicles 5,642 7,364 C 1,921 1,970
20,752 2,177 _ 7,454 6,921

Interest expense (included in finance expenses) 3,304. ©.4,049 - 725 © 903
Expense relating to short-term leases . ’ _ " .
(included in cost. of goods sold -and administrative expenses) 332. 268 . .- 7 ' 85
-Expenses relating to low-value assets that are not shown above T ) C Co

as shori-term leases (included in administrative expenses) . 237 686 - 78 140

The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 for the Group was £23.9 million (2020: £26.5 million) Company: £8.2 million (2020: £8.2 million).
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Notes

-11. LEASES (continued)

(c) Impact on Consolidated Income Statement, EBITDA, segment dlsclosures and earnings per share

Basic earnings per share before the amortisation of intangibles and exceptional items decreased by 0.2 pence for the period to 31 March
2021 as a result of the adoption of IFRS 16. The financial impact of the transition on the Group’s Consolidated Income Statement and

“EBITDA for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 is set out below:
At 31 March 2021

Operatmg profit before’ amortisation and excephonal |tems
Operating profit

EBITDA

Net financial expense before exceptional items

Profit before taxation, amortisation and exceptional items
Profit before taxation

At 31 March 2020

Operating profit before amortisation and exceptional items
Operating profit

EBITDA

Net fmanaal expense

Profit before taxation, amortisation and excepnonal nems
" "Profit before taxation

Excluding
IFRS 16
£000
27,721
2,476

72,701

(4,448)
23,273
(2,172)

: Ekcluding

IFRS 16

£000
51,980
33,616
98,050
(4791)
47,099
128,825

IFRS 16
Impact
£000
3,207
3,207
- 23,959
(3304)
©7)
(97)

iFRS 16

_Impact

£000
3,590
3,590
25,767
(4,049)

(459)
- (459)

Reported
£000
30,928
5,683
96,660
(7,752)
23,176

(2,269)

R_ephrted

" £000
55,480
' 37,206
123,817
(8,840)
46,640

28,366

‘Operating profit before amortisation and exceptional items, segment assets and segment liabilities all increased as 3 result of tie change
in accounting policy. The IFRS 16 adJustments that have been posted to each segmenl for the year ending 31 March 2021 and 2020 are

as foIIows

\

At 31 March 2021

Operating Profit Before .
Amortisation and

" Liabilities
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Exceptional Items Assets
Pre IFRS 16 Per Pre  IFRS 16 Per Pre  IFRS 16 Per
IFRS 16 Adjustment  Note 2 IFRS 16 Adjustment: ~ Note 2 IFRS 16 Adjustment  Note 2
£000  £000  £000. . £000  £000  £000 £000  £000  £000
UK T 27,156 3,110. 30,266 356,283 50,901 407,184 . 226108 54303 280,411
“International’ " 565 97 662. 347N 2,411 - 37,202 8,272 2,586 10,858
v 27,721 3,207 30,928 391,074 53,312 444,386 234380 ' 56,889 291,169
At 31 March 2020 .
A Operating Profit Before -
Amortisation and -
Exceptional Items "Assets - _ Liabilities -
Pre  IFRS-16 - Per - ‘A Pre  IFRS 16 Per Pre  IFRS 16 - Per
IFRS 16 Adjustment  Note 2- IFRS 16 Adjustment  Note 2 IFRS 16 Adjustment  Note 2
) £000 EQOO £000 £000 £000 £000 £000. £000 £000 -
UK . 50,177 3,495 53,672 © 402,070 66,395 468,_465 25_9,798' 68,993 328,791
International 1,713 - 95  -1,808 37,230 2,350 39,580 7,077 2,256 9,333
51,890 . 3,590 55,480 439,300 68,745 508,045 266,875 71,249 338,124
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12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
COMPANY B '

Cost

At 1 April 2019

Acquisitions

Transfer to intangible assets and deferred tax
Tax adjustment

At 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021

Impairment

At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021
Carrying amount '

At 31 March 2021

At 31 March 2020
- At 31 March 2019

. See note 30 for details of subsidiary undertakings. -

13. INVENTORIES

o ‘ £000
Raw materials and consumables. ' ' 3,811
Goods for resale ) L 3,531

© 7,342

During the year, as a result of the year end assessment of inventory, there was a £3,000 decrease in the Group provision for impairment

2021

Group
2020
£000

5,009 .

4,064
9,073

£000
71,734
3,325
- (1,498)
10.
73,571

(ompany ’
2021 2020°
£000 £000

1,502 1,993
756 . 555

2,258 2,548

of inventories (2020: £726,000 decreasé) and a £154,000 decrease- for Company (2020: £100,000_increase). The provision reflects the
Group’s best estimate of potential inventory obsolescence. The cost of goods for resale expensed during the year was £22.2 million
(2020: £25.1 million). Due to the nature of the spares expendrture and the approach to accountrng for spares it is not possible to provide

thé value of spares mventory expensed

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES.

Current assets - ) - 2021
o A ; , £000
Gross trade receivables 68,503
Trade receivables 'provisions - (7,242)
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakrngs .-
Other receivables . "~ 568
Prepayments and accrued income ‘ 4,717
: ' 66,546

~ Group

2020

£000-

76,536

(4,264)

1,469
10,522

84,263 -

Company

2021 - 2020

£000 ' £000
18,330 21,834 .
1,277 (799)

318 791
1,908 T 2,550
19,279 24,376

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date: is the carrying value of each class of receivables as shown abave. The Group
does not hold any collateral as security. Receivables acquired as part of the acqursrtrons in the year-were £nil (2020: £0.5 million) berng

the fair value of receivables.

During the year there was an increase in the provisions for impairment of trade receivables of £2,978,000 (2020: £1,201,000 decreas‘e)r
The valuation of the provision reflects the Group’s best estimates of likely impairment as a result of the aging of the debt, expected credit
losses and its knowledge- of the debtors.. The Group has a reasonable spread of credit risk with the top 25 customers accounting for
significantly less- than 50% of gross trade debtors. The agerng of the Groups trade receivables (net of |mpa|rment provision) at the end

of the year was as follows:

Not overdue _

0 - 30 days overdue

31 - 90 days overdue

More than 90 days overdue

2021 - 2020
£000 £000
50,594 ' 54,460
5,102 : 7,140
2,082 © 4,077
3,483 - 6,595
61,261 72,272

On this basis there are £10.7 million (2020: £17.8 million) bf trade receivables that are overdue at the balance sheet date that have not

been provided against. There is no indication as at 31 March 2021 that debtors will not meet their payment obligations in respect of °

trade receivables recognised in the balance sheet that are unprovrded On this basis there is no material dlfference between. the fair vaIue

and the carryrng value.
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‘Notes

14. TRADE AND OTHER REC_EIVABLEAS (continued)

Non current assets

. Amohrits owed by subsidiafy undertakings

interest from 0% to 3.5%.

Contract assets

2021
~ £000

‘Group

2020
£000 .

- Included within trade- and other receivables are assets in relation to contracts with custom_érs.

2021
£000

47,473

Cbmpany
2020
£000

80,626

Amounts owed by subsidiary uhdertakinzjé are unsecured, repayable either on demand or ten y_ears from agreement date and range in ’
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7 Group Company
12021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Gross trade receivables 14,807 18,320 3,723 5,005
Trade receivables provision (1,527) (1,012) " (260) T (183)
Prepayments and accrued income 123 746 69 ¢ 158
' ' . 13,403 18,054 3,532 ©4,980
15. CASH - AND CASH EQUIVALENTS . Group Company
: : 20217 - 2020 ©2021 2020
_ . £000 £000 - £000 £000 .
Bank balances 15,917 20,094 " 5,112 6,011
" Overdraft Lo (5,947) - (5,947)
Cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement- 15,917 . 14,147 5,112 64
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16. INTEREST;BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Group

Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current liabilities . '
‘Bank overdraft - . 5,947 .- 5,947
Secured bank loans 73,000 - 73,000 -
Arrangement fees - (97) (138). (97) (138)
_Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts 106 352 48 214,
. ’ ) 73,009 6,161 72,951 6,023
Non-current liabilities '
Secured bank loans 65,000 174,000 - 65,000 174,000
Arrangement fees A (223) (397) (223) (397)
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts 37 136 - a1
’ 64,814 73,739 64,777 173,644
Net debt defined as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents was: i )
o o ’ ’ 2021 2020
£000 £000
Total net borrowing 137,823 179,900
€ash or cash equivalents (15,917) . (20,094)
Net debt " 121,906 159,806
The repayment schedule of the carrying amount of the non-current borrowings as at 31 March 2020 is:
. ' A Group .- Company ..
Due in less than one year: 2021 2020 2021 2020
‘ - £000 ~ £000 £000. £000
Secured bank loans 73,000 109,000 73,000 109,000
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts - 106 106 48 41
Total ' ’ ) 73,106 109,106 73,048 109,041
Due in more than one year but not
more than two years: -
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts 37 30 - -
Total 37 30 - -
Oue in more than two years but not
more than five years: . g
Oblrgatrons under finance leases and hire purchase contracts - 30 - -
Total ' e 30 - -
Due in more than five years: .
“Secured private placement loan 65,000 65,000 65,000 65,000
Total 65,000 65030 65,000 65,000

The'bank loans and overdraft are secured by a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the Group and are at variable interest rates
linked to LIBOR. The unutilised bank facilities available to the Group as at 31 March 2021 were £62 million. In January 2020, the Group
refinanced £65.0 million’of secured bank loans held with Lioyds 8ank plc and HSBC Bank plc with 3 private placement with PGIM, Inc. at
3 value .of £65.0 million matunng in January 2027 at a fixed interest rate payable semi-annually. .

The £135 million revolving credit facilities were due to mature.in December 2021. Consequently in April 2021, the Group drew dawn a
new £28 million seven year private placement under the existing agreement with PGIM, Inc. In June 2021, the Group also refinanced its
£135 million cammitted revolving credit facilities with a new £90 million facility. The new revolvrng credit facility agreement also includes
a £20 million- uncommitted accordion facility.

. There is no material difference between the carrying value and fair value of the Group’s borrowings. Further details relating to the Group's
funding strategy (including the maturity details of the bank loans) and its credit, interest rate and currency risk policies are provided in
the Firiancial Review on pages 23 to 25, the Risk Management Report on pages 26 and 27 and the Directors’ Report wrthm going concern
on page 54 The loans are subJect to covenants and these have been fulfilled at all times during the year.
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'Notes

- 16. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

Liquidity Risk.

The following are cash flows relating to the Group's finanicial liabilities, including est'i.mated interest payments; but excludinAg'theAimpact
of netting agreements, based on the dssumption that the loans are repaid at the end of the committed period and interest rate’s reflect

. future dated swap agreements.
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GROUP . . Carrying Contractual Less than 12 2-5
) . o value cash flows 1 year - years' years
31 March 2021 £000 £000 . £000 £000 £000
Secured loans - '138,000 149,884 76,224 1,819 - 71,841
Finance lease liability - 143 153 115 35 - 3
Trade and other payables 26,935 26,935 126,935 -
' i ’ 165,078 176,972 103,274 1,854 71,844
31 March 2020 :
Secured loans 174,000 192,089 4,712 113,716 73,661
Bank overdraft 5,947 . 5,947 5,947 ' - -
Financé lease liability . 488" 537 . 39 115 31
Trade and other payables 65,510 65,510 ' 65,510 - -
245,945 264,083 . 176,560 - 113,831 73,692
COMPANY . Carrying  Contractual  .Less than 12 . 2-5 Over 5
o ’ T value cash flows 1 year " years years years
31 March 2021 ’ £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Secured loans 138,000 149,884 76,224 1,819 71,841 -
Finance lease liability - 48 54 .54 - - -
Trade and other payables . 58,388 58,388 39,691 - - 18,697
' ’ 196,436 208,326 - 115,969 1,819 71,841 . 18,697
31 March 2020 _ . '
" Secured loans : - 174,000 192,089 4,712 113,716 73,661 -
Bank overdraft ) 5,947 5947 5,947 - - -
. Finance lease liability . 255 291 244’ 47 - -
Trade and other payables = 71,724 71,724 55,779 - - 15,945
251,926 270,051 66,682 113,763 - 73,661 " 15,945
. Hire piuchase and finance lease liabilities ‘
GROUP o Payment Interest Principal' Payment Interest - . Principal
: 20271 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Less than one year : 115 .9 106 391 - T 39 352
One to two years R 1 " 34 115 9 106
Two to five years . o .3 - .3 31, 30
. 153 10 143 537 49 488
COMPANY SR Paymént Interest Principal Payment Interest Principal - .
o 2021 2021 2021 © 2020 2020 2020
£000 } £000 £000 £000 £000 _EOOO
Less than one year . 54 6 48 244 30 214
One to two years . h - - - 47 6 0
Two to five years - - .- - ) - -
54 .6 - 48 291 36 255
Vp plc Annual Report and Accounts 2021 -9
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17. FINANCIAI. INSTRUMENTS
Dunng the year the Group- had seven interest rate swaps to fix interest rates on a proportron of the revoIvrng credit facrlrty Details are as tollows

Start date " 'Finish date . Notional Debt value . Fixed margln

April 2018 April 2021 - : 12,000,000 : 1.154%

- May 2018 ‘ May 2021 - 5,000,000 © 0.930%

* September 2018 . ~ September 2021 . 5000000 - ~0.980%

December 2018 : December 2021 7,500,000 1.209%

" August 2019 August 2022 ' . 5,000,000 T 0.890%

August 2019 August 2022 ' 5,000,000 0.884%
October 2019 October 2022 ‘ . 5,000,000 " 0.485% -

All ot the swaps are effective cash flow hedges and the movements in fair values have been taken to equity. Fair values of these derrvatrves have
been determined by the respective counterparties based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

~ The Group had 2 foreign exchange hedges to reduce the risk of-foreign exchange fluctuations between US dollars and Sterling in the year ended
31 March 2021. It also has further foreign exchange hedges between US dollars and Sterling covering the period from 1 Aprit 2021 to 30 June:
. 2023. All the exchange rate hedges are effective cash.flow hedges and movements in fair value have been taken to equity.

An analysis of fair values by hierarchy level is provided below: -

Liabilities measured at fair value: - , ‘ 31 lvtarch 2021 » 31 March 2020
' ' ' Total Level 1 . level2 - Level 3 Total
: ~£000 " £000 - £000 £000 £000
Financial liabilities at fair value: ‘ .
Interest rate swaps - - . 251 - 251 : v - - 678 _
Forward exchange rate agreements : (30) o (30 . ) - 127
‘ 221 - 221 - - 805

7

o The values are based on the amount the Group would pay /receive from the bank in order to settle the rnstruments at the year end

The movements in I|abrlrt|es are reconcrled below: - . . . ) A ‘
31 March 2021 s
interest rate ~ Forward exchange: .
swaps rate agreements Total
. . ) £000 g £000 £000
Opening liability - o 678. 127 805
other comprehensive income ; ‘ (427) : (158) - (585)
Recycled to income statement - - ' - 1 1
Closing liability - ' ' , T 251 (30) - 221

There have been no transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy.

“There are no material differences between the carrying value and the fair value of the Group’s other financial instruments including trade .
debtors and trade creditors. The risks associated with interest rate and foreign exchange rate.management are discussed in the Capital
Structure and Treasury section of the Financial Review on pages 24 and 25 and the Principal Risks and Uncertainties on pages 28 and 29,
as are the risks relating to credit and currency management and the capital management of the Group. -

Financial Instrument Sensitivity Analysis
Ten percent movements in Sterling exchange rates and interest rates in the current and prior year would have increased / (decreased) equrty
and profrt / (loss) by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant

Equity and Proflt / (Loss)

. 2021 2020
. 10% strengthening of Sterllng against: ' . _ - £000 E : £000
US Dollar : _ 16 ' : 148 -
Australian Dollar- " _ - 34 (144)
" singapore. Dollar I e ) 22
Euro - : : 28 : . 79
10% weakening of Sterling against: A : ' S
Us Dollar . o . ’ . (142) - (181)
Australian Dollar _ ‘ : : (a) -7
Singapore Dollar : S L 5 : ) (27)
Euro . o . (34) . . (97)
-10% movement in Sterling interest rates: A ) .
Increase in interest rates. . : o . . (122) . . (214)
Decrease in interest rates : : ‘ ' 122 .. 214

The exposure of the Group to other foreign exchange rate movements is not significant and therefore is not presented in the analysis above.
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18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Y

(388)

Current liabilities . Group _ Company
o 2021 2020 2021 2020 —
£000 £000 £000 . -£000
Trade payables 26,935 28,873 7,330 7,968 w
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakmgs - ' - 32,361 31,529 5
=}
Other taxes and social security 14,982 9,676 : 5,137 3,219 2
Other payables _ 16,700 12,161 276 869 3
Accruals and deferred income 27,546 24,476 16,334 15,413 -
' 86,163 75,186 61,438 58,998
Within Group and Company other payables is £0.2 million (2020: 0.8 million) in relation to interest rate swaps and forelgn exchange rate
agreements which arevalued at fair value. In addition within accruals is £2.3 million (2020: £1.7 million) in relation to the liability for cash
settled share options which are also valued at fair value. All other liabilities are valued at amortised cost. There are no material liabilities in -
relation to-contracts with customers. Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand,, unsecdred and interest free. =
. Within accruals is £nil million (2020: £4.5 million) in relation to requlatory review costs provision, as referred to in note 4. Payables acquired g
as part of the acquisitions in the year were £nil million (2020: £0.5) bemg the fair value of payables. 3
Non current liabilities . . - . ®
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - ’ - - 18,697 .15,945
19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND lIABIlITIES
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the followmg §
GROUP Property, plant Intangible Employee Other §
- and equipment _assets benefits items Total -
No@e £000 £000 £000 - £000 £000 %
" 1 April 2019 ‘ 5,967 " 5416 (2,183) - (794) 8,406 3
Recognised on acquisition 306 272 - (93) 485 Z
Changes in accounting standards - - - . (482) (482)
recognised in equity -
Recognised in income statement 1,488 (112) 386 48 1,810 ©w
Recognised in reserves 5 - 10 15 2.
Recognised in equity -8 - - 965 s 965 g
Foreign exchange (10) (1) .- - 01 2
At 31 March 2020 7,756 5,575 - (822) (1,321) 11,188 2
Reclassification 369 (428) 97 (38). - 5
Recognised in income statement’ 29 (863) 347 - . (65) (552) g
Recognised in reserves (1) - (151) - (152)
Recognised in equity 8 Do- " (103) (103)
Foreign exchange 44 65 (39) (57) 13
At 31 March 2021 8,197 4,349 - (671) (1,481) 10,394
Of the deferred tax liability above, the amount expected to unwind within 12 months is £2.3 million. ‘
COMPANY Property, plant Iﬁtangible Employee Other .
. and equipment assets benefits items Total
) Note £000 .£000 £000 foo0 £000
1 April 2019 7,920 656 (1,681) (215) 6,680
Recognised ‘on acquisition 306 272 - (93) 485
Changes in accounting standards - - - - (126) (126)
recognised in equity :
Recognised in income statement 1,482 (203) 394 79 1,752
Recognised in reserves 4 - =(9) - - (5)
Recognised in equity - 965 - 965)
At 31 March 2020 _ 9,712 725 (331) (355) 9,751
. Recognised in income statement (161) (50) 434 (33) 190
‘Recognised in reserves M .- (129) ’ I (130)
Recognised in equity - (103) (103)
At 31 March 2021 9,550 675 (129) 9,708

0f the deferred tax liability above, the amount expected to unwmd within- 12 months s £1.9 million. .
Deférred tax assets have been recognised on employee benefits and other items on the basis that there will be future taxable profits against
which these assets can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is a Iegally enforceab!e right of offset and there
is an intention to settle the net balance.

In the Spring Budget 2021, the ‘Government announced that from 1 April 2023 the corporation tax rate will increase to 25%. As the proposal
to increase the rate to 25% had not been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, its effects are not included in these financial
statements. However, it is likely that the overall effect of the change, had it been substantively enacted by the balance sheet date would be
to increase the tax expense for the period by £3 4 million and to reduce the deferred tax liability by £3.3 million.
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© 20. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

ordinary share capital

Allotted, called up and fully paid
40,154,253 Ordinary shares of 5 pence each -
(2020: 40,154,253)

2021 2020
£000 -£000
2,008 2,008

The company articles authorise 60,000,000 shares (2020: 60,000,000). All shares have the same voting fights. ‘

- Reserves

Full details of reserves are provided in the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity on pages 65 and 66.

own shares held
Deducted from retained. earnings (Group and Company) is £4,419, 000 (2020 £3, 731 000) in respect of own shares held by the vp
Employee Trust. The Trust acts as a repository of issued Company shares and held 554,000 shares (2020 399,000) with a market value

at3n March 2021 of £4,508,000 (2020 £2,560,000).

21.'DIVII_)ENDS

Amounts recognlsed as dlstrlbutlons to equny holders of the Parent in the year:

Ordinary shares:
Final paid 0.0p (2020: 22.0p) per share
Special paid 22.0p (2020: 0.0p) per share

_ Interim paid  0.0p (2020: 8.45p) per share

-

2021 2020
£000 £000

B _ 8705
18,674 _ .
S - . . 3350
8,674 ‘ '

12,055

The dividend paid in the year is after d|V|dends were walved to the value of £160,000 (2020 £144 500) in relation to shares held by the -
vp Employee Trust. These leldends will continue to be waived in the future

In addition, the directors-are proposing a final leldend in respect of the Current year of 25.0p per share which will absorb an estimated
£9,895,000 million of shareholders’ funds. The proposed dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meetmg

and has not been included in liabilities in the financial statements.

22. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share -

The calculation of basic earmngs per share of (11.62) pence (2020: 46.92 pence) was based on the (loss)/profit attnbutable o equity
holders of the Parent of £4,601,000 (2020: £18,587,000) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year :
ended 31 March 2021 of 39 595,000 (2020 39 618 000) calculated as follows:

Issued 6rdinary'shaiesA _ : ‘ oo
Effect of own shares held

Weighted average number of ordinary shares .

2021 2020 :
Shares “Shares

000s 0005
40,154 40,154

(559) (536)
39,595 39,618

Basic earnings per share before the amortisation of intangibles and exceptional items was 46.56 pence (2020: 90.21 pence) and is based

~on an after tax add back of £23,037,000 (2020: £17,153,000) in respect of the amortisation of intangibles and exceptional items.
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22. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share of (11. 62) pence (2020: 46.17 pence) was based on (loss)/profit attnbutable to equrty

holders of the Parent of £(4,601,000) (2020: £18,587,000) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstandrng during the .

year ended 31 March 2021 of 40,218,000 (2020 40, 260 ,000), calculated as follows: . .
2021 2020

shares ' Shares

» - , 000s : ‘ -000s °

Weighted average -number of ordinary shares : 39,595 ) 39,618
Effect of share options : ‘ 4 623 642
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) . ] ' 40,218 L . 40,260

The calculation of diluted earnings per share does not assume conversion, exercise or other issue of potential ordinary shares that would

have an antidilutive effect on earnings per share. Diluted earnings per share before the amortisation of intangibles and exceptional items
was 45.84 pence (2020: 88.77 pence).

.

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

SAYE Scheme -

During the year options over a further 453,696 shares were granted under the SAYE scheme at a price of 584 pence. The outstandrng
options at the year end were: . . - »

Date of Grant S S A S Price per share Number of shares
July 2017 S . ' 696p B 96,669
July 2018 - . _ S 808p . : ©. 209,341 .
July 2019 ’ - : ALY 253,360
july 2020 ' : . . 584p - 420,405

" 979,775

All the options are exercisable between 3 and 3.5 years. At 31 March 2021 there were 1,022 employees saving an average £157 per month
in respect of options under the SAYE scheme. The only SAYE scheme condition is continuous employment over the term of the option.

’ Approved share Option Scheme : :
Options over a further 211,250 shares were granted during the year at a price of 698 pence The optrons outstandrng at the year end were

Date of Grant ) o : ' Price per share ~ Number of shares
July: 2011 : S B | 249.5p © 4,000
July 2012 _ ‘ '266.5p 4 7,000
July 2013 - . _ . o . 389.0p S 6,800
July 2014 - e ' ' © 680.0p o 9,350
. July 2015 ' S S - . 770.0p 31,550
July 2016 : ‘ ' _ 657.0p : o 27,850
July 2017 v : ' : 870.0p: ‘ 61,557 -
July 2018~ . , 1030.0p 101,050 -
July 2019 : . ' '860.0p A 102,200
July 2020 _ , ' T 698.0p .. 198,550

549,907

These options are exercisable between the third and tenth anniversary of the grant. The awards for 2018 to 2020 are.subject to
achievement of performance targets over a three year period. The awards for 2017-and prior are vested, but not yet exercised.

Vp plc Annual Repbrt and Accounts 2021 vpplc.com
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Notes |
23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Unapproved share Option Scheme . . .
Options over 565,750 shares were granted durlng the year at a price of 698 pence. The options outstanding at the year end were:

Date of Grant ' o ’ S Price per shaie ' Number of shares
July 2012 ‘ R A : . 266.5p : 19,750
July 2013 , o o . 389.0p - 35,300 ..
July 2014 , S o 680.0p : " 48,600
July 2015 S - ©. 770.0p ] 73,100
July 2016 o ' . : _ 657.0p © 198,550
July 2017 - o , E . © 870.0p 203,699
july 2018 © - , - 1030.0p < 272,950
July 2019 - - . ' . - . 860.0p - 382,800 .
July 2020 . ' ‘ ~6980p . " 525,950
' ' 1,760,699

These options are exercisable between the third and tenth anniversary of tie grant. The: awards for 2018 to 2020 are suh‘ject to
achievement of performance targets over a three year period. The awards for 2017 and prior are vested, but not yet exercised.

Long-Term Incentrve Plan
© . Awards were made. during the year in relation to a further 389,100 shares Shares outstandmg at.the year end were: .

-

Date of Grant - o ‘ ‘ : ' Number of shares
“July 2014 . A ' ‘ , _ 72,600
July 2015 o o S - 69,500
July 2016 : : L L 102,100
july 2017 ‘ o . ‘ _ o 81,822
July 2018 : . T , ’ 212,100
July 2019 o - S ' ' -284,000
July 2020 : o , , : 384,400
' ' 1,206,522

. These options are exercisable between the third and tenth anniversary of ‘the grant. The awards for 2018 to 2020 are subject to .
achievement of performance’ targets over a three year period as shown in the Remuneration Report on page 41.The awards for 2017
and prior are vested, but not yet exercised.

Share Matching

No awards were made durmg the year in relation to shares Shares outstanding at the year end were:

Date of Grant : T ' ‘Number of shares
July 2012 ‘ . _ - a _ 4,000
August 2013 - . R o : 1,750
July 2014 - ‘ _ L . : - S 3,500
August 2015 . - - ‘ o : 3 2,400
August 2016 . - - - ' o ' ' 2,200

’ 13,850

These options are exercisable between the third and tenth anniversary of the grant The awards for 2016 and prior are vested, but not
yet exercised. - : .

*.Awards under the above schemes. will be generally made utlhsrng shares owned by the Vp Employee Trust.

The market value of the ordinary shares at 31 March 2021 was 814 pence (2020: 642 pence), the highest market value in the year to

.31 March 2021 was 888 pence and the lowest 604 pence. The average share price during the year was 720 pence.
. L) . ’ . ’
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_ 23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
The number and weighted average exercise price of share options is as. follows: '

- 2021
Weighted Number of
' " average options
o : : . exercise price = - 000s
Qutstanding at beginning of the year ’ ' 529p 4,145
Lapsed during the year 695p . (622)
Exeicised during the year _ 113p . (632)
Granted during the year : 498p . 1,620
. Outstanding at the end of the year =~ - . 553p 4,511
.Exercisable at the year end 567p . 924 -

Weighted
average
exercise price

528p
787p
520p
622p

529p
278p°

2020
Number of
. options
000s

4,280

(493).

(936)
1,294

4,145 -

LzZo

The options outstanding at 31 March 2021 have an exercise price in the range of 0.0p to 1030.0p and have a weighted average life of

2.0 years.

For options granted, the fair value of services received in return for share options granted are measured by reference to-the fair value of
those ‘share options. The fair value for the approved unapproved and SAYE options are measured using the Black-Scholes model and the -
1P and share matching schemes are valued using a discounted gran{ price method. Cash settled options are valued at their fair value
at each year end. The assumptions used to value the probable options granted during the year were in the followmg ranges:

A g - . 2021
Weighted average fair value per share - Ce S 293.4p

. Share price at date of grant ‘ 698.0p to 729.0p
Exercise price (details provided‘above) : ) 0.0p to 698.0p
Expected volatility : 1 o 35.3% to 35.4%
Option life _ L . ' 3 to 10 years
Expected divided yield ‘ I : C1.2%
Risk free rate : 0.10%

The expected volatility is based on historic volatility which is based on the latest thrée years’ share price data.

The cost of share options charged to the Income Statement is shown in note 5

2020 .
180.0p
860.0p to 888.0p
0.0p to 860.0p
23.8%

- 3 to 10 years
3.4% to 3.5%
0.50%

The total carrying amount of cash settled transaction liabilities mcludmg associated- natlonal insurance at the year end was’
£2,301,000 (2020: £1,714,000). £2,218,000 of this liability had vested at the. year end (2020 £1,468,000). :
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| N_otes

24. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments for property, plant and equrpment at the end of the financial year for which no provision has been made are as
follows:

Group - (ompany
2021 - 2020 2021 2020
, ~ £000 - £000 £000 £000
Contracted : - 15,676 18,291 5,954 3,929

25, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined benefit s(hemes

The details in this section of the note relate solely to. the deflned benefit arrangements and exclude any allowance for contnbutlons in
respect of death in service insurance premiums and expenses which are also borne by the Company.

The Group has two defined benefit pension schemes, the main scheme is the Vp pension scheme with a net present value surplu§ of
~£2.7 million: (2020: £3.4 million). In addition, Torrent Trackside participate in a small section of the Rar!ways Pension Scheme wuth a net
present value obligation of £0.5 million (2020: £0.3 million). The two schemes are considered below.

Vp pensron scheme 4

Vp plc operatesa UK registered trust based pension scheme that provides defined benefits. Pensron benefits are linked to the members’

final pensionable salaries:and service at their retirement {or date of leaving if earlier). The Trustee is responsible for running the Scheme
in accordance with the Scheme’s Trust Deed and Rules, which sets out their powers. The Trustee of the Scheme is required to act in the‘
best mterests of the beneficiaries of the Scheme.

There are two categones of pension scheme member: .
o Deferred members: former employees of the Company not yet in receipt of a: pen5|on

* Pension members: in receipt of pension.

7
The defined benefit oblrgatron is valued by prorectlng the best estimate of future benefit outgoings (allowing for revaluation to retirement
for deferred members and annual. pension increases for all members)-and then discounting to the balance sheet date. The majority of
benefits receive increases in deferment linked to inflation (subject to a cap of no more than 5% pa). The valuation method used is
known as the Projected Unit Method. The approximate averall duration of the Schemes defined beneflt obligation as at 31 March 2021
was 11 years.

. . : | I .

“The Trustee is required to carry out an actuarial valuation every 3, years. The last actuarial valuation of the Scheme was performed by the
Scheme Actuary for the Trustee as at 31 March 2018. The valuation revealed a funding surplus of approximately £2,000,000. The Company
therefore does not expect to pay any contributions into the Scheme during the accounting year beginning 1 April 2021. The difference
between the actuarial valuation and the 1AS 19 valuation reflects the different valuation dates, the last actuarial valuation was as at 31
March 2018, and the assumptions adopted. The actuarial valuation uses assumptions determined by the Scheme Trustees to evaluate the

. Scheme funding requirements on a triannual basis and the IAS 19 valuation uses assumptlons that are’ chosen by the Company, but
heavily prescribed by the accounting standard. .

' Through the Scheme, the Company is exposed to a number of risks:

e Asset volatility: the Scheme’s defined benefit obligation is calculated using a discount rate set with referénce to corporate bond
yields, however .the Scheme invests some of the assets in diversified growth funds. These assets are expected to outperform
corporate bonds in the long term, but provide volatility and risk in the short term.

. Changeé in bond yields: a decrease in corporate bond yields would increase the Scheme’s defined benefit obligation. -

o Inflation nsk a significant proportion. of the Scheme’s defined benefit obligation is linked to inflation, therefore higher inflation
will result in a higher defined benefit obligation (subject to-the appropriate caps in place).

e Life expectancy: if Scheme members live longer than expected, the Scheme’s beneflts will need to be paid for Ionger increasing
the Scheme’s defined benefit obligation.

The Trustee and Company manage risks in the Scheme through the followmg strategles

98 A ’ ,' . ’ o vpplc.com Vp plc'An'nual Report and Ar:counts 2021



‘Notes

25. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

e Diversification: investments are ‘well diversified, such that the failure of any single investment would not have a material impact
on the overall level of assets. i S

e Investment strategy: the Trustee is required to review its invesiment strategy on a regular basis.

o LDI: the Scheme invests in Liabi,lity Driven Investment (LDI) funds in order to control interest rate and inflation risks.

Torrent Railways pension scheme :

Torrent participates in a section of the Railways Pension Scheme (the “Section”), a UK registered trust based pension scheme that
provides defined benefits. Pension benefits are linked to the members’ final pensionable salaries and service at their retirement (or date
of leaving if earlier). The Trustee is responsible for running the Section in accordance with the Section’s Trust Deed and Rules, which sets
out their powers. The Trustee of the Scheme is required to act in the best interests of the beneficiaries of the Scheme.

There are three categories of pension scheme menibers in the Section: -
o Activermembers: currently employed by the Company and accruing pension benefits
e Defefred members: former members of the Section not yet in receipt of pension.

¢ Pensioner members: in receipt of pension.

-

The defined benefit obligation is valued by projecting the best estimate of future benefit outgoings (aliowing for future-salary increases
for active members, revaluation to retirement for deferred members and annual pension increases for all members) and then discounting
to the balance sheet date. The majority of benefits receive increases linked to the CPI inflation. The valuation method used is known as
the Prorected Unit Method. The approximate overall duration of the Section’s defined obligation as at 31 March 2021 was 20 years.

The Trustee is requrred to carry out an actuarial valuation every 3 years

The last actuarial valuation for the Section was performed by the Scheme Actuary for the Trustee as at 31 December 2019. This valuation
revealed a surplus in the Section of £33,000 on the Scheme Funding basis. The Company agreed to pay annual contributions of 20.9%
pa of members’ section pay prior to. 30 June 2018, and 21.7% pa of members’ pensionable salaries from 1 July 2018; all subject to the
Oomnibus rate as defined in the Rules. The Company expects to pay around £15,000 to the Section during the accounting year beginning
1 April 2020. The difference between the’actuarial valuation and the IAS 19 valuation is due to the same principles as descrrbed in the
vp plc detarls above, albeit the last actuarial valuation was performed at 31 December 2019.

Through the Section, the Company is exposed to a number of fisks:

o Asset volatility: the Section’s defined benefit obligation is ‘calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond
~yields, however the Section invests significantly in equities. These assets are expected to outperform corporate bonds in the long
term, but provrde volatility and risk in the short term.

. Changes in bond yields: a decrease in corporate bond yields would increase the Section’s defrned benefit oblrgatron however, this
"~ would be partially offset by an increase in the value of the Section’s assets.

o Inflation risk: a significant proportion of the Section’s defined benefit obligation is linked to inflation, therefore-higher inflation will -

“result in a higher defined benefit gbligation (subject to the appropriate caps in place). The majority of the Section’s assets are either
~ unaffected by inflation, or only loosely correlated with:inflation, therefore an increase in inflation would also increase the deficit.

o Life expectancy: if Section members live Ionger than expected, the Section’s benefits will need to be paid for longes, increasing
the Section’s defined benefit obligation.

The Trustee- manages risks in the Sectron through the following strategies:

e Diversification: investments are well diversified, such that the failure of any srngle investment would not have a materral impact
on the overall level of assets. :

e Investment strategy: the Trustee is required to review the investment strategy on a regular basis.

All actuarial gains and- losses are recognised in the year in which they occur in the Statement of Comprehiensive Income. From 1 April
2013 the Group and the Company have adopted IAS 19 revised as set out in-the accounting policies in note 1. ’

Present value of net surplus g ' ) Group Company

2021 . 2020 2021 2020

. ) . .£000 ' £000 . £000 £000

present value of defined benefit obligation A -~ (10,600) (9,812) (8,737) . (8,312)
Fair value of scheme 3ssets ' 12,775 12,830 11,394 11,665
Present value of net surplus’ ' © 2,175 3,018 2,657 . 3,353

~
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Notes

© 25. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
The movement in the defined benefit surplus is as follows:

Group 3 o ‘ ; : : 2021, o ' 2020
' : : ) Present ~ Fair Present Fair
value of value of _ value of value ofs . ‘
obligation. . assets - Total - obligation " assets _ Total’
£000 £000 - £000 £000 £000 . '£000
At beginning of year . R © o (9,812) 12,830 3,018 (10,187) 12,919 2,732
Service costs : ' (28) (103) (131) (2)  (128) (160)
Interest (cost)/income , . ~(220) 288 68 - (240) 303 63 .
~ Re- measurements 4 : ',

* Actuarial gains/(losses): change in demographlc assumphons 20 - 20 @@y - (23)
Actuarial (losses)/gains: change in financial assumptions ~ (1,053) R (1,053) - 221 .- 221
Actuarial gains/(losses): expenence differing ' o ‘ :
from that assumed : 15 - 15 ®) S ®)
Actuarial gains: actual return on assets R - - . 223 223 L 178 . 178
Contributions: employer o S 15 15 - 15 15
Contributions: employees . - 7) 7 w 7 7 -
Benefits paid . 5 : / 485 (485) - 464 (464) . -

' (10,600) 12,775 2,175 (9,812) 12,830 3,018
Company ' o ] ' 2021 : ' 2020
‘ ST Present ~ Fair Present Fair
value of  value of . value of value of

obligation . assets  -Total  obligation assets - Total

£000 - £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

" At beginning of year : ‘ A (8,312) 1i(665 3,353 (8591) 11,757 3,166
_ Service costs : o - - (91) (91) - (121) (121)
Interest (cost)/income ‘ "~ (185) 261 76 (201) 275 . 74

" Re-mieasurements ‘ 4 ' .

+ Actuarial gains/(losses): change in demographic assumptions 16 - 16 21 - B 0 ) R
Actuarial (losses)/gains: change in financial assumptions (7299 . . - . (724) T - 54
Actuarial gains: actual.return on assets . 27 27 - 201 201
Benefits paid : : ' 468 . (468) - 447 (aa7) - -

' ' © (8,737) 11,394 '. 2,657 -(8,312) 11,665 . 3,353
Expense/(infbme) recognised in the Income Statement - Group - Company
A 2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 . £000 £000 £000
Service costs : : . 13 160. 91 . 121
Net interest - - -~ (68) - . (63) . (76) . (74)
' 63 97 . 15 47

These expenses/(income) are recognised in the following line items in the Income Statement: .

Group ] Company
2021 2020 . 2021 , 2020 -
. v ©£000 £000 " £000 £000
. Cost of sales o - ‘ 131 160 91 121
Administrative expenses . . : : (68) (63) (76) - (74)

63 : . 97 ' 15 , 47
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25. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (contlnued)

‘Amount recognised in other comprehensive income _ : Group . ‘ (om'pany .
- - 2021 2020 2021 D 2020 ——
: £000 - - £000 ) £000 £000 .

Acturial (losses)/gains on defined benefit obligation . (1,018) o 190 (708) ‘ 33 o
Actual return on assets less interest . . 223 178 .27 - 201 % .
. : ) : =}

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income (795) 368 . (681) 234 il
7 —_ —_ =

. hol

Cumulative actuarial net gams/(losses) reported in the statement of comprehenswe income since 1 April 2004, the transition to adopted 2

IFRSs, forthe Group are loss of £265,000 (2020: galn of £530,000), Company loss of £357, 000 (2020: gain of £324,000).

Scheme assets ‘and returns
The fair value of the scheme assets and the return on those assets were 3s foIIows

[l

e : o Group . Company %

'2021 2020 - 2021 A 2020 - §

. £000 . £000 £000 £000- ]
Fair value of assets . . o . ’ :
 Diversified-growth funds B - 3,968 3,335 3,968 3,335
Equities and other growth assets 1,127 972 .- -

Bonds and cash : , 5,882 © 5,850 .5,628 5,657 -

Liability driven investments (LDI) _ C1,798 - : 2,673 1,798 - 2,673 §

’ ' 12,775 ) 12,830 11,394 - . . 11,665 §_,

‘ 5

- Returns . 4 o . ®

Actual return on scheme assets ) ' : 511 481 ‘288 . 476 g

None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any of the Company’s own financial .instruments or any property occupied by or
other assets used by the Company. The Scheme invests in the “Matching Core” range of LDI funds provided by Legal & General Investment
Management: (LGIM) (the Scheme’s investment manager). These are unit-linked, pooled investment vehicles, with 3 qooted unit price. The
market value for the purposes of the.accounts was provided by LGIM and was the bid-value of the funds at the accouniting date.

Principal actuanal assumptlons
The prmc|pa| actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as welghted averages) are:

uoNeWIOJU| Jap|OYaJeyS

-Gfoup and Company -

4 2021 2020
Inflation : o _ L 35 . 27%
Discount rate at 31 March - » ‘ , “ o 1T% 2.3%
Expected future satary increases . : o 2.0% 2.7%
Expected future pension increases o E .- 3.4% . 2.7%
Revaluation of deferred pensions C : : S - 2.8% “1.8%

Mortality rate assumptions adopted at 31 March 2021 based on SZPA CMI Model 2019, imply. the foIIowmg life expectatlons on.
 retirement at age 65 for: : '

: 2021 2020
Male currently aged 45 ' ' : . 23 years 23 years
Female currently aged 45 ° A ' o : © v .25years. 25 years
Male currently aged 65 - o » : : -22years . 22years

" Female currently aged 65 o . 24 years . " 24-years
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25, EMPLOYEE:BENEFITS (continued)

History of schemes . .
" The history of the scheémes for the current and prior years is as follows:

Group . ©o2021 2020 2019 L2018 2017

‘ £000 . £000 £000 £000 - £000

Present value of defined benefit obligation ’ " (10,600) L 7(9,812) (10,187) (10,388) .. (11,402)
Fair value of plan assets 12,775 12,830 12,919 12,618 13,330
Present value of n_et_surplué . . 2,175 3,018 . 2,732 2,230 1,928
Company . _ o 2021 2020 2019 - 2018 2017 .
: o : .£000 £000 “£000 . £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit obllgatlon o (8,737) (8312) - (8591) - (8,902) (9,885)

" Fair value of plan assets . . 11,394 11,665 ©1,757 11,523 12,286
Present value of net surplus : 2,657 3,353 - 3,166 _ 2,621 2,401

Gains/(losses) recognised in statement of comprehensive income

Group ‘ L . . 2021 2020 2019 20018 2017

Difference between expectéd and actual return on scheme assets: -
Amount (£000) - : : 223 C78 " 468 (25) 1,948
- Percentage of scheme assets - 1.7% "1.4% 3.6% (0.2%) 14.6%
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities: o . . ' . )
Amount (£000) . - ' .15 @®) 205 (13) - .48
Percentage of-present value of scheme liabilities 0.1% - (0.1%) 20%  (0.1%) T 0.4%

Effects of changes in the demographic and financial assumptlons
underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities:. - : ' . ,
Amount (£000) (1,033) 198 (95) 313 . (1,361)

Percentage of present value of scheme liabilities ©9.7%) - 2.0% ©(09%) . 3.0% (11.9%)
_ Recognition of Railways pension scheme ) . . : '
" Amount (£000) . . T - - (269)
Percentage of present value of scheme liabilities (0.0%) ~{0.0%) (0.0%) (0.0%) - (2.4%)
“Total amount recognised in statement of comprehenswe income: ‘ ' T S
Amount (£000) - ' : (795) 368 . 536 275 366
Percentage of present value of scheme liabilities - (7.5%) 38%  53% 2.6% . 3.2%
Company _ C 7 20m 2020 2019 2018 - 2017
Difference between expected and actual return on scheme assets: - A i ‘ o
Amount (£000) o - 27 - 201 26 (78) 1,836
Percentage of scheme assets o ' 0.2% 1.7% 3.6% - (0.7%) 14.9%
Exbérience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities: . ) : : '
Amount (£000) - . 192 (1) 27
“Percentage of present value of scheme liabilities 0.0% . 0.0% 22% - {0.1%) 0.3%

Effects of _changes in the demographic and-financial assumptions
- underlying the present value of the scheme-liabilities: . .o .
Amount (£000) : . (708) 133 . (30) 246 (1,048)

Percentage of present value of scheme liabilities (8.1%) 0.4% - (0.3%) 2.8% . (10.6%)
Total amount recognised in statemnent of comprehenswe income: . . ) .
Amount (£000) - (681) 234 546 156 - 815

Percentage of present value of scheme liabilities - (7.8%) 2.8%, 6.4% 1.8%. 8.2%
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25. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued) - : 2

© Sensitivity analysis ' ' ‘
The sensitivity of the net pension asset/oblrgatron to assumptrons is set out below: ‘ : ’ . R,

Vp ple scheme ‘
: - . _ Change in ) -Change in defined Z
~ Assumption ‘ assumption benefit obligation 2
. Discount rate . . . +/-0.5% pa -5%/+6% i
RPlinflation _ : : +/-0.5% pa - : . -1%/+1% g
Assumed life expectancy ' ' ‘ . +1year : +4% -
Torrent Railways scheme ' i ’ _ o :‘ ) . C =
A ‘ ~ . Changein ~ Change.in defined - -
" Assumption’ : - o , - assumption benefit obligation
Discount rate . . , +/-05%pa . © 9% /+11% g
CPIinflation : . +/-05%pa +7%/ 7% c
Assumed life expectancy o : . T+ 1year A +4%p, %
These calculations provide an approximate guide to the sensitivity of results and may not be as accurate as a full valuation carried out:
on these assumptions. Each assumption change is considered in isolation, which in practice is unlikely to occur as changes in some of

the assumptrons are correlated

Deflned contrlbutlon plans

The Group also operates defined contribution schemes for other eligible employees, the. main schemes beirig the Vp money purchase
scheme and the Legal and General Stakeholder Scheme. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group. The .
pension cost represents contributions payable by the Group and amounted to £1,917,000 (2020: £2,285,000) in the year. . '

I
S
o
S
o
=N
w
=
&
=3
3
™
=
=
&

|

UoNeWIoJu| Japjoyaleys

Vp plic Annual Report and Accounts 2021 vpplc.com | o - 103



=

Notes

26. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS -

The Group acquired the following businesses from 1 April 2019.t0 31 March 2021:

Name of acquisition Date of acquisition

Sandhurst Limited 9 May 2019 -

Details of the acquisition are provided below: .-

Property, plant and equipment -
Current assets

Net debt

Tax, trade and other payables

Fair value of net assets

Fair value adjustments
lntanglbles on acquisition
Deferred tax on intangibles

.Fair value of intangible assets acquired

Goodwil on acquisition -

Cost of aaiuisitibns )

' satisfied by

Cash .consideration

Analysis of cash flow

- for acquisitions

Cash consideration

. Net (cash)/overdraft in acquisitions

Type of acqhisitio’n Acquired by

Share purchase
(10(_)% equity)

Vp plc

Group

2020
Totat
£000
- " 1,774
- ) 524
- (19
- (452)-.
- - 1,827

. ' 1,597
- (272)
. ‘ 1325

- 3325

- ' 3,325

. 3335

o 3,325 .

The fair value of net assets generally reflect the book value of assets in the acquired company,/business. The acquisition in the previous year
was made to grow markel share and expand the product range. Intangibles were identified in relation to the acquisition in the"previous year
ended 31 March 2020 relate to custorner lists and brand names. The amortisation periods for these intangibles are set out in note 1. The -
goodwill arising on acquisitioh is primarily attributable to the expected operational synergies within- the Group’s businesses. The acquisition
costs expensed in the year ended 31 March 2021 in relanon to_ the acqmsmon were £Nil (2020 £42,600). The contnbuﬂon towards Group

profit in the prewous year was not matenal

104 .
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Notes

27. RElATED PARTIES

Material transactions with key management (being the directors of the Group) mainly constitute remuneration mcIudrng share based -

payments, details of whrch are included in the Remuneratron Report on pages 38 to 51 and in note 6 to the Financial Statemenls

Trading transactions wrth subsidiaries - Group
Transactions between the Company and the Group’s subsrdlanes which are related parties, have been elrmrnated on consolidation and

_ are therefore not disclosed.

Trading transactions with subsidiaries - Parent Company .
The Company enters into transactions with its subsrdlary undertakrngs in respect of the following:

. Internal funding loans’ . .
. Provrsron of Group services (including Senior Management, IT, Group Finance, Group HR, Group Properties and Shared Service Centre)
o Rehire of equipment on commercial terms ' _ :

Recharges are rriade for Group services based on the utilisation of those services. In addition to these services the Company acts as 3

buying agent for certain Group purchases sitch as insurance and IT services. These are recharged based on utlllsatlon by the subsidiary
undertaking. -

“The amount outstandlng from subsrdrary undertakings to the Company at 37 March 2021 totalled £47,473, 000 (2020 £80 626,000).
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings by the Company at 31 March 2021 totalled £51,058,000 (2020: £47,474,000).

'The Company and certain subsidiary undertakings-have entered into cross guarantees of bank loans, private placement loans and
overdrafts to the Company. The total value of such borrowings at 31-March 2021 was £138.0 million (2020: £174.0 mrIIron)

28 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In an international Group a variety of claims arise from time to time in the notmal course of business. Such claims may arise due to -

actions being taken against Group companies as a result of investigations by fiscal authorities or under regulatory requirements. Provision
has been made in these consolidated:financial statements against any claims which the directors consider are likely to resultin significant
liabilities or required under accounting standard IAS 37.

29. ULTIMATE PARENT (OMPANY

. The Company is a subsidiary undertaking of Ackers P Investment Company Limited which is the ultrmate parent company mcorporated
7in- Great Britain. Consolidated accounts are prepared for this company. Ackers P Investment Company Limited is ultimately controlled by
a number of Trusts of which, for the purposes of Sections 252 to 255 of the Companies Act 2006, Jeremy Prlkrngton is deemed to- be 3
- connected person.

Vp plc Annual Report and Accounts 2021 vp‘plc.com ‘
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 Notes

30. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

The investments in trading subsidiary undertakings as at 31"March 2021 are:

Torrent Trackside Limited -
Hire Station Limited

Airpac Bukom Oilfield
Services Pte Limited

Airpaé Bukom Oilfield-
Services (Curacao) NVA

-Airpac Bukom Oilfield
© Services Middle East FZE

Airpac Bukom Oilfield
Services (Australia) Pty Limited

Vp GmbH

Vp Equipment Rental
(Ireland) Limited

vp Eduipment Rental Pty Limited
TR Pty Limited

VMS international Pty Limited

Tech Rentals'(Malaysia) SON BHD

Vidcom New Zealand Limited .

Country of -
Registration or
Incorporation
Ehgland '

England

Singapore”

Curacao  ~ '

. ¢
Sharjah

Australia

Germany

Ireland

- Australia

Australia.

Australia

Malaysia

" New Zealand

Principal

Activity
Rail equipment hire

"Tool hire

* Qilfield services

Oilfield services

oilfield services

Qilfield services

Equipment hire

Equibment hire

" Holding company .

Equipment hire

Equipment hire E

" Equipment hire

Equipment hire"

Country of ,

Principal
Operation

UK

(UK

Singapore
Curacao

Sharjah

Australia

Germany

treland

Australia
Australia
Australia

Malaysia

A . New Zealand

© Class and-

Percentage of .
Shares Held

" Ordinary shares.100%

Ordinary shares 100% )
Ordinary shares 100%
Ordinary 'sharAes 100% -

~

Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%

:Ordinary' shares -1 000/._0_
Ordinary sha‘res 100%
Ordi‘narg/ shares 100%
Ord-i’nary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%
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30. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS (continued)
The full list of the dormant subsidiary undertakings is:

Stoppers Specialists L@mite_d
Trench Shore Limited

UK Training Limited

Vibroplant Investments Limited

Bukom General Qilfield
Services Limited

Fred Pilkington & Son Limited

Domindo Tool Hire Limited
Instant Tool Hire Limited

 The Handi Hire Group Limited

Détum Survey Products -

Power Tool ASuppIies Limited

Hire & Sales (Canterbury) Limited

Coo! Customers Limited '

vibroplant Trustees Lirﬁited

Vibrobet Limited

UM (Holdings) Limited

Power Rental Services Limited

Rapid Response Barriers Limited

u MoIeA'Limited

.727 Plant Ltimited

Cannon Tool Hire Limit_ed'

MEP Hire Limited

Arcotherm (UK) Limited

Saville Hire Limited

Vibroplant_[imiﬁed

Mechanical Electrical
Press Fittings Limited

Mr Cropper Limited
* Direct Instrument Hire Limited -

Test & Measurement Hire-
. Group Limited :

Test & Measurement Hire Limited
‘Highe( Access Limited

A.CN. 098733638 Pty Limited.
Zenith Survey Equiphent Limited
Sufvey Connection Scotlénd Limited
Brandon Hire Group Limited
Brandon Hire Groupl Holdings Limited
Brandon Hire Limited

FNPR Holdings Limited .
First National Plant Rent_él Limited

~ TPA Portable Roadways Limited

' -Sandhurst Limited

Country of -
Registration or
Incorporation

England

" England

England

_ England

) Eﬁgland :

England
England
England
England

' Eigland

England

England -
* England

England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
Scdtiand
England
England
England

Scotland N

England
England

England
Eﬁgland
England

Australia -

" England

England
england
Englén_d

" England

England
England
England

England

Principal
Activity

Dormant

Dormant

. Dormant

Dormant
Dormant.

Dormant
Dormant
Dormant

.Dormant
“Dormant

Dormant
Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

. Dormant

Dormant
Dormant

Dormant
- Dgrmant
" Dormant
Dormant

Dormant

‘Dormant

Dormant
Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant
Dormant

Dormant

_Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant

Dormant

' n/a

(ouniry of

- Principal .~

Operation

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a .
n/a
n/a’
n/a

"n/a

n/a.
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
nfa -
n/a

" n/a
‘n/a

n/a

. n/3

n/a
n/a

‘n/a

n/a.
n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

Class and -
Percentage of
shares Held

Ordinary shares 100%
Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%

_ Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%
Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%
Ordinary shares 100%

* Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%
Ordinary shares 100%
Ordinary.shares 100%
Ordinary shares 90%

-Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%
Ordinary shares 100%
Ordinary shares 100%
Ordinary shares 100%

* Ordinary shares 100%
- Ordinary shares 100%
‘Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%
Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%
Ordinary shares 100%

Ordilnar'y shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%
_Ordinary shares 100%
Ordinéry shares 100%-

Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%.

brdinary shares 100%
Ordihary shares 100%
Ordinary shares 100%

“Ordinary shares 100%

Ordinary shares 100%
Ordinary shares 100%
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‘Notes

30. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS (continued)
The registered offices of the companies are: '

108

~ Country of Registfation . - Registeréd office Address'
England . : : " Central House, Beckwith Knov;lle, Qtley Road, Hafroéate HG3 U0
Scotland . ‘ o o . _ M.‘Ligiem'ossv Roac:i, Bucksburn, Aberdeen AB21 9NP |
.SingaporeA _ . ‘ A 9 Pibneer Sé’ct'or 2,.Singapore 628_37%
Cﬁratao ) o - .Brionplei_n 4, Curacao, Netherlands An,ti‘lles'
SharjahA .' | o ‘ B SAIF Officé Pé-13-1 0, PO Bok 121378, Sharjah; Uniied‘ Arab Emirates '
Australia o ' 18 Joseph St"reet, B!ackburn North, Victoria 3'1,30‘ ' |
Gerﬁany - . - ' ‘ Lurgiallee 6-8, 60439 Frankfurt -
Iréland o ' - | 170 Sir‘Jc‘)hn' Rogersdn’s Quay, Dublin 2 -\
V . Mal'aysia . ' ) E Wisma Goshen, 2nd Floor, 60 & 62 Jalan 5522/21 Damansara Jaya
A ) - - 47400 Petalmg Jaya, Selangor Dami Ehsan .
New Zealand - ) - ' 27 Exmouth Street, Fden Terrace, Auckland 101
y
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Five Year Summary

- 2017 2018 -2019 2020 ,2021

. £000 . £000 . £000 £000 ' £000

" Revenue o 248,740 303,639 - 382,830 362,927 307,997 -

- Operating profit before amortisation and exceptionals 37,757 © 44018 51,571 55,480 - 30,928 ‘r?: :

. N - R . )
~_Profit before amortisation, taxation and exceptionals . 34,851 - 40,597 46,829 46,640 23,176 §
Profit/(Loss) before taxation . C 30,339 130814 33,581 28,366 (2,269)

. Taxation _ ' . (6,687) . (6,448) (7,759) (9,779) (2,332) —
Profit/(Loss) after taxation o 23,652 . 24,366 25,822 - 18,587 (4,601) o
Dividends* | ) _ 1(7,632) (8,983) . (10,853) (12055) - (8,674) §
“Share capital - - 2,008 2,008 2,008 2,008 2,008
Capital redemption reserve . ' 301 L 301 301 307 -~ 301
Reserves . ) ' - 134,980 152,110 166,549 167,585 - 150,781 A
. Total equity before non-controlling interest . 137,289 154,419 168,858 169,894 153,090 - 2
Share Statistics i . ' . §
Asset value : ‘ , 342p 385p Ca21p .423p . 381p 5
Earnings (pre amortisation) ©69.52p - 8491p ©95.14p 90.21p . 46.56p
Dividend** ' ' 22.00p 26.00p 30.20p . 30.45p 25.00p
Times covered (pre amortisation). - 3.16 3.27 - 315 3.0 : 1.9

* Dividends under IFRS relate only to dividends declared in that year.

uoNeWI0UJ J3P|OYDIRYS

*k D|V|dends per share statistics are the dividends related to that year whether paid-or proposed. The special dividend of 22.00 pence
per share declared on 17 January 2027 is in relatlon to the financial year ended 31 March 2020.
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